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(Agricultural Bank of China Limited)

(Zhang Keqiu, Secretary to the Board of Directors)
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1994 8 4
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CSRC
CSRC
2010 4 21 2010 4 26 CBRC
2010 9 2 2010 10 13 CBRC
2012 10 29 2012 12 31 CBRC 2014 6 23
2014 8 14 CBRC
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
13,244,342 14,562,102 15,974,152 17,791,393 19,570,061
(213,631,236)  (234,886,705) (257,663,072) (286,975,169) (315,665,084)
6,433,399 7,224,713 8,098,067 8,909,918 9,719,639
(103,770,726)  (116,534,621) (130,621,821) (143,716,977) (156,777,777)
4,427,989 4,728,857 5,147,410 5,378,404 5,368,250
(71,423,463)  (76,276,463)  (83,027,723)  (86,753,657)  (86,589,873)
107,601 92,823 157,349 356,992 569,948
(1,735,604) (1,497,235)  (2,538,039)  (5,758,281)  (9,193,261)
1,707,323 2,093,305 2,396,639 2,727,890 3,340,879
(27,539,120)  (33,765,010)  (38,657,787)  (44,000,866)  (53,888,378)
190,486 309,728 396,669 446,632 440,562
(3,072,539) (4,995,913)  (6,398,271)  (7,204,174)  (7,106,265)
279,988 322,191 358,071 403,243 400,275
(4,516,206) (5,196,941)  (5,775,685)  (6,504,310)  (6,456,436)
6,153,411 6,902,522 7,739,996 8,506,675 9,319,364
(99,254,519)  (111,337,680) (124,846,135) (137,212,668) (150,321,341)
2,856,148 3,220,098 3,575,630 4,512,047 5,333,535
(46,069,667)  (51,940,181)  (57,674,912)  (72,779,318)  (86,029,920)
2,613,111 2,603,802 2,743,065 2,587,057 2,811,653
(42,149,480)  (41,999,326)  (44,245,638)  (41,729,229)  (45,351,963)
485,613 706,333 979,867 1,202,175 1,203,614
(7,832,938)  (11,393,151)  (15,805,255)  (19,391,083)  (19,414,294)
814,620 737,052 509,418 471,809 323,051
(13,139,821)  (11,888,649)  (8,216,912)  (7,610,279)  (5,210,813)
12,492,988 13,717,565 14,941,533 16,579,508 18,248,470
(201,511,896)  (221,264,323) (241,006,927) (267,427,464) (294,347,821)
10,862,935 11,811,411 12,533,397 13,538,360 15,038,001
(175,219,142)  (190,518,059) (202,163,694) (218,373,747) (242,562,956)
3,980,483 4,311,407 4,437,283 4,821,751 5,599,743
(64,205,191)  (69,542,995)  (71,573,375)  (77,774,844)  (90,323,855)
6,421,876 6,923,647 7,422,318 8,065,556 8,815,148
(103,584,860)  (111,678,426) (119,721,989) (130,097,418) (142,188,337)
460,576 576,357 673,796 651,053 623,110
(7,429,091) (9,296,638)  (10,868,329)  (10,501,485)  (10,050,764)
934,073 903,717 1,056,064 1,537,660 1,458,065
(15,066,597)  (14,576,955)  (17,034,312)  (24,802,456)  (23,518,588)
7,631 26,787 131,021 88,804 205,832
(123,088) (432,074)  (2,113,369)  (1,432,409)  (3,320,070)
192,639 266,261 325,167 382,742 388,215
(3,107,267) (4,294,790)  (5,244,944)  (6,173,628)  (6,261,908)
749,815 843,108 1,031,066 1,210,091 1,318,193
(12,094,516)  (13,599,332)  (16,631,095)  (19,518,768)  (21,262,453)
® 910,048 1,074,967 1,391,559 1,471,620 1,546,500
(14,679,074)  (17,339,218)  (22,445,847)  (23,737,231)  (24,945,045)
Tier1(CET1) O N/A 838,473 986,206 1,124,690 1,231,030
(N/A)  (13,524,569)  (15,907,503)  (18,141,250)  (19,856,514)
Tierl ® N/A 1 39,946 79,902 79,904
(N/R) (16) (644,329)  (1,288,819)  (1,288,852)
Tier2 © N/A 236,493 365,407 267,028 235,566
(N/R) (3,814,632)  (5,894,015)  (4,307,162)  (3,799,680)
® 7,216,178 9,065,631 10,852,619 10,986,302 11,856,530
(116,396,951)  (146,228,628) (175,052,744) (177,209,051) (191,245,829)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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424,964
(6,854,669)
341,879
(5,514,508)
74,844
(1,207,234)
182,802
(2,948,596)
54,235
(874,811)
187,927
(3,031,263)
145,131
(2,340,963)
145,094
(2,340,366)

319,058
(5.,146,406)

465,771
(7,512,886)
376,202
(6,068,138)
83,171
(1,341,548)
198,607
(3,203,531)
52,990
(854,729)
214,174
(3,454,627)
166,211
(2,680,983)
166,315
(2,682,661)

32,879
(530,338)

524,126
(8,454,152)
429,891
(6,934,142)
80,123
(1,292,384)
223,898
(3.611,475)
67,971
(1,096,372)
232,257
(3,746,305)
179,510
(2.895,496)
179,461
(2.,894,706)

34,615
(558, 340)

540,862
(8,724,104)
436,140
(7.,034,938)
82,549
(1,331,515)
225,818
(3.642,444)
84,172
(1,357,694)
230,857
(3,723,723)
180,774
(2,915, 885)
180,582
(2,912,788)

820,348
(13,232,213)
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510,128
(8,228, 365)
398,104
(6,421,418)
90,935
(1,466,782)
197,049
(3,178,400)
86,446
(1,394,374)
226,624
(3,655,445)
184,060
(2,968, 888)
183,941
(2,966,968)

715,973
(11,548,644)
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2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
@ 1.16 1.20 1.18 1.07 0.99
20.74 20.89 19.57 16.79 15.14
® 2.81 2.79 2.92 2.66 2.25
® 2.67 2.65 2.76 2.49 2.10
W ® 2.01 1.83 1.65 1.65 1.55
17.61 17.86 15.29 15.26 17.83
™ 36.76 36.30 34.56 33.28 34.59
1
1 0.45 0.51 0.55 0.55 0.55
(7.26) (8.23) (8.87) (8.87) (8.87)
1 ® 0.45 0.51 0.55 0.55 0.55
(7.26) (8.23) (8.87) (8.87) (8.87)
1
0.98 0.10 0.11 2.53 2.20
(15.81) (1.61) .77 (40.81) (35.49)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 1.33 1.22 1.54 2.39 2.37
(©) 326.14 367.04 286.53 189.43 173.40
a0 4.35 4.46 4.42 4.53 4.12
Tier1(CET1) O N/A 9.25 9.09 10.24 10.38
Tierl &) N/A 9.25 9.46 10.96 11.06
&) 12.61 11.86 12.82 13.40 13.04
(&) 54.48 62.25 67.94 61.75 60.59
5.67 5.80 6.46 6.81 6.75
1
1 an 2.31 2.60 3.05 3.48 3.81
(37.26) (41.94) (49.20) (56.13) (61.46)
¢y
@
(3) CSRC 9 - 1
2010 33 1
O]
®)
6) CBRC
(7) CAS
®)
©)
(10)
1)
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31 12 31
® 25 44.75 43.57 44.02 4450 46.74
25 161.78 114.95 72.49 115.15 82.24



EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
® 10 3.59 3.33 5.23 7.15 6.98
10
® 15.76 13.22 14.43 16.82 16.58
@ 2.49 2.53 3.60 4.9 3.00
4.65 4.36 4.99 18.28 24.86
21.79 37.24 42.53 86.94 89.23
4.96 8.62 10.10 10.35 9.55
(1) CBRC
@
®) 10
(4) CBRC
2016 1 2 3 4
140,643 135,666 133,835 99,984
(2,268,572) (2,188,293) (2,158,759) (1,612,742)
54,688 50,460 49,022 29,771
(882,117) (813,920) (790,725) (480, 206)
191,116 343,653 (25,279) 206,483
(3,082,701) (5,543,123) (-407,750) (3,330,571)
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1951 1970
2009 1
2010 7
1
IT
2016 19,570,061
9,719,639 15,038,001
13.04 2016 184,060
2016 3 37
365 3,506
19,714 55 23,682
10 3 9 5
14
2014 3
2016 500 29
1,000 Tierl 5
A A-1 A F1
44

2016 12 31 MOF 40.03 39.21
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2016 12 31
/
CA 588,790,000 100.00
ABC
4,113,392,449 100.00
3,000,000,000 100.00
UK 100,000,000 100.00
200,000,001 51.67
19,600,000 51.02
® 31,000,000 50.00
29,400,000 51.02
20,000,000 51.00
210,000,000 51.00
100,000,000 51.00
® 2,949,916,475 51.00
20,000,000 100.00
1,400,000, 000 100.00
@ 2
(2 2012 12 31 51
1,381
2016 12 31 917 2,844
3,761
51 1,843
2016 12 31
2016 12 31
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2016 12 31
46
23
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
273 213
2015 5 28 CFA XAF
La Banque Sino-Congolaise pour I"Afrique

BSCA. BSCA. 50

BSCA.

24
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2016 6,384 496,698
9,339 8,115 788
2016 12 31
8,319 1.7
67,549 13.6
53,837 10.8
70,744 14.3
104,504 21.0
52,048 10.5
130,794 26.3
487,795 98.2
8,115 1.6
788 0.2
496,698 100.0
2016 12 31
474 0.1
23,736 4.8
219,860 44.3
156,611 31.5
96,017 19.3
496,698 100.0
2016 12 31
122,958 24.7
18,273 3.7
22,923 4.6
18,635 3.7
111,635 22.5
227 0.1
5,552 1.1
147,627 29.7
34,590 7.0
14,278 2.9
496,698 100.0
2016 12 31
30 106,413 21.4
31 40 74,248 15.0
41 50 204,188 41.1
51 111,849 22.5
496,698 100.0
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GDP 51.6

3.1
50 2.89
3.73
12.9
2016
74.4
0.3
GDP
CPI
SDR

2016

2016

3.8

2016
2016
GDP 6.7
2.0
0.2
64.6
2.0
17.8
1
2017
3.1

)

13.4

2017
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0.1
225
0.42
CRB
0.2
8.1 10.4
1.9
1.4
0.6
1.4
2016 M2 11.3
PBOC
2017
)
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2017
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2017
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
(@) (@)
4,265,801 47.9 4,594,468 47.3
1,198,000 13.5 1,485,633 15.3
1,349,190 15.1 1,293,680 13.3
2,096,927 23.5 2,345,858 24.1
8,909,918 100.0 9,719,639 100.0
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
(@D (@D
%0 98,465 1.1 79,545 0.8
o1 360 105,098 1.2 86,468 0.9
361 3 63,251 0.7 98,427 1.0
3 12,698 0.1 10,195 0.1
279,512 3.1 274,635 2.8
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10 )
A 107,998 1.11
B 20,551 0.21
c 19,629 0.20
D 18,288 0.19
e 17,577 0.18
F 16,647 0.17
G 15,100 0.16
H 13,773 0.14
I 13,492 0.14
3 13,310 0.14
256,365 2.64
2016 12 31 6.98
10 16.58
5
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
Q) Q)
8,322,619 93.41 9,111,457 93.75
374,432 4.20 377,348 3.88
212,867 2.39 230,834 2.37
47,755 0.54 57,550 0.59
147,864 1.66 151,587 1.56
17,248 0.19 21,697 0.22
8,909,918 100.00 9,719,639 100.00
2016 12 31 17,967 230,834
0.02 2.37
2,916 377,348 3.88
0.32
@
)
®
4)
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
177,453 83.3 3.30 188,767 81.8 3.52
142,154 66.7 6.23 146,138 63.3 6.73
35,299 16.6 1.14 42,629 18.5 1.33
_ _ _ 1 _ _
31,884 15.0 1.17 37,980 16.4 1.14
8,257 3.9 0.43 11,014 4.8 0.43
6,059 2.8 2.73 6,983 3.0 2.88
2,892 1.4 1.61 3,119 1.4 2.04
8,495 4.0 3.69 9,804 4.2 5.10
6,020 2.8 3.59 6,955 3.0 3.63
161 0.1 12.43 105 0.0 8.58
3,530 1.7 0.79 4,086 1.8 0.93
212,867 100.0 2.39 230,834 100.0 2.37

2016 12 31 11,314 188,767
0.22 3.52
6,096 37,980 0.03
1.14

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
7 — — 7 — —
41,684 19.6 2.03 35,471 15.4 1.63
29,600 13.9 2.34 30,530 13.2 2.08
40,005 18.8 2.73 45,728 19.8 3.05
28,084 13.2 2.48 30,194 13.1 2.31
6,036 2.8 1.66 8,772 3.8 2.22
63,921 30.0 3.23 76,046 32.9 3.52
3,530 1.7 0.79 4,086 1.8 0.93
212,867 100.0 2.39 230,834 100.0 2.37

2016 12 31 6,213

12,125 5,723
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
74,522 42.0 5.45 77,124 40.9 6.29
2,785 1.6 0.47 3,247 1.7 0.49
9,270 5.2 1.76 11,086 5.9 2.47
5,210 2.9 0.58 3,951 2.1 0.39
62,072 35.0 12.31 63,140 33.4 15.62
945 0.5 0.46 810 0.4 0.34
5,447 3.1 2.59 6,004 3.2 3.31
7,859 4.4 3.14 13,275 7.0 5.77
2,122 1.2 0.47 3,783 2.0 0.68
313 0.2 0.24 177 0.1 0.10
181 0.1 0.67 140 0.1 0.59
6,727 3.8 3.09 6,030 3.2 2.77
177,453 100.0 3.30 188,767 100.0 3.52
2016 12 31 5,416
2,602
( )
2016 1 1 133,900 269,343 403,243
74,169 4,759 78,928
- 96,110 64,216 160,326
- (21,941) (59,457) (81,398)
(73,949) (8,797) (82,746)
- 925 1,421 2,346
- (1,730) (479) (2,209)
- 290 423 713
2016 12 31 133,605 266,670 400,275
©
2016
VaR
IT
2016
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2016
VaR
VaR 1 250
99
VaR
( )
2015 2016
50 76 103 50 53 63 71 39
1 82 74 151 32 20 86 213 14
18 29 53 9 9 13 28 3
VaR 82 119 183 68 44 96 213 44
[®) VaR
TE =3 H & W21 B O Vakd 3 ik
(Mt : MEMRE
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VaR 2016 9 11
VaR 2016 12
VaR
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2016 IT
2016
2016 12 31 1

852,244 1,387,150
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1 3 1 1
1 3 12 5 5
2015 12 31 (2,968,135) 554,253 1,878,976 (534,906) 42,874 1,627,830 (134,125)
2016 12 31 (3,577,103) 392,162 1,797,791 (1,387,150) 595,675 1,991,228 (137,593)
() 49
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
100 (16,780) (38,949) (24,271) (40, 354)
100 16,780 38,949 24,271 40,354
12
2016 12 31 100
24,271 40,354
2016
4,434 6.83 2016
7,968 9,954
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
(12,894) (1,986) 69,050 9,954
(10,654) (1,641) (7,052) (1,017)
(D 49
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
+5 (637) 881
-5 637 (881)
+5 206 863
-5 (206) (863)
5
881
@
CIPS IT
2016 PBOC
SLO SLF
MLF PSL
3 1
1 12 5 5
2015 12 31 48,107 (8,194,380) 126,537  (263,526) 825,092 1,681,453 4,385,011 2,393,379 1,001,673
2016 12 31 52,387 (9.355,146)  (62,220)  (510,004) 643,576 2,295,700 5,409,806 2,588,061 1,062,160
() 49
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1 HQLA 425,385,964
2 950,394,193 87,132,767
3 158,133,056 7,906,653
4 792,261,137 79,226,114
5 584,289,863 232,637,766
6 176,205,780 42,812,020
7 405,177,433 186,919,096
8 2,906,650 2,906,650
9 2,967,032
10 172,751,961 40,384,832
11 27,876,371 27,876,371
12 309,488 309,488
13 144,566,102 12,198,973
14 25,931,308 625,791
15 89,339,522 36,971,748
16 400,719,936
17 16,716,916 16,716,916
18 87,228,962 50,993,432
19 28,964,681 28,724,791
20 132,910,559 96,435,139
21 | HQLA 425,385,964
22 304,284,797
23 139.8
O)
2016

AMA

2016
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AML
AML
AML
AML
AML
AML

AML

2016 12 31
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@
@
2016 184,060 3,286 1.8
2015 2016
436,140 398,104 (38,036) -8.7
82,549 90,935 8,386 10.2
22,173 21,089 (1,084) -4.9
540,862 510,128 (30,734) -5.7
225,818 197,049 (28,769) -12.7
84,172 86,446 2,274 2.7
230,872 226,633 (4,239) -1.8
(15) (©)] 6 -40.0
230,857 226,624 (4,233) -1.8
50,083 42,564 (7,519) -15.0
180,774 184,060 3,286 1.8
180,582 183,941 3,359 1.9
192 119 (73) -38.0
2016 78.0 2016
398,104 38,036
40,580 78,616
2016 2.25 2.10 41
39
PBOC 2014 11 2015
206 5 1
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2015 2016
8,633,586 476,988 5.52 9,370,200 410,790 4.38
® 3,665,564 147,882 4.03 4,618,837 170,096 3.68
3,294,083 136,475 4.14 4,253,514 158,870 3.74
) 371,481 11,407 3.07 365,323 11,226 3.07
2,517,511 39,745 1.58 2,478,513 39,264 1.58
® 1,566,387 61,178 3.91 1,222,750 37,040 3.03
16,383,048 725,793 4.43 17,690,300 657,190 3.71
® (385,312) (410,350)
® 973,294 966,835
16,971,030 18,246,785
12,865,645 233,377 1.81 14,233,459 209,149 1.47
® 1,698,281 43,398 2.56 1,383,379 34,248 2.48
® 375,815 12,878 3.43 483,256 15,689 3.25
14,939,741 289,653 1.94 16,100,094 259,086 1.61
® 1,051,534 1,067,598
15,991,275 17,167,692
436,140 398,104
2.49 2.10
2.66 2.25
(€Y
0 MOF
©)
)
®)
®)
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32,293 (98,491) (66,198)
35,106 (12,892) 22,214
(618) 137 (481)
(10,410) (13,728) (24,138)
56,371 (124,974) (68,603)
20,099 (44,327) (24,228)
(7,796) (1,354) (9,150)
3,488 (677) 2,811
15,791 (46,358) (30,567)
40,580 (78,616) (38,036)
2016 657,190 68,603
72 1,307,252
66,198 13.9 410,790
114 736,614
2015 2016

5,375,881 308,531 5.74 5,455,502 250,729 4.60

2,267,447 123,082 5.43 2,249,014 96,411 4.29

3,108,434 185,449 5.97 3,206,488 154,318 4.81

252,083 10,765 4.27 450,555 14,326 3.18

2,558,245 145,036 5.67 3,031,025 134,990 4.45

447,377 12,656 2.83 433,118 10,745 2.48

8,633,586 476,988 5.52 9,370,200 410,790 4.38

57,802 18.7 250,729
114
10,046 6.9 134,990
122
(12014 11 PBOC 6
@
3,561 33.1 14,326
198,472 109
1,911 15.1
10,745 35

14,259
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2 2016
22,214 170,096
953,273 35
481 39,264
38,998
24,138 37,040
88
343,637
30,567 259,086
33 1,160,353
24,228 209,149
34 1,367,814
@ 2014 11 2015

PBOC
@)
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2015 2016

1,964,384 62,730 3.19 2,119,595 54,861 2.59

3,033,507 20,848 0.69 3,562,748 22,064 0.62

4,997,891 83,578 1.67 5,682,343 76,925 1.35

4,219,163 136,561 3.24 4,319,228 115,665 2.68

3,648,591 13,238 0.36 4,231,888 16,559 0.39

7,867,754 149,799 1.90 8,551,116 132,224 1.55

12,865,645 233,377 1.81 14,233,459 209,149 1.47

9,150 34,248
314,902 8
2,811 15,689
107,441 18
PBOC
2016 8,386 10.2
90,935 17.83
2.57
2015 2016
17,714 16,715 (999) -5.6
8,892 9,050 158 1.8
28,628 39,377 10,749 37.5
20,689 20,108 (581) -2.8
8,962 9,993 1,031 11.5
2,547 2,263 (284) -11.2
2,857 3,119 262 9.2
205 194 1) -5.4
90,494 100,819 10,325 11.4
7,945 9,884 1,939 24.4
82,549 90,935 8,386 10.2
999 5.6 16,715
158 1.8 9,050
10,749 37.5 39,377
MOF
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581 2.8 20,108
1,031 11.5 9,993
284 11.2 2,263
262 9.2 3,119
2016 1,084 21,089
1,895 5,457
3,018
1,291
63 920
24 16,003
2015 2016
3,562 5,457
1,727 (1,291)
857 920
16,027 16,003
22,173 21,089
2016 28,769 197,049
1.31 34.59
1,187 1.1 111,536
4,021 8.3 44,440
596 3.0 19,037
3,227 40.4 11,211
2015 2016

110,349 111,536 1,187 1.1
48,461 44,440 (4,021) -8.3
29,075 11,449 (17,626) -60.6
19,633 19,037 (596) -3.0
7,984 11,211 3,227 40.4
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3,084 (3,474) (6,558) -212.6
5,509 (432) (5,941) -107.8
1,723 3,282 1,559 90.5
225,818 197,049 (28,769) -12.7
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2016 2,274 86,446
2,969 78,928
2016 7,519 15.0 42,564
2016 18.78
2015 2016
275,396 50.9 241,764 47.4
196,679 36.4 194,215 38.1
55,756 10.3 56,317 11.0
13,031 2.4 17,832 3.5
540,862 100.0 510,128 100.0
2016
58,921 10.9 46,873 9.2
105,085 19.4 97,206 19.1
72,080 13.3 67,944 13.3
84,219 15.6 76,065 14.9
68,802 12.7 69,579 13.6
113,351 21.0 109,500 21.5
20,242 3.7 21,693 4.2
18,162 3.4 21,268 4.2
540,862 100.0 510,128 100.0
44
2016
200,879 37.1 194,311 38.1
339,983 62.9 315,817 61.9
540,862 100.0 510,128 100.0
®)
2016 12 31 1,778,668 10.0 19,570,061
812,689 9.6
821,488 18.2 224,596
8.7
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1,439 0.1
148,758 31.5

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
8,909,918 - 9,719,639 -
403,243 - 400,275 -
8,506,675 47.8 9,319,364 47.6
4,512,047 25.4 5,333,535 27.3
2,587,057 14.5 2,811,653 14.4
1,202,175 6.8 1,203,614 6.2
471,809 2.6 323,051 1.7
511,630 2.9 578,844 2.8
17,791,393 100.0 19,570,061 100.0
2016 12 31 9,719,639 809,721

9.1

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
8,463,286 95.0 9,279,077 95.5
5,378,404 60.4 5,368,250 55.2
356,992 4.0 569,948 5.9
2,727,890 30.6 3,340,879 34.4
446,632 5.0 440,562 4.5
8,909,918 100.0 9,719,639 100.0

10,154 0.2 5,368,250
612,989 22.5 3,340,879
212,956 59.7 569,948
6,070 1.4 440,562

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
2,283,318 42.5 2,169,949 40.4
3,095,086 57.5 3,198,301 59.6
5,378,404 100.0 5,368,250 100.0

113,369 5.0

103,215 3.3
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2.1 59.6
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
1,367,358 25.4 1,225,322 22.8
592,832 11.0 660,361 12.3
o 526,408 9.8 449,687 8.4
893,535 16.6 1,006,903 18.8
504,342 9.4 404,172 7.5
205,021 3.8 236,880 4.4
210,539 3.9 181,634 3.4
249,938 4.7 230,098 4.3
453,344 8.4 552,447 10.3
130,682 2.4 179,338 3.3
IT
26,929 0.5 23,804 0.4
@ 217,476 4.1 217,604 4.1
5,378,404 100.0 5,368,250 100.0
@
@
2016 12 31 5 @ ©)
€)) ® ®)
5 72.6 0.4
€Y
@ €)
2015 12 31 2016 12 31

1,927,018 70.7 2,559,970 76.6

179,453 6.6 153,251 4.6

230,223 8.4 192,213 5.8

222,206 8.1 242,451 7.3

167,695 6.1 191,770 5.7

1,295 0.1 1,224 -

2,727,890 100.0 3,340,879 100.0

2016 12 31 632,952 32.8 2,559,970
26,202 14.6 153,251
38,010 16.5 192,213
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20,245 9.1 ) 242,451
24,075 14.4 191,770
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
215,418 2.4 279,762 2.9
2,048,393 23.0 2,170,468 22.3
1,263,044 14.2 1,466,397 15.1
1,463,574 16.4 1,500,014 15.4
1,132,516 12.7 1,309,273 13.5
364,412 4.1 394,896 4.1
1,975,929 22.2 2,158,267 22.2
446,632 5.0 440,562 4.5
8,909,918 100.0 9,719,639 100.0
2016 12 31 821,488

18.2 5,333,535
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
3,885,091 86.1 4,789,697 89.8
365,323 8.1 365,323 6.9
2016 9,308 0.2 12,954 0.2
® 252,325 5.6 165,561 3.1
4,512,047 100.0 5,333,535 100.0
@
(2) 2016
2016
2016 12 31 904,606
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
1,231,991 31.6 1,927,598 40.3
PBOC 21,404 0.6 - _
1,499,520 38.6 1,442,999 30.1
492,298 12.7 814,571 17.0
162,436 4.2 174,025 3.6
477,442 12.3 430,504 9.0
3,885,091 100.0 4,789,697 100.0
2016
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
1 - - -
3 185,155 4.8 279,454 5.8
3 12 587,915 15.1 695,366 14.5
1 5 1,889,171 48.6 2,296,876 48.0
5 1,222,849 31.5 1,518,001 31.7
3,885,091 100.0 4,789,697 100.0

2016
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
3,744,671 96.4 4,546,871 94.9
100,809 2.6 191,831 4.0
39,611 1.0 50,995 1.1
3,885,091 100.0 4,789,697 100.0
2016
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
& 439,261 9.7 417,955 7.8
1,214,542 26.9 1,408,881 26.5
2,300,824 51.0 2,882,152 54.0
557,420 12.4 624,547 11.7
4,512,047 100.0 5,333,535 100.0
@
2016 12 31 2,257,570
1,442,999
814,571
2016 12 31 10
(D)
2014 19,181 5.44 2019 4 8 -
2015 16,721 3.97 2025 2 27 -
2016 13,886 3.01 2021 1 6 -
2014 13,819 5.61 2021 4 8 -
2016 13,576 2.96 2021 2 18 -
2016 13,257 5.67 2024 4 8 -
2014 12,693 4.21 2025 4 13 -
2015 11,944 4.02 2020 1 14 -
2015 11,167 3.99 2025 2 9 -
2015 11,011 3.07 2021 2 22 -
@
2016 12 31 1,668,962 10.1 18,248,470
1,499,641 11.1
79,595 5.2
117,028 131.8
PBOC 5,473 1.4
129,273

30.0
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31

13,538,360 81.7 15,038,001 82.4

1,537,660 9.3 1,458,065 8.0

88,804 0.5 205,832 1.1

382,742 2.3 388,215 2.1

430,443 2.6 301,170 1.7

601,499 3.6 857,187 4.7

16,579,508 100.0 18,248,470 100.0

2016 12 31 1,499,641 11.1 15,038,001

1.0 58.6
3.3 55.9
2015 12 31 2016 12 31

13,449,015 99.3 14,937,670 99.3

4,821,751 35.6 5,599,743 37.2

1,599,187 11.8 1,707,628 11.4

3,222,564 23.8 3,892,115 25.8

8,065,556 59.6 8,815,148 58.6

4,166,985 30.8 4,279,398 28.5

3,898,571 28.8 4,535,750 30.1

™ 561,708 4.1 522,779 3.5
89,345 0.7 100,331 0.7

13,538,360 100.0 15,038,001 100.0

@
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2015 12 31 2016 12 31
74,161 0.5 82,577 0.5
2,974,911 22.0 3,309,192 22.0
1,846,193 13.6 2,100,051 14.0
2,418,137 17.9 2,681,161 17.8
2,277,151 16.8 2,536,899 16.9
710,741 5.2 773,462 5.1
3,147,721 23.3 3,454,328 23.0
89,345 0.7 100,331 0.7
13,538,360 100.0 15,038,001 100.0

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
7,673,376 56.7 9,007,828 59.9
3 1,681,820 12.4 1,685,789 11.2
3 12 2,553,458 18.9 2,637,833 17.6
1 5 1,629,705 12.0 1,705,965 11.3
5 1 - 586 -
13,538,360 100.0 15,038,001 100.0

2016 12 31 1,321,591 324,794
79,899 98,773 3,578
115,136 198,305 496,083
1 0.33 3.81

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
324,794 26.8 324,794 24.6
79,899 6.6 79,899 6.0
98,773 8.2 98,773 7.5
22,429 1.8 3,578 0.3
96,748 8.0 115,136 8.7
175,606 14.5 198,305 15.0
412,005 34.0 496,083 37.5
(163) 0.0 1,625 0.1
1,794 0.1 3,398 0.3
1,211,885 100.0 1,321,591 100.0

2015 12 31 2016 12 31
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450,433 30.4 588,401 36.0
382,255 25.8 312,255 19.1
233,376 15.7 229,177 14.0
158,905 10.7 181,284 11.1
258,745 17.4 323,217 19.8
1,483,714 100.0 1,634,334 100.0
©
IFRS CAS
IFRS CAS
@
®@
2016
NDRC 11
100
ABC
2016 3,798.5 63.0
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5,811

2016 12 31
777,992 16.1
2016 12 31
2016
2016
123,621
2016
115,350 10.6
2016 209
99
1
147
113,875
2016
310,829
85.4

2016
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217,058

oOoOooodn
5,599,743
5,938,198
202,802 3.5
3,060
359,756
233,526
1,203,578
1.5
32.0466
27,355
2016 12 31
5.8
8,959
ABC
4,712.9 4.8
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2016

2016
2015 54.3
@ 10
2016
873.96
12.8
2016
2016 352
SDR
ABC
3,064
2016
56.44
2016
2016 A
®)

2016

2016

2016

415,128

10 3.75

2016

1
1,199

41.27
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1.594 ©)
2016
2016
CIPS
103.87
35.08
0.5
10,727
38.4
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2016 12 31 3,340,879
612,989
2016 2,559,970
632,952
2016
2016 12 31 8,815,148 749,592
9.3
2016 880 68
4 1 IC
509 100
Apple Pay HCE
2016
68.63 2016 10.25
1,338,413 16.0
ETC
2016 5.93
57.9
2016 133,922
47.1
2015 12 31 2016 12 31
81,275.29 88,041.56 8.3
5,323.18 6,365.95 19.6
2015 2016
67,023.91 62,533.63 -6.7
11,465.80 13,322.50 16.2
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12 31
2016 2015

1 657,190 725,793
1 (259,086) (289,653)
1 398,104 436,140
2 100,819 90,494
2 (9.884) (7,945)
2 90,935 82,549
3 5,457 3,562
4 (1,291) 1,727
920 857
5 16,003 16,027
510,128 540,862
6 (197,049) (225,818)
8 (86,446) (84,172)
226,633 230,872
24 ©) (15)
226,624 230,857
9 (42,564) (50,083)
184,060 180,774
183,941 180,582
119 192
184,060 180,774
11 0.55 0.55
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2016 2015
1 10,600,475 11,707,041
1 (4,179,057) (4,672,103)
1 6,421,418 7,034,938
2 1,626,210 1,459,668
2 (159,429) (128,153)
2 1,466,782 1,331,515
3 88,021 57,455
4 (20,824) 27,857
14,840 13,823
5 258,128 258,516
8,228,365 8,724,104
6 (3.178,400) (3,642,444)
8 (1,394,374) (1,357,694)
3,655,590 3,723,965
24 (145) (242)
3,655,445 3,723,723
9 (686,557) (807,839)
2,968,888 2,915,885
2,966,968 2,912,788
1,919 3,007
2,968,888 2,915,885
11 9 9
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2016 2015
184,060 180,774
(25,552) 25,831
6,384 (6,449)
1,788 690
(17.380) 20,072
166,680 200,846
166,878 200,583
(198) 263
166,680 200,846

12 31

2016 2015
2,968,888 2,915,885
(412,154) 416,654
102,974 (104,022)
28,840 11,130
(280,339) 323,761
2,688,548 3,239,646
2,691,742 3,235,404
(3.194) 4,242

2,688,548 3,239,646
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12 31

2016 2015
12 2,811,653 2,587,057
13 622,665 697,923
59,105 40,909
14 580,949 504,252
15 123,618 79,782
16 294,337 359,479
17 31,460 16,038
18 323,051 471,809
19 9,319,364 8,506,675
20 1,408,881 1,214,542
21 2,882,152 2,300,824
22 624,547 557,420
24 213 273
25 158,669 156,178
23 1,381 1,381
26 83,187 81,548
27 244,829 215,303
19,570,061 17,791,393
28 291,052 60,599
29 1,156,044 1,221,901
30 302,021 315,759
31 17,504 24,036
32 283,666 406,407
17 20,758 12,192
33 205,832 88,804
34 15,038,001 13,538,360
35 388,215 382,742
26 58 111
36 545,319 528,597
18,248,470 16,579,508
37 324,794 324,794
38 79,899 79,899
39 98,773 98,773
40 3,578 22,429
41 115,136 96,748
42 198,305 175,606
496,083 412,005
1,625 (163)
1,318,193 1,210,091
3,398 1,794
1,321,501 1,211,885

19,570,061 17,791,393
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12 31

2016 2015
12 45,351,963 41,729,229
13 10,043,586 11,257,498
953,364 659,862
14 9,370,707 8,133,585
15 1,993,958 1,286,884
16 4,747,656 5,798,396
17 507,450 258,693
18 5,210,813 7,610,279
19 150,321,341 137,212,668
20 22,725,251 19,590,562
21 46,489,112 37,112,291
22 10,073,943 8,991,185
24 3,436 4,403
25 2,559,331 2,519,151
23 22,276 22,276
26 1,341,806 1,315,369
27 3,949,092 3,472,837
315,665,084 286,975,169
28 4,694,669 977,462
29 18,646,990 19,709,263
30 4,871,599 5,093,193
31 282,340 387,701
32 4,575,533 6,555,345
17 334,827 196,657
33 3,320,070 1,432,409
34 242,562,956 218,373,747
35 6,261,908 6,173,628
26 936 1,790
36 8,795,995 8,526,270
294,347,821 267,427,464
37 5,238,927 5,238,927
38 1,288,771 1,288,771
39 1,593,208 1,593,208
40 57,713 361,780
4 1,857,144 1,560,545
42 3,198,660 2,832,525
8,001,819 6,645,641
26,211 (2.,629)
21,262,453 19,518,768
54,810 28,937
21,317,263 19,547,705
315,665,084 286,975,169

2017 3 28
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2016 1 1
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2016 12 31

2015 1 1
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31
)
304,794 79,809 98,773 22,429 96,748 175,606 412,005 (163) 1,210,091 1,794 1,211,885
_ _ _ _ _ — 183,041 - 183,041 119 184,060
( - - - (18,85D) - - - 1,788  (17,063) (317)  (17,380)
) _ _ - (18,85D) - — 183,941 1,788 166,878 (198) 166,680
23 _ — - — — — - - - 1,843 1,843
41 _ _ _ _ 18,388 —  (18,388) - - - -
42 _ _ _ _ — 22,699  (22,699) - - - -
10 - - - - - —  (54,176) —  (54,176) - (54,176)
10 - - - - - - (4,600) - (4,600) - (4,600)
- - - - - - - - - 41) )
304,794 79,899 98,773 3,578 115,136 198,305 496,083 1,625 1,318,193 3,398 1,321,591
324,794 39,044 98,773 3,118 78,594 156,707 329,989 (853) 1,031,066 1,553 1,032,619
_ _ _ _ — — 180,582 — 180,582 192 180,774
_ - ~ 19,311 - _ - 690 20,001 71 20,072
_ _ 19,311 _ _ 180,582 690 200,583 263 200,846
38 _ 39,955 _ - - _ - _ 39,955 _ 39,955
M - - - - 18,154 _  (18,154) - - - -
42 _ _ _ _ _ 18,809  (18,899) _ - . -
10 _ - _ _ - —  (59,113) - (59,113) - (59,113)
10 _ _ _ _ _ _ (2,400) _ (2,400) _ (2.,400)
_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ @2 ©2)
324,794 79,809 98,773 22,420 96,748 175,606 412,005 (163) 1,210,091 1,794 1,211,885

144/458



EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oooooog
( )
2016 1 1
5,238,927 1,288,771 1,593,208 361,780 1,560,545 2,832,525 6,645,641  (2,629) 19,518,768 28,937 19,547,705
_ _ - - - — 2,966,968 _ 2,966,968 1,919 2,968,888
DY - - —  (304,067) - - — 28,840  (275,226) (5,113) (280,339)
(
)/ - - —  (304,067) - — 2,966,968 28,840 2,601,742 (3,194) 2,688,548
23 _ _ _ _ _ - - - — 29,728 29,728
41 - - - — 296,598 - (296,598) - - - -
42 _ - - - _ 366,135  (366,135) - - - -
10 _ _ - - - —  (873,859) —  (873,859) —  (873,859)
10 _ - - - - - (74,198) - (74,198) - (74,198)
_ _ _ - - - - - - (661) (661)
2016 12
a1 5,238,927 1,288,771 1,593,208 57,713 1,857,144 3,198,660 8,001,819 26,211 21,262,453 54,810 21,317,263
2015 1 1
5,238,927 644,297 1,593,208 50,293 1,267,721 2,527,684 5,322,723 (13,759) 16,631,095 25,050 16,656,144
_ _ _ - - — 2,912,788 — 2,912,788 3,097 2,915,885
_ - - 311,486 - - — 11,130 322,616 1,145 323,761
- - — 311,486 - — 2,012,788 11,130 3,235,404 4,242 3,239,646
38 — 644,474 - - - - - - 644,474 - 644,474
41 _ - _ - 292,824 — (292,824) - - - -
42 - - - - — 304,841  (304,841) - - - -
10 _ _ - - - — (953,493) —  (953,493) —  (953,493)
10 _ _ _ - _ — (38,712) - (38,712) - (38,712)
_ _ _ _ _ - - - - (355) (355)
2015 12
o1 5,238,927 1,288,771 1,593,208 361,780 1,560,545 2,832,525 6,645,641  (2,629) 19,518,768 28,937 19,547,705
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12 31
2016 2015
226,624 230,857
2,773 2,890
16,264 16,743
86,446 84,172
(167,287) (145,535)
(2,209) (1,765)
12,133 10,988
(7,137) (5,285)
(920) (857)
9 15
(209) (440)
(13,797) (11,615)
152,690 180,168
(89,447) 108,639
(140, 250) (60,050)
156,406 6,593
(939,134) (824,382)
230,453 (19,522)
(13,738) 90,836
1,433,784 1,395,723
(56,173) (119,076)
40,995 124,032
775,586 882,961
(59,613) (62,613)
715,973 820,348
1,261,234 870,994
154,753 135,037
2,287 1,032
(2.039,374) 1,752,782)
(288)
(22,637) (21,687)
(643,737) (767,694)
40,000
699,446 552,851
1,843
(63)
6D an
(705,293) (496,684)
(12,109) (11,306)
(58,817) (61,535)
(54,176) (59,113)
(4,600) (2,400)
(4D (22)
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(74,981) 23,246
(2.745) 75,900
821,969 738,241
8,474 7,828
43 827,698 821,969
464,635 554,629
(243,275) (245, 840)
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12 31
2016 2015
3,655,445 3,723,723
44,728 46,616
262,338 270,065
1,394,374 1,357,694
(2.698,339) (2,347,480)
(35,631) (28,469)
195,705 177,236
(115,120) (85,247)
(14,840) (13,823)
145 242
(3.370) (7,097)
(222,546) (187,350)
2,462,890 2,906,110
(1,442,780) 1,752,347
(2,262,233) (968,607)
2,522,829 106,345
(15,148,231) (13,297,282)
3,717,207 (314,890)
(221,594) 1,465,185
23,126,936 22,513,012
(906,070) (1,920,696)
661,249 2,000,636
12,510,202 14,242,161
(961,558) (1,009,948)
11,548,644 13,232,213
20,343,704 14,049,133
2,496,166 2,178,147
36,889 16,646
(32.895,103) (28,272,374)
(4,645)
(365,135) (349,811)
(10,383,478) (12,382,904)
645,200
11,282,064 8,917,487
29,728
(1,016)
(823) Q74)
(11,376,376) (8,011,513)
(195,318) (182,366)
(948,718) (992,560)
(873,859) (953,493)
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(74,198) (38,712)
(661) (355)
(1,209,444) 374,958
(44,277) 1,224,267
13,258,360 11,907,827
136,686 126,266
13,350,769 13,258,360
7,494,563 8,946,166
(3,924,026) (3,965,399)
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( ) ( PBOC )

1979 2 23 ( )
( ) 2009 1 15
PBOC 2010 7 15 2010 7 16
(China Banking Regulatory Commission CBRC )
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69 (No. 69, Jianguomen Nei
Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC)
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( 1ASB ) ( IFRSs
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1.1 2016
2016 12 31
(1) IFRS 11
(@ 1AS 16 38
(3) IFRS IFRS
(4) IFRS 10  IFRS 12 1AS
28
() 1A 1
(1) IFRS 11

IFRS 11

(2) I1AS 16 38

IAS 16

(3) IFRS IFRS 2012 2014

IFRS 2012 2014
IFRS 5

(4) IFRS 10 IFRS 12 IAS 28

IFRS 10

1FRS12 1FRS10

IFRS 12

IAS 28

2012

IFRS

IAS 19

IFRS 10
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(5) IAS 1
IAS 1
1.2 2016
@ 1AS 12 2017 1 1
@ 1AS 7 2017 1 1
(3) IFRS 12 IFRS 2014 2016 2017 1 1
(4) IFRS 28 IFRS 2014 2016 2018 1 1
(5) IFRS 15 2018 1 1
(6) IFRS 9 2018 1 1
() IFRS 4 IFRS 9 IFRS 4 2018 1 1
(8) 1AS 40 2018 1 1
(9) IFRS 2 2018 1 1
(10) IFRS 16 2019 1 1
(11) IFRS 10 2016 1 1
IAS 28
(1) IAS 12
IASB IAS 12
) IAS 7
IASB  1AS 7
1ASB
(3) IFRS 12 IFRS 2014 2016
IFRS 2014 2016 IFRS 12
IFRS 5
IFRS 12
(4) IFRS 28 IFRS 2014 2016

IFRS IFRS 2014 2016 IAS 28
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(5) IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

(6) IFRS 9

IFRS 9
IAS 39

IFRS 9

oClI

IFRS 9
IFRS 9

0oCl

IFRS 9

IFRS 9

5
2014 7
IAS 39
IFRS 9
IAS 39 3

IFRS 9
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(7) IAS 4 IFRS 9
IASS 2016 9 12  IFRS 4
2021 1 1
2
(8 IAS 40
IASB 2016 12 8  IAS 40
IAS 40
9 IFRS 2
IASB 2016 6 20
(10) IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
31
.47
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
2
(11) IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 4

IFRS 2

IAS 17
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2016 2015
261,332 321,040
135,131 145,181
14,327 10,767
410,790 476,988
99,737 83,684
46,155 41,344
39,264 39,745
21,395 20,507
17,621 25,409
12,922 14,391
6,497 21,378
2,589 1,999
220 348
657,190 725,793
(209,149) (233,377)
(27,175) (37,036)
(12,133) (10,988)
(4,247) (4,731)
(3.556) (1,890)
(2.826) (1,631)
(259,086) (289,653)
398,104 436,140
2,209 1,765

12 31

2016 2015
39,377 28,628
20,108 20,689
16,715 17,714
9,993 8,962
9,050 8,892
3,119 2,857
2,263 2,547
194 205
100,819 90,494
(5,394) (3,401)
(1,992) (1,852)
(1,469) (1,921)
(1,029) @771)
(9,884) (7,945)
90,935 82,549
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( ) 12 31
2016 2015
129 1,370
@ 931 829
4,706 1,489
(309) (126)
5,457 3,562
@
4 ( )Y/
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
C ) (1,653) 1,693
/( ) 17 an
345 51
(1,291) 1,727
5
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
10,972 7,749
2,919 3,237
406 316
285 255
) (98) 2,842
1,519 1,628
16,003 16,027
6
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
[0 111,536 110,349
® 44,440 48,461
19,037 19,633
[6) 11,449 29,075
11,211 7,984
(3,474) 3,084
(432) 5,509
3,282 1,723
197,049 225,818
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) 12 31
2016 2015

70,770 67,513

8,638 8,851

5,016 4,956

4,524 4,317

312 352

180 287

2,625 3,026

9,424 9,458

96,473 93,804

15,304 15,151

(241) 1,394

111,536 110,349

141 (2015 139 )
5%
2016 7 25 MOF SAT (
[2016]83 ) 2016 1 1 4 30
3%
2016 5 1
6
1% 7%

3% 5%
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) 2016 12 31
X
(i) - 283 50 35 368
Gi)(iii) - 484 101 58 643
Gii) - 436 97 58 591
410 - - - 410
380 - - - 380
369 - - - 369
(iv) _ _ _ _ _
) 211 - - - 211
i) _ _ _ _ _
(i) _ _ _ _ _
(i) _ _ _ _ _
(i) _ _ _ _ _
(vi) _ _ _ _ _
(vi) _ _ _ _ _
- 484 100 58 642
(vii) - - - - -
(viii) 30 - - - 30
viii) 30 - - - 30
Viii)(ix) 15 - - - 15
Viii)(ix) 28 28
280 - - - 280
280 - - - 280
- 436 97 58 591
- 436 97 58 591
x) - 291 57 39 387
(xi) - 37 6 5 48
- 879 116 129 1,124
xii) - 81 22 9 112
iii) - 291 72 38 401
xiv) 150 - - - 150
(xv) - 109 30 14 153
(xvi) - 436 97 58 591
2,183 4,683 942 617 8,425
2016 7 1
2016 3 4 2016 3 24
2016
2015 12
CBRC
2016 5 13
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2016
2016 7 5
2016 6 6
2017 1 24
X 2016 2 21
X 2016 9 14
X 2016 5 13
X 2016 3 3
X £ 2016 12 16
X
2016 12 31
) 2015 12 31 ( )
XX1
605 128 58 791
()i 544 15 > L
(i) 544 115 58 717
396 396
399 399
376 376
Gii) 292 292
(iv)
o~
o~
W) (vi)
W) (vi)
V) (vii)
M iii)
(ix) 353 70 35 458
&)
o 20 30
o 0 30
o 20 30
xii) 143 143
xii) 143 143
544 115 58 nr
544 115 58 nr
544 115 58 nr
(xiii) 272 60 30 362
(xiv) 704 58 100 862
) 605 119 58 782
xvi) 157 157
xvi) 164 164
V) (xvii)
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W (xvii)
W (xvii)
(xviii) 202 38 18 258
(xix) 25 25
xii) 138 138
(xx) 588 41 58 687
2,323 6,049 1,089 647 10,108
2015 9 7
2015 12 31
2015 3 6
2015 6 5
2015 1 15
2015 1 14
2015 2 28
2015 6 29
2015
Xi
X 2015 6 29 2015 6 29
X 2015 9 7
X 2015 6 24
X 2015 12 4
X 2015 6 5
X 2015 1 16
X 2015 4 28
X 2015 10 26
X 2015 5 5
XXi
2015 2015 12 31
2015 12 31
8 2016 8 26 10.11
2015 12 31

178/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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2 5
5 2016
2015 12 31 5
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
11,158 10,075
9,352 8,271
998 1,091
21,508 19,437
5
12 31
2016 2015
3,500,001 4,000,000 _ 4
4,000,001 4,500,000 4 1
4,500,001 5,000,000 1 _
2016 12 31 2015 12 31 5
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
5
3 ( 622 )
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
7
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
8
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
78,928 81,897
2,603 841
2,213 925
1,370 (167)
403 78
1 _
928 598

86,446 84,172
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3 2016 12 31

9

( )

( 26
2016 2015 12 31
(
(25%)

1
10

(

)

2015

2014

1 2015

2016 6 27
(
2016 12 31
2 2014
2015 6 29
) 2014 0.182
2015 12 31

1

GAAP
59,113

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
12 31
2016 2015
37,104 58,661
400 410
368 301
37,872 59,372
4,692 (9,289)
42,564 50,083
25%
( )
12 31
2016 2015
226,624 230,857
56,656 57,714
€Y (14,528) (8,962)
490 1,361
(54) (30)
42,564 50,083
12 31
2016 2015
€Y 54,176
2) 59,113
54,176 59,113
4) 4,600 2,400
GAAP ) 2015
2015 1 0.1668 54,176
2014
55,215
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4 2016

2016 1 21
2016 3 11

2016 10 28
2016 11 7

5 2015

2015 10 23
2015 11 5

1 1

2015 12 31

2016

181/458
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OooooOodd
5.5Y% 2,200
6% 2,400
6% 2,400
12 31
2016 2015
183,941 180,582
(4,600) (2,400)
179,341 178,182
324,794 324,794
0.55 0.55
4,600
2016
1
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
12
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
111,607 116,390
[€H) 2,437,536 2,216,082
) 111,753 58,656
®3) 150,757 195,929
2,811,653 2,587,057
1 PBOC
2016 3 25 2016 [2016]77
PBOC 2016 12 31 14.5% 2015 12
31 15% 16.5% 2015 12 31 17%
16.5 2015 12 31 0
5% 2015 12 31 5%
PBOC
2 PBOC
3 PBOC
0% 2015 8 31 PBOC PBOC
20
12
13
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
583,545 656,601
6,471 2,748
32,976 38,581
622,992 697,930
— (327) )
C ) 622,665 697,923
2016 12 31
6,526 2015 12 31 3,240
14
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
222,526 129,493
322,216 324,620
39,239 51,743
583,981 505,856
— (3,032) (1,604)
C ) 580,949 504,252
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12 31
2016 2015

3,290 4,464
44,554 23,754
46,944 26,793
13,307 10,039
108,095 65,050
15,523 14,732
123,618 79,782

185
@ 107,910 65,050
15,523 14,732
123,618 79,782

12 31

2016 2015

17,610 17,733
55,230 78,129
63,045 23,383
35,358 22,599
171,243 141,844
40,953 164,572
58,485 5,529
@) 23,656 47,534
294,337 359,479
2,685 1,871
0 163,101 111,267
128,551 246,341

294,337 359,479
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2016

2015 12 31

184/458

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2016 12 31
/
1,382,401 25,139 (18,410)
119,352 68 (1.353)
25,207 (19,763)
258,523 1,061 (604)
94,506 5,192 (391)
31,460 (20,758)
2015 12 31
/
1,307,952 13,737 (11,102)
22,704 134 (92)
13,871 (11,194)
158,118 920 (961)
32,049 1,247 37)
16,038 (12,192)
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CBRC
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2013 1 1
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
12 31
2016 2015
26,601 19,364
12 31
2016 2015
303,120 179,068
19,931 292,741
323,051 471,809

47
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2016 12 31

2015 12 31

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooooo
12 31
2016 2015
5,803,277 5,818,306
569,948 356,995
6,373,225 6,175,301
3,346,414 2,734,617
9,719,639 8,909,918
(133,605) (133,900)
(266,670) (269,343)
(400,275) (403,243)
9,319,364 8,506,675
@
(©) %)
9,488,805 37,986 192,848 230,834 9,719,639 2.37
(2317,671) (28,999)  (133,605)  (162,604)  (400,275)
9,251,134 8,987 59,243 68,230 9,319,364
8,697,051 31,889 180,978 212,867 8,909,918 2.39
(247,294) (22,049) (133,900) (155,949) (403,243)
8,449,757 9,840 47,078 56,918 8,506,675
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2016 1 1

2016 12 31

2015 1 1

2015 12 31
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2016 12 31
133,900 269,343 403,243
96,110 64,216 160,326
(21,941) (59,457) (81,398)
74,169 4,759 78,928
(73,949) (8.797) (82,746)
925 1,421 2,346
(1,730) (479) (2,209)
290 423 713
133,605 266,670 400,275

2015 12 31
73,094 284,977 358,071
103,532 49,622 153,154
(8,447) (62,810) (71,257)
95,085 (13,188) 81,897
(33,921) (7,408) (41,329)
805 425 1,230
(1,302) (463) (1,765)
4,626 4,626
139 374 513
133,900 269,343 403,243
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20

21

OoOoOoOoOodno
) 12 31
2016 2015
464,613 333,537
383,861 465,630
353,335 176,548
188,869 226,882
1,390,678 1,202,597
(€D 7,015 6,586
() 5,370 5,359
5,818
1,408,881 1,214,542
68,431 41,923
) 1,260,325 1,148,771
61,922 11,903
2,354 396
9,169 7,687
?) 6,680 3,862
1,408,881 1,214,542
1
2
3 2016 12 31 321
2015 12 31 314
) 12 31
2016 2015
1,320,638 852,367
1,129,986 1,061,581
263,950 202,729
171,604 185,967
2,886,178 2,302,644
— (4,026) (1,820)
2,882,152 2,300,824
3,518 6,221
[€)) 2,868,782 2,278,021
9,852 16,582
2,882,152 2,300,824
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OooooOodd
) 12 31
2016 2015
MOF ) 272,023 272,023
©) 93,300 93,300
120,618 42,841
29,997 39,786
64,130 57,339
20,983 32,514
2,990 2,929
®3) 25,160 18,733
629,201 559,465
(3.516) (1,470)
(1,138) (575)
(4,654) (2,045)
624,547 557,420
261,027 107,228
368,174 452,237
629,201 559,465
1 MOF [2008] 138 MOF 2008 1 1
15 1 3.3%
2 1998 MOF 93,300
2028 2008 12 1 2.25%
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23
¢
2016 12 31
/ ) ®
1988 11 1 588,790,000 100.00 100.00
ABC 2000 11 11 4,113,392,449 100.00 100.00
2010 9 29 3,000,000,000 100.00 100.00
(UK) 2011 11 29 100,000,000 100.00 100.00
2008 3 18 200,000,001 51.67 51.67
2008 8 12 19,600,000 51.02 51.02
(i) 2008 8 12 31,000,000 50.00 66.67
2010 5 25 29,400,000 51.02 51.02
2010 3 30 20,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 4 20 210,000,000 51.00 51.00
2012 5 24 100,000,000 51.00 51.00
( )2005 12 19 2,949,916,475 51.00 51.00
( ) 2014 11 26 20,000,000 100.00 100.00
( ) 2014 12 23 1,400,000,000 100.00 100.00
2016 12 31
( 3 2
( 2012 12 31 51%
2012 12 31 1,381
2016 12 31 3,761 917
2,844 51%
1,843
2016 12 31
2016 12 31
c

46
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24

25

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016

2016
2016

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015

2015
2015

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

12
11

31

31

31

31

31

31

31

31

BSCA

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
213 273
CFA ( XAF )
( BSCA ) 2015 5 28
50 BSCA
155,284 62,547 4,586 20,833 243,250
1,691 6,973 3,843 8,310 20,817
6,824 286 1 (7.111)

(941) (5.603) (121) [6)) (6,666)
162,858 64,203 8,309 22,031 257,401
(46,618)  (37,278) (2.858) - (86,754)

(7,934) (7,953) @) - (16,264)
520 3,973 107 - 4,600
(54,032)  (41,258) (3.128) — (98,418)
(299) ® @ ® (318)
@ - - - @

4 1 _ — 5

(296) ® @ ® (314)
108,530 22,937 5,179 22,023 158,669
108,367 25,260 1,726 20,825 156,178
142,795 56,048 4,814 23,885 227,542

2,686 7,963 8 8,008 18,665
10,210 364 - (10,574)

(407) (1,828) (236) (486) (2,957)
155,284 62,547 4,586 20,833 243,250
(38,733)  (30,788) (2,753) - (72,274)

(8,129) (8,285) (329) - (16,743)
244 1,795 224 - 2,263
(46,618)  (37,278) (2,858) _ (86,754)

(299) ® @ ® (318)

(299) ® (©)) ® (318)
108,367 25,260 1,726 20,825 156,178
103,763 25,251 2,059 23,877 154,950
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2016 12 31
26
( )

1
( )
2016 1 1

C )
2016 12 31
2015 1 1
C )

2015 12 31

2 /(
( )

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2016 2015
83,187 81,548
(58) (111)
83,129 81,437
)
77,185 6,441 1,931 4,421  (8,607) 66 81,437
(1,254) 377 (600) (1,023)  (2.,190) @ (4,692
6,384 6,384
75,931 6,818 1,331 3,398  (4,413) 64 83,129
67,514 6,248 2,235 3,476 (900) 24 78,597
9,671 193 (304) 945  (1,258) 42 9,289
(6,449) (6,449)
77,185 6,441 1,931 4,421  (8,607) 66 81,437
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
/ / / /
) (G ) C )
303,723 75,931 308,741 77,185
27,270 6,818 25,765 6,441
24,340 6,085 15,703 3,926
13,590 3,398 17,682 4,421
5,325 1,331 7,724 1,931
359 88 392 97
374,607 93,651 376,007 94,001
(41,992) (10,498) (50, 130) (12,533)
(98) 4) (125) (31)
(42,090) (10,522) (50,255) (12,564)
332,517 83,129 325,752 81,437
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27
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
110,370 104,775
() 22,418 23,036
@ 78,998 44,576
16,670 27,001
3,213 2,997
3,103 3,587
2,848 2,740
1,945 1,699
1,430
3,834 4,892
244,829 215,303
1 2016 12 31
2
28
2016 12 31 PBOC 289,000
2015 12 31 58,600
29
( ) 12 31
2016 2015

178,354 116,519
947,210 1,091,258
5,220 9,514
25,260 4,610
1,156,044 1,221,901
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30

31

32

) 12 31
2016 2015
123,108 145,255
178,913 170,504
302,021 315,759
) 12 31
2016 2015
283,666 406,407

2015 12 31

194/458
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OoOoOoOoOodno
33
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
205,022 88,333
810 471
205,832 88,804
47
34
12 31
( ) 2016 2015
3,902,828 3,229,703
4,536,249 3,898,806
1,778,060 1,662,658
4,286,428 4,174,684
() 338,065 319,757
196,371 252,752
15,038,001 13,538,360
1
12 31
( ) 2016 2015
100,896 66,093
86,167 113,421
75,375 77,903
30,118 16,739
45,509 45,601
338,065 319,757
35
12 31
( ) 2016 2015
) 202,107 198,476
® 147,245 165,508
?) 28,711 11,586
(O] 10,152 7,172
388,215 382,742
2016 2015 12 31
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2017
2018
2020

2024
2026
2027
2024

10
10
10

12
8

2015 10
2015 10
2015 10

2009 5

2011 6

2012 12

4.99%
2014 8

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OooooOodd
12 31
2016 2015
4.15% ) 600 600
2.125% (i) 2,775 2,597
2.75% Gii) 3,468 3,247
(iv) 40,383 37,164
4.0% ) 25,000 25,000
5.3% (vi) 50,000 50,000
4.99% (vii) 50,000 50,000
5.8% Tier2 (viii) 30,000 30,000
202,226 198,608
(119) (132)
202,107 198,476
4.15% 2
2.125% 2 3
2.75% 2
) 2016 12 31
)
2017 10 2021 6 1.875-2.875 26,769
2017 5 2019 8 3.35-3.80 3,350
2017 3 2019 9 3 LIBOR 0.75 -1.33 9,781
2017 3 0.48 365
2017 2 - 118
40,383
) 2015 12 31
)
2016 1 2020 5 0.5-2.875 27,055
2016 5 2019 8 3.23-3.80 6,091
2016 9 2018 5 3 LIBOR 0.43 -1.33 2,500
2016 3 2017 3 0.31-0.48 497
2016 3 2016 6 1.0-1.15 413
2016 3 0.21 108
2016 2 - 500
37,164
4. 0% 1 15 2019 5 20
2019 5 20 7.0%
5.3% 1 15 2021 6 7
2021 6 7 5. 3%
4.99% 1 15 2022 12 20
2022 12 20
Tier2 5.8% 1 10
2019 8 17
2019 8 18 5. 8% Tier2 Tier2
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OoOoOoOoOodno
Tier2 CBRC Tier?
2 2016 12 31
1 7 0% 5._8% 2015 12 31
7 7 0% 4 5%
3 2016 12 31
1 2 0.03%
6.4% 2015 12 31 7 1 0% 1.05%
4 2016 12 31
1 2 2.68% 4 _39%
2015 12 31 3 2 0% 3.32%
36
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
229,115 225,383
87,993 69,419
75,728 69,589
(€] 39,902 39,890
MOF [O) 26,293 7,330
16,356 38,097
13,590 17,682
5,222 7,117
1,782 1,576
49,338 52,514

545,319 528,597
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12 31
2016 2015
() 33,956 31,721
() 621 445
() 5,325 7,724
39,902 39,890
2016
11 12 31
@ 23,773 70,770 (69,019) 25,524
) 178 8,638 (8,661) 155
) 124 5,016 (4,964) 176
107 4,524 (4,475) 156
9 312 (305) 16
8 180 (184) 4
3,981 2,625 (2,188) 4,418
3,665 9,424 (9,406) 3,683
31,721 96,473 (94,238) 33,956
2015
11 12 31
@) 24,228 67,513 (67,968) 23,773
@) 183 8,851 (8,856) 178
@) 178 4,956 (5,010) 124
154 4,317 (4,364) 107
12 352 (355) 9
12 287 (291) 8
3,183 3,026 (2,228) 3,981
3,180 9,458 (8,973) 3,665
30,952 93,804 (93,035) 31,721
2016
11 12 31
39 11,332 (11,272) 456
44 545 (554) 35
5 3,427 (3.302) 130
445 15,304 (15,128) 621
2015
11 12 31
541 11,150 (11,295) 396
66 721 (743) 44
14 3,280 (3,289) 5

621 15,151 (15,327) 445
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2 MOF

MOF
MOF

EDINETOOOO
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2016
12 31
7,724 (241) (2,158) 5,325
2015
12 31
8,938 1,394 (2,608) 7,724
12 31
2016 2015
3.05% 2.57%
8.00% 8.00%
8.00% 8.00%
60 60
55 55
2000 2003
[2008] 138
MOF MOF
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37
( ) 2016 2015 12 31
( )
A1 1 294,055 294,055
Hoo1 1 30,739 30,739
324,794 324,794
A H
2016 12 31 A H
38
( ) ( ) ( )
5
6%
100 400 40,000
5
5
5.5%
100 400 40,000
5
800 1 100
2014 11 400 2016 12 31 (
) 39,944 5 6%
1 5 5
2.29%
2015 3 400 2016 12 31 (
) 39,955 5 5.5%
1 5 5 2.24%
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39

40

2016

2016

2015

2015

A )

Tierl
2010
)

11

12 31
)

11

12 31

201/458
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Tier2

( [2012]56 2(3))
2.43

CBRC

2016

29,907 (7,478) 22,429

(24,570) 6,140 (18,430)
(562) 141 (420)

4,775 (1,197) 3,578

2015

4,176  (1,058) 3,118

26,218  (6,542) 19,676
(487) 122 (365)

29,907 (7,478) 22,429




41
10% 18,294
25%
42
MOF
1.5%
2016 12 31
2015 18,899
22,464
2017 3 28
43
( )
44

GAAP

2017 3 28
2015

2015

18,078

18,721

31,947

202/458

[2012] 20

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
10%
50%
GAAP
2012 7 1
22,699
2015 12 31
2016 6 27
3
12 31
2016 2015
111,607 116,390
114,830 90,035
168,369 128,173
172,012 234,139
260,880 253,232
827,698 821,969
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ooooood
(
)
2016 12 31
249,147 94,849 60,600 65,338 56,112 95,037 16,965 18,242 — 657,190
@1,227)  (57,135)  (31,466)  (46,229)  (37,594)  (42,768) (12,996)  (9,671) - (259,086)
(
)/ (205,448) 42,389 25,520 45,441 41,005 37,475 14,020 (402) - -
22,472 80,103 54,654 64,550 59,523 90,644 17,989 8,169 _ 398,104
23,010 17,811 14,224 12,427 11,071 17,287 3,949 1,040 - 100,819
(1,340) (1,934)  (1.660) .227)  (1,315)  (1,898) (425) (85) - (9,884)
21,670 15,877 12,564 11,200 9,756 15,389 3,524 955 _ 90,935
/C ) 6,144 ) (26) (55) ©) 13 - (529) - 5,457
C )
(1,645) 59 32) w - ® - 330 - @,291)
112 - 1 - - 4 - 803 - 920
(
) (1,880) 1,178 783 371 379 3,452 180 11,540 _ 16,003
46,873 97,206 67,944 76,065 69,579 109,500 21,693 21,268 _ 510,128
(7.642)  (32,125) (23,561)  (28,029) (32,176) (42,143) (14,128) (17,245) - (197,049)
(7,746)  (13,975)  (8,226) (9,471)  (10,244)  (31,276)  (3,698)  (1,810) - (86,446)
31,485 51,106 36,157 38,565 27,159 36,081 3,867 2,213 _ 226,633
©) - - - - - - - - ©)
31,476 51,106 36,157 38,565 27,159 36,081 3,867 2,213 - 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
1,662 3,026 2,209 2,963 3,329 4,345 1,317 186 - 19,037
2,348 3,387 1,585 2,931 2,727 4,144 1,069 4,730 - 22,921
2016 12 31

4,565,308 4,149,290 2,532,893 3,378,776 2,833,496 3,922,132 913,274 807,402 (3,615,697) 19,486,874

213 — — — — — — — — 213

83,187

19,570,061

@ 12,806 33,865 17,993 30,287 28,931 42,839 12,191 11,261 — 190,173

(3,291,426) (4,162,053) (2,528,928) (3,386,705) (2,833,390) (3,943,549) (915,912) (785,790) 3,615,697 (18,232,056)
(16,414)
(18,248,470)

42,861 464,193 208,914 317,307 187,281 222,055 66,799 124,924 — 1,634,334

204/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

Oooooooo
(
)
2015 12 31
233,765 116,679 73,291 83,188 67,071 113,792 20,485 17,522 _ 725,793
(19,204)  (64,711)  (34,978)  (53,948)  (43,216)  (49,637) (15,026)  (8,933) - (289,653)
(
)/ (178,365) 36,616 21,233 43,284 35,342 30,231 11,223 436 - -
36,196 88,584 59,546 72,524 59,197 94,386 16,682 9,025 _ 436,140
17,535 16,759 12,920 11,909 10,234 16,492 3,615 1,030 - 90,494
@57) (1,545) (1,443) (1,033) (1,293)  (1,459) (322) (93) _ (7,945)
16,778 15,214 11,477 10,876 8,941 15,033 3,293 937 _ 82,549
2,196 58 121 80 88 134 71 814 - 3,562
/
« ) 1,483 102 41 146 - 0 - 43) - 1,727
96 _ _ _ _ _ _ 761 _ 857
2,172 1,127 895 593 576 3,800 196 6,668 - 16,027
58,921 105,085 72,080 84,219 68,802 113,351 20,242 18,162 _ 540,862
9,677)  (37,801)  (26,731)  (34,694)  (34,793)  (55,435) (15,113) (11,574) - (225,818)
(2,075)  (27,785)  (12,493)  (12,113) (5,983)  (24,435) 1,875 (1,163) - (84,172)
47,169 39,499 32,856 37,412 28,026 33,481 7,004 5,425 _ 230,872
(15) - - - - - - - - (15)
47,154 39,499 32,856 37,412 28,026 33,481 7,004 5,425 _ 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
1,847 3,186 2,235 3,035 3,301 4,397 1,370 172 _ 19,633
2,338 1,880 2,029 3,889 3,445 5,196 1,316 1,340 - 21,433
2015 12 31
4,432,038 3,696,602 2,282,608 3,255,511 2,542,695 3,586,925 838,650 782,258 (3,707,532) 17,709,845
273 _ - _ _ _ _ _ _ 273
81,548
17,791,393
@ 12,860 33,596 18,713 30,663 29,523 43,005 12,423 9,409 _ 190,192
(3,299,014) (3,699,920) (2,275,314) (3,251,913) (2,530,704) (3,593,727) (835,551) (762,690) 3,707,532 (16,541,301)
(38,207)
(16,579,508)
29,972 440,928 199,864 306,640 155,778 226,098 65,815 58,619 — 1,483,714
1
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( )
2016 12 31
281,890 135,229 235,294 4,777 657,190
(89,004)  (148,393)  (20,464) (1,225)  (259,086)
)/ (3,993) 167,567  (163,574)
188,893 154,403 51,256 3,552 398,104
53,339 46,209 1,271 100,819
(3,193) (6,642) 0 @n (9,884)
50,146 39,567 [0) 1,224 90,935
284 5,116 57 5,457
/C ) 288 (1,639) (296) 356 (1,291)
289 631 920
/C ) 2,153 1,884 (46) 12,012 16,003
241,764 194,215 56,317 17,832 510,128
(70,025)  (89.683)  (20,952)  (16,389)  (197,049)
(55,612)  (24,051) (6,187) (596)  (86,446)
116,127 80,481 29,178 847 226,633
() ()
116,127 80,481 29,178 838 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
3,822 11,298 3,797 120 19,037
3,740 11,054 3,715 4,412 22,921
2016 12 31
6,332,417 3,730,943 9,223,479 200,035 19,486,874
213 213
83,187
19,570,061

(6,778,331) (9,760,885) (1,542,284)

(150,556) (18,232,056)

1,234,807

399,527

(16,414)
(18,248,470)

1,634,334
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(
2015 12 31
349,680 145,375 226,730 4,008 725,793
(98,642)  (168,061)  (21,541) (1,409)  (289,653)
)/ (19,707) 176,040  (156,333)
231,331 153,354 48,856 2,599 436,140
43,764 45,529 1,201 90,494
(2.352) (5.528) (65) (7,945)
41,412 40,001 1,136 82,549
/( 3,602 (40) 3,562
66 1,318 299 44 1,727
103 754 857
2,587 2,006 2,896 8,538 16,027
275,396 196,679 55,756 13,031 540,862
(92,867)  (96,439)  (25,010)  (11,502)  (225,818)
(79,500) (1,924) (1,708) (1,040)  (84,172)
103,029 98,316 29,038 489 230,872
(15) (15)
103,029 98,316 29,038 474 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
3,785 11,460 4,281 107 19,633
3,950 11,958 4,467 1,058 21,433
2015 12 31
6,086,284 3,181,175 8,300,506 141,880 17,709,845

273 273

(6,155,984) (9,232,539) (1,024,999)

81,548
17,791,393

(127,779) (16,541,301)

1,148,227

335,487

(38,207)
(16,579,508)

1,483,714
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(
2016 12 31
143,479 513,711 657,190
(88,268)  (170,818) (259,086)
/( ) 102,598  (102,598)
157,809 240,295 398,104
35,605 65,214 100,819
(3.718) (6,166) (9,884)
31,887 59,048 90,935
17 5,440 5,457
/C ) 19 (1,310) (1,291)
920 920
4,579 11,424 16,003
194,311 315,817 510,128
(84,205)  (112,844) (197,049)
(44,186)  (42,260) (86,446)
65,920 160,713 226,633
® ®
65,920 160,704 226,624
(42,564)
184,060
8,855 10,182 19,037
5,494 17,427 22,921
2016 12 31

7,040,416 12,554,090 (107,632) 19,486,874
213 213

83,187
19,570,061

(6,598,859) (11,740,829) 107,632 (18,232,056)

(16,414)
(18,248,470)

380,806 1,253,528 1,634,334
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(
2015 12 31
166,863 558,930 725,793
(100,263)  (189,390) (289,653)
/( ) 101,332 (101,332)
167,932 268,208 436,140
31,289 59,205 90,494
(3,098) (4,847) (7,945)
28,191 54,358 82,549
210 3,352 3,562
63 1,664 1,727
857 857
4,483 11,544 16,027
200,879 339,983 540,862
(91,828)  (133,990) (225,818)
(33,649)  (50,523) (84,172)
75,402 155,470 230,872
(15) (15)
75,402 155,455 230,857
(50,083)
180,774
9,036 10,597 19,633
8,896 12,537 21,433
2015 12 31
6,379,322 11,432,038  (101,515) 17,709,845
273 273
81,548
17,791,393

(5,992,911) (10,649,905)

101,515 (16,541,301)

301,417

1,182,297

(38,207)
(16,579,508)

1,483,714

210/458



45

1 MOF

2016 12 31 MOF

MOF
( )
MOF ( 22)

MOF
MOF ( 36)
( )
MOF
MOF
2

2016 12 31

(VMOF

)

39.21%
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OooooOodd
2015 12 31 39.21%
MOF
12 31
2016 2015
640,131 656,427
272,023 272,023
7,648 7,734
3,802 25
13,147 3,665
26,293 7,330
10,265 10,309
23 12
102 103
12 31
2016 2015
63,974 41,987
(189) (126)
15,072 7,948
12 31
2016 2015
b %
1.94 — 9.00 1.94 - 9.00
0.05 — 1.76 0.01 — 3.06
47
40.03% 2015 12 31 40.03%
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OooooOodd
12 31
2016 2015
12,103 12,137
145 145
7,000 20,500
27 8,001
49 537
12 31
2016 2015
463 391
(518) (956)
12 31
2016 2015
% %
3.16 — 4.20 3.16 - 4.20
2.90 — 5.00 4.35 - 5.00
1.38 - 2.80 0.72 - 2.80
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12 31

2016 2015

817,129 817,653

120,985 76,061
56,783 62,752
2,671 1,111
74,740 33,134
930
12,876 20,358
63,007 63,087
85,744 73,087
2,238 1,444
12,438 83,000
2,000 2,000

22,642 15,700




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

OoOoOoOoOodno
3
4
5
6
2016 2015 12 31
) 12 31
2015
2016 ( )
8.43 10.11
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 2015
2015 8
2016 8 26 10.11
2015
7
) 12 31
2016 2015
16,367 8,050

619 15
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( ) 12 31
2016 2015
394 490
12 31
2016 2015
% %
0.72 - 6.20 5.75 - 6.20
46.
(€))
2
/
2016 12 31 306,177 2015 12 31
1322,678
(€))
WMPs
WMPs
WMPs WMPs WMPs
2016 12 31 WMPs 1,379,009 2015 12 31 1,110,912
WMPs 1,299,375 2015
1,102,201 2016 12 31 WMPs
8,313 2015 6,721 261 2015 427
WMPs
WMPs 2016
2016 12 31 8,776 3.06 2015
18,742 4.40 125,627 2015 12 31 : 78,000
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
WMPs
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
WMPs

WMPs 2016
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2015 WMPs WMPs
2016 12 31
34,463
2015 12 31 30,537
47.
2016 12 31
6,030 2015 12 31 16,696
36
2016 9 28 2016 11 4
2
2016 12 31
2
2016
12 31
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
4,951 4,836
2016 12 31 (2015 12 31
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) 12 31
2016 2015
38,433 14,351
549,968 436,082
588,401 450,433
312,255 382,255
323,217 258,745
229,177 233,376
181,284 158,905
1,634,334 1,483,714
CBRC (2013 1 1 )
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
) 12 31
2016 2015

831,636 774,925
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( )
1
1 2
2 3
3 5
5
2016
: 5,115
2016 12 31
(2015 12 31
2016 12 31
(2015 12 31
( )
5
( )
33
)
31 114,458

: 33,051

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

oOoOooodn
12 31
2016 2015
3,948 4,107
3,051 3,169
2,262 2,473
2,451 2,969
1,255 1,627
12,967 14,345
5,190 (2015
338
38,245
12 31
2016 2015
4,256 3,794
7,643 8,010
17,748 14,534
8,598 6,713
38,245 33,051
12 31
2016 2015
208,529 89,651
814 473
209,343 90,124
2016 12 31
205,832 (2015 12 31 88,804
12
48
2016 12 31 365,153 2015 12

218/458



18
31
MOF
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 53,697
MOF
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
48
8.6

2016 12 31

(2015 12 31 10,125

2015 12 31 : 10,125
2016
712 (2015 12 31

12 31
844
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2016 2015 12

56,555

18,364
2015 12 31
8,210
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2016 12 31
72,969 2015 :25,600
10,154 2015 - 8.6 8
2016 12
31 47 14,087
(2015 12 31 5,986 )
2016 12 31
15,415 2015 12 31

49
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49.1

2016

CBRC
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12 31
2016 2015

2,700,046 2,470,667
622,665 697,923
580,949 504,252
123,282 79,762
286,564 355,530
31,460 16,038
323,051 471,809
9,319,364 8,506,675
1,390,678 1,202,597
2,882,152 2,300,824
624,547 557,420
205,718 176,352
19,090,476 17,339,849
1,634,334 1,483,714
20,724,810 18,823,563




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

12 31
2016 2015
(@) (D)
279,658 4.4 215,317 3.5
1,310,376 20.6 1,355,458 22.0
752,897 11.8 724,691 11.7
1,001,682 15.7 1,062,323 17.2
857,319 13.5 774,559 12.5
1,463,806 22.9 1,346,434 21.8
272,460 4.3 256,614 4.2
435,027 6.8 439,905 7.1
6,373,225 100.0 6,175,301 100.0
104 101

860,092 25.6 692,935 25.4
713,500 21.3 538,353 19.7
498,332 14.9 401,251 14.7
451,954 13.5 357,957 13.1
694,461 20.8 629,495 23.0
122,436 3.7 107,798 3.9
5,535 0.2 6,727 0.2
3,346,414 100.0 2,734,617 100.0

9,719,639 8,909,918
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12 31
2016 2015
Q) )
1,325,386 20.9 1,481,883 24.0
1,052,336 16.5 924,356 15.0
497,976 7.8 650,670 10.5
673,621 10.6 604,313 9.8
510,470 8.0 548,388 8.9
560,270 8.8 461,772 7.5
735,915 11.5 457,823 7.4
243,396 3.8 260,558 4.2
187,931 2.9 216,636 3.5
241,365 3.8 205,797 3.3
344,559 5.4 363,105 5.9
6,373,225 100.0 6,175,301 100.0
2,560,002 76.5 1,927,049 70.5
196,727 5.9 230,424 8.4
153,945 4.6 185,531 6.8
242,451 7.2 222,206 8.1
193,289 5.8 169,407 6.2
3,346,414 100.0 2,734,617 100.0

9,719,639 8,909,918
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2016 12 31
1 5 5
992,899 466,138 886,821 2,345,858
618,532 330,718 344,430 1,293,680
947,139 519,723 3,127,606 4,594,468
786,985 69,113 629,535 1,485,633

3,345,555 1,385,692 4,988,392 9,719,639

2015 12 31
1 5 5
916,995 340,169 839,763 2,096,927
692,293 263,559 393,338 1,349,190
1,127,445 649,224 2,489,132 4,265,801
623,149 71,132 503,719 1,198,000

3,359,882 1,324,084 4,225,952 8,909,918

2016 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
4,411 8,619 4,460 406 17,896
19,386 23,586 26,612 2,937 72,521
53,772 52,054 60,454 6,405 172,685
1,976 2,209 6,901 447 11,533

79,545 86,468 98,427 10,195 274,635

2015 12 31
91 361
90 360 3 3
7,311 8,522 2,190 271 18,294
21,478 26,103 18,134 4,143 69,858
67,076 63,271 37,878 6,716 174,941
2,600 7,202 5,049 1,568 16,419

98,465 105,098 63,251 12,698 279,512
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oOoOooodn

12 31
2016 2015
() 9,433,058 8,623,179
) 55,747 73,872
() 230,834 212,867
9,719,639 8,909,918
(400,275) (403, 243)
9,319,364 8,506,675
2016 12 31
5,832,088 321,400 6,153,488
3,276,326 3,244 3,279,570
9,108,414 324,644 9,433,058
2015 12 31
5,648,447 303,383 5,951,830
2,669,491 1,858 2,671,349
8,317,938 305,241 8,623,179
2016 12 31
31 61
30 60 90
21,940 4,902 18 26,860 23,588
17,124 6,590 5,173 28,887 20,430
39,064 11,492 5,191 55,747 44,018
2015 12 31
31 61
30 60 90
22,914 11,599 7,981 42,494 38,567
18,080 7,716 5,582 31,378 20,059
40,994 19,315 13,563 73,872 58,626
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2016 12 31
192,848 (133,605) 59,243
37,986 (28,999) 8,987
230,834 (162,604) 68,230
2015 12 31
180,978 (133,900) 47,078
31,889 (22,049) 9,840
212,867 (155, 949) 56,918
12 31
2016 2015
192,848 180,978
1.98% 2.03%
39,021 29,319
12 31
2016 2015
Q) (D)
7 7
35,471 15.4 41,684 19.6
30,530 13.2 29,600 13.9
45,728 19.8 40,005 18.8
30,194 13.1 28,084 13.2
76,046 32.9 63,921 30.0
8,772 3.8 6,036 2.8
4,086 1.8 3,530 1.7
230,834 100.0 212,867 100.0

228/458



6
2016 12 31
2015 12 31 27,919
2016
1,356
7
27
( )
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OoOoOoOoOodno
52,491
3,702
12 31

2016 2015
) 3,509,837 2,858,931
@ 5,542 3,178
3,515,379 2,862,109
(3,516) (1,470)
(5,164) (2,395)
(8,680) (3,865)

3,506,699 2,858,244




EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

ooooOoog
1

( ) 2016 12 31
- 20,900 464,613 1,320,638 120,618 1,926,769
- 99,784 383,824 1,129,986 29,997 1,643,501
- 109,989 353,335 263,950 64,130 791,404
- 48,665 188,869 171,604 20,436 429,574
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,990 2,990
15,883 20,165 36,048
295,221 1,390,641 2,886,178 623,659 5,195,699

( ) 2015 12 31
- 22,197 333,537 852,367 42,841 1,250,942
- 101,883 465,589 1,061,581 39,786 1,668,839
- 50,176 176,073 202,729 57,339 486,317
- 32,638 226,882 185,967 31,971 477,458
- - - 93,300 93,300
MOF - - - 272,023 272,023
- - - 2,929 2,929
43,585 - - 16,098 59,683
250,479 1,202,081 2,302,644 556,287 4,311,491
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331

2015 12 31
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O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
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2016 12 31
547 547
4,995 4,995
5,542 5,542
(3,516) (3,516)
2,026 2,026

2015 12 31
543 543
2,635 2,635
3,178 3,178
(1,470) (1,470)
1,708 1,708

2016 12 31
37 2015 12 31 516
2016 12

312
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3
( ) 2016 12 31

() AAA AA A A
- 1,322,981 594,641 5,249 1,033 705 1,924,609
- 1,469,672 162,840 10,692 209 1,643,413
- 526,761 144,056 36,508 51,620 30,377 789,322
- () 47,367 337,875 4,262 23,743 16,116 429,363
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,990 2,990
37,578 37,578
3,772,672 1,239,412 56,711 76,605 47,198 5,192,598

( ) 2015 12 31

() ARA AA A A
- 940,930 301,448 7,607 119 362 1,250,466
- 1,512,703 148,418 4,227 3,121 1,668,469
- 314,174 102,209 24,517 30,081 14,803 485,784
- () 58,407 359,945 11,483 35,404 12,203 477,442
93,300 93,300
MOF 272,023 272,023
2,929 2,929
60,907 60,907

3,255,373 912,020 47,834 68,725 27,368 4,311,320

MOF

23,420 2015 12 31 51,553

232/458
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49.2
( 2016 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
5 5
223,360 5,110 4,836 16,262 2,562,085 2,811,653
63,917 127,622 168,455 261,620 1,051 622,665
150,166 86,942 293,126 41,715 580,949
336 9,115 18,899 57,602 35,087 2,579 123,618
13,386 47,815 88,784 99,849 36,730 7,773 294,337
2,121 2,485 25,284 1,165 405 31,460
3,872 274,766 26,276 18,137 323,051
46,908 496,239 630,872 2,541,515 1,895,689 3,708,141 9,319,364
34,068 54,008 235,151 719,158 348,203 18,203 1,408,881
51,331 90,654 315,762 1,362,537 1,061,868 2,882,152
103 2,205 12,876 52,418 109,354 447,591 624,547
1,607 73,522 32,579 50,698 46,485 776 51 205,718
52,387 361,238 1,207,708 1,194,906 3,952,146 4,266,381 5,605,568 2,588,061 19,228,395
(30) (16,342) (69,000) (205,059) (621) (291,052)
(523,652) (296,656) (146,008) (94,165)  (95,563) (1,156,044)
(132,600) (94,050) (68,138)  (4.820) (2,413) (302,021)
(16,587) (393) (524) (17,504)
(77,589)  (63,996) (125,422) (16,621) (38) (283,666)
(2.576)  (3,582) (13,143)  (1,111) (346) (20,758)
(193,068)  (12,004) (760) (205,832)
(9.,007,828)  (499,909) (1,185,880) (2,637,833) (1,705,965) (586) (15,038,001)
(34,405) (56,128) (89,372) (52,699) (155,611) (388,215)
(168,287)  (16,390) (73.738) (74.678) (93,281) (36,768) (463,142)
(9.716,384) (1,269,928) (1,704,910) (3,308,570) (1,970,681) (195,762) (18,166,235)
52,387 (9,355,146) (62,220) (510,004) 643,576 2,295,700 5,409,806 2,588,061 1,062,160
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2015 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

175,046 31,379 3,147 2,377,485 2,587,057

62,223 67,391 106,999 460,050 1,260 697,923

228,400 60,359 206,024 9,469 504,252

20 9,188 16,872 33,146 16,580 3,976 79,782

28,991 49,415 181,918 62,543 32,663 3,949 359,479

1,512 2,047 11,164 1,224 01 16,038

275,867 127,105 68,837 471,809

46,176 436,319 758,211 2,520,971 1,764,276 2,980,722 8,506,675
30,086 40,705 214,175 608,815 308,816 11,945 1,214,542

28,330 37,773 297,731 1,109,860 827,130 2,300,824

1 72 1,537 4,568 28,219 100,398 422,625 557,420
1,930 41,439 26,254 53,739 52,574 367 49 176,352
48,107 278,800 1,165,254 1,257,793 4,077,956 3,674,792 4,576,072 2,393,379 17,472,153
(30)  (1,257) (14,510)  (44,199) (603) (60,599)
(654,627)  (97,631)  (71,036) (196,999) (201,608) (1,221,901)
(148,032)  (81,136) (82,884)  (1,981)  (1,726) (315,759)
(11,541)  (4,165)  (5,628)  (2,702) (24,036)

(99,066)  (94,230) (186,697)  (26,378) (36) (406,407)

(1,055)  (1,869)  (7,915)  (1,169) (184) (12,192)

(83,138) (255)  (5,411) (88,804)

(7.673,376)  (549,963) (1,131,857) (2,553,458) (1,629, 705) @ (13,538,360)
(38,732)  (53,909)  (98,423)  (36,746) (154,932) (382,742)

(133,606)  (15,678)  (66,889)  (74,176)  (95,149) (34,182) (419,680)
(8,473,180) (1,038,717) (1,521,319) (3,252,864) (1,993,339) (191,061) (16,470, 480)

48,107 (8,194,380) 126,537  (263,526) 825,092 1,681,453 4,385,011 2,393,379 1,001,673
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2016 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5
223,360 5,111 6,056 16,262 2,562,085 2,812,874
63,917 128,856 171,825 267,814 1,082 633,494
159,871 88,487 300,526 42,951 591,835
336 9,275 19,285 61,304 36,647 2,624 129,471
13,846 49,621 94,604 114,089 42,651 7,773 322,584
3,872 275,769 26,782 18,654 325,077
170,526 556,130 724,261 2,879,480 2,852,032 5,326,820 12,500,258
35,142 55,927 247,596 747,779 376,454 18,203 1,481,101
53,256 94,931 333,034 1,430,249 1,198,113 3,109,583
103 2,283 13,552 54,372 114,864 456,142 641,316
73,449 1,333 18,492 1,922 145 7 95,348
174,398 361,165 1,240,872 1,260,219 4,275,577 5,330,838 7,402,811 2,588,061 22,651,941
(30) (16.839) (70,067) (209,950) 622) (297,508)
(523,653) (297,533) (153,366) (102,476) (111,199) (1,188,227)
(132,947)  (94,693) (69,026)  (5,491)  (2,548) (304,705)
(16,587) (394) (525) (17,506)
(78,493)  (65,059) (132,069) (18,375) (39) (294,035)
(193,213)  (12,047) (791) (206,051)
(9,013,383)  (513,834) (1,224,360) (2,737,611) (1,925,423) (586) (15,415,197)
(34,492)  (56,479) (90,211)  (55,385) (155,720) (392,287)
(162,912) (649) (31,945)  (1,415) (338)  (36,768) (234,027)
(9,716,565) (1,268,394) (1,708,541) (3,343,549) (2,116,833) (195,661) (18,349,543)

174,398 (9,355,400) (27,522) (439,322) 932,028 3,223,005 7,207,150 2,588,061 4,302,398
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2015 12 31
3
1 1 12 1
3 5 5

175,046 31,379 1,119 3,147 2,377,485 2,588,176
62,223 68,581 109,926 475,100 1,260 717,090
228,910 61,759 211,832 9,784 512,285
20 9,551 17,411 34,679 18,282 4,259 84,202
29,554 50,581 191,501 74,777 37,021 3,949 387,383
277,186 128,996 69,936 476,118
166,750 502,630 862,665 2,884,375 2,670,681 4,395,705 11,482,806
33,422 46,435 249,273 698,678 351,672 11,945 1,391,425
35,186 53,011 369,374 1,359,459 1,020,861 2,837,891
44 72 10,760 6,084 37,651 166,206 475,672 696,489
41,390 1,749 26,911 1,479 41 7 71,577

166,794 278,751 1,228,908 1,364,898 4,528,347 4,999,168 6,285,197 2,393,379 21,245,442

(30)  (1,257) (14,760)  (44,945) (604) (61,596)
(654,628)  (98,736)  (78,983) (205,693) (226,850) (1,264,890)
(148,500)  (81,584)  (83.887)  (2.261)  (1,898) (318,130)

(11,541)  (4,183)  (5.654)  (2.722) (24,100)
(99,503)  (95,377) (193,554)  (27,487) 1) (415,962)

(83,173) (256)  (5.436) (88,865)

(7,677,719)  (563,857) (1,167,656) (2,655,301) (1,875,275) @) (13,939,809)
(38,829)  (54,443) (108,277)  (70,347) (201,846) (473,742)

(129,421) (812) (28,189)  (1,313) (388)  (34,174) (194,297)
(8,473,339) (1,038,850) (1,526,902) (3,301,128) (2,203,212)  (237,960) (16,781,391)

166,794 (8,194,588) 190,058  (162,004) 1,227,219 2,795,956 6,047,237 2,393,379 4,464,051
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2016 12 31
3
12 1
1 5 5
4 29 11 400 34 478
2015 12 31
3
12 1
1 3 5 5
(18) 5 49 (28) 27) (219)
2016 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
305,839 230,340 1,032,215 36,311 485 1,605,190
(306,299) (231,425) (1,018,999)  (36,568) (469) (1,593,760)
(460)  (1,085) 13,216 (257) 16 11,430
2015 12 31
3
1 12 1
3 5 5
229,711 213,739 867,746 50,092 815 1,362,103
(229,673) (213,507) (863,714)  (49,965) (815) (1,357,674)
38 232 4,032 127 4,429
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2016 12 31
1
1 5 5
84,529 142,003 361,869 588,401
312,255 312,255
323,217 323,217
107,922 94,520 26,735 229,177
161,127 20,157 181,284

989,050 256,680 388,604 1,634,334

2015 12 31
1
1 5 5
56,515 134,021 259,897 450,433
382,255 382,255
258,745 258,745
102,829 97,027 33,520 233,376
151,193 7,712 158,905

951,537 238,760 293,417 1,483,714
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99% 1 250
VaR
VaR
)
2016
53 63 71 39
(€)) 20 86 213 14
9 13 28 3
VaR 44 96 213 44
)
2015
50 76 103 50
() 82 74 151 32
18 29 53 9
VaR 82 119 183 68
VaR
VaR

PBOC
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2016 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,756,422 46,480 2,030 6,721 2,811,653
569,193 28,974 3,630 20,868 622,665
476,480 100,020 1 4,448 580,949
123,426 192 123,618
283,113 2,140 8,187 897 294,337

5,491 25,501 112 356 31,460
323,051 323,051

8,849,459 375,380 64,594 29,931 9,319,364

1,193,761 170,794 11,844 32,482 1,408,881

2,860,670 19,843 1,639 2,882,152
624,411 135 1 624,547
159,614 43,831 1,013 1,260 205,718

18,225,001 813,155 91,546 98,603 19,228,395
(289,089) (1,342) (621)  (291,052)
(1,110,244) (34,464) (10,976) (360) (1.156,044)
(60,936)  (194,150) (33,178) (13,757)  (302,021)
(17.504) (17.504)
(282,781) (885) (283,666)
(18,639) @172 (281) (1,666) (20,758)
(190,118) (12,647) (3.067)  (205,832)

(14,610,341)  (361,250) (23,866) (42,544) (15,038,001)
(202,803)  (156,819) (13,801) (14,792)  (388,215)

(449,526) (10,316) (1,576) (1,724)  (463,142)
(17,231,981)  (770,703) (85,020) (78,531) (18,166,235)
993,110 42,452 6,526 20,072 1,062,160
1,442 614 10,566 (18,232) (5.610)

1,385,194 223,195 5,322 20,623 1,634,334
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2015 12 31
( ( (
) ) )

2,533,407 47,748 1,500 4,402 2,587,057
642,108 36,844 8,803 10,168 697,923
412,437 87,171 838 3,806 504,252

79,782 79,782
331,966 10,216 14,134 3,163 359,479

2,952 12,399 79 608 16,038
471,809 471,809

8,098,472 336,998 47,918 23,287 8,506,675

1,124,517 69,605 1,667 18,753 1,214,542

2,274,171 24,410 2,243 2,300,824
557,418 1 1 557,420
146,462 27,797 1,250 843 176,352

16,675,501 653,188 76,190 67,274 17,472,153
(58,739) (1,257) (603) (60,599)
(1,145,912) (69,892) (5,667) (430) (1,221,901)
(66,808)  (188,588) (45,674) (14,689)  (315,759)
(24,036) (24,036)
(403,328) (3,044) (35)  (406,407)
(10,074) (897) 13) (1,208) (12,192)
(83,471) (5,333) (88,804)
(13,253,507)  (220,929) (31,161) (32,763) (13,538,360)
(230,650)  (127,703) (18,287) (6,102)  (382,742)
(384,409) (32,190) (1,680) (1,401)  (419,680)
(15,660,934)  (648,576)  (103,739) (57,231) (16,470,480)
1,014,567 4,612 (27,549) 10,043 1,001,673
22,179 (5,342) 31,748 (37,060) 11,525
1,307,939 158,487 4,312 12,976 1,483,714
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(1.892) ©) 1,753 22)
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2016 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5

2,538,115 4,836 16,262 252,440 2,811,653
189,386 168,262 261,871 1,051 2,095 622,665
161,388 93,665 290,302 35,594 580,949
9,323 19,087 57,624 34,741 2,557 336 123,618
13,386 41,993 43,614 98,920 88,651 7,773 294,337
31,460 31,460
274,766 26,276 18,137 3,872 323,051
3,744,515 1,438,931 3,706,198 217,857 211,863 9,319,364
63,969 107,182 248,715 630,290 340,522 18,203 1,408,881
56,045 112,776 319,438 1,338,194 1,055,699 2,882,152
2,902 14,960 51,865 107,229 447,591 624,547
205,718 205,718
7,053,795 2,027,918 5,014,026 2,463,876 2,146,883 521,897 19,228,395
(16,342) (69,000)  (205,059) (621) (30)  (291,052)
(819,981)  (146,008) (94,165) (95,563) (B27)  (1,156,044)
(132,599) (97,112) (68,183) @,127) (302,021)
(393) (524) (16,587) (17,504)
(77,589) (63,996)  (125,422) (16,621) (39) (283,666)
(20,758) (20,758)
(193,068) (12,004) (760) (205,832)
(9,350,819) (1,185,810) (2,637,484) (1,705,236) (6)  (158,646) (15,038,001)
(40,107) (61,302) (85,162) (46,033)  (155,611) (388,215)

(463,142)  (463,142)

(10,630,898) (1.635,756) (3,216,235) (1,868,201)  (155,655)  (659,490) (18,166,235)

(3,577,103) 392,162 1,797,791 595,675 1,991,228 (137,593) 1,062,160
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2015 12 31
1 3 1
1 3 12 5 5
2,294,237 3,147 289,673 2,587,057
128,136 107,123 460,250 1,260 1,154 697,923
229,809 61,016 205,958 7,469 504,252
9,797 17,012 32,645 16,332 3,976 20 79,782
33,264 57,213 174,531 57,860 32,662 3,949 359,479
16,038 16,038
275,867 127,105 68,837 471,809
3,130,605 1,497,927 3,530,381 145,347 202,415 8,506,675
57,958 77,438 220,340 544,478 302,383 11,945 1,214,542
31,061 60,847 312,703 1,075,252 820,961 2,300,824
3,154 8,264 37,690 87,908 420,404 557,420
176,352 176,352
6,193,888 2,013,945 5,046,482 1,935,906 1,782,801 499,131 17,472,153
(1,257) (14,510) (44,199) (603) (30) (60,599)
(752,048) (71,036)  (196,999)  (201,598) (220)  (1,221,901)
(149,848) (83,250) (82,130) (531) (315,759)
(4,165) (5,628) (2,702) (11,541) (24,036)
(99,066) (94,230)  (186,697) (26,378) (36) (406,407)
(12,192) (12,192)
(83,138) (255) (5,411) (88,804)
(8,031,571) (1,132,862) (2,553,742) (1,630,591) (1)  (189,593) (13,538,360)
(40,930) (57,921) (95,626) (33,331)  (154,934) (382,742)

(419,680)  (419,680)

(9,162,023) (1,459,692) (3,167,506) (1,893,032)  (154,971)  (633,256) (16,470,480)

(2,968,135) 554,253 1,878,976 42,874 1,627,830 (134,125) 1,001,673
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2012 CBRC ( )
2
Tierl Tierl
8%
Tierl 2.5%
Tierl
2
2014 4 CBRC
CBRC
2
« )
2016 12 31 2015 12 31
CBRC
2016 12 31

«C ) 2014 4  CBRC
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(
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
Tier2
(@
Tierl
Tierl
2
(€]
“
(@
(6
51

Tierl

« )
Tierl
(
Tierl
Tierl
Tierl
)
Tier2 Tier2
(
2016 2015 12 31

EDINETOOOO
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2016 12 31 2015 12 31

(Y) 10.38% 10.24%
() 11.06% 10.96%
(€)) 13.04% 13.40%
) 1,238,683 1,130,285
(€) (7,653) (5,595)
1,231,030 1,124,690

(O)) 79,904 79,902
1,310,934 1,204,592

©) 235,566 267,028
1,546,500 1,471,620

(6) 11,856,530 10,986,302
Tierl

)
Tierl )
( )
( Tierl
( )
Tier2 )
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51.2
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2016 12 31
1 2 3
2,882,152 2,892,525 1,528 2,890,997
259,224 257,948 117,334 140,614
3,141,376 3,150,473 1,528 3,008,331 140,614
202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692
202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692
2015 12 31
1 2 3
2,300,824 2,387,518 2,058 2,385,423 37
192,097 196,282 133,768 62,514
2,492,921 2,583,800 2,058 2,519,191 62,551
198,476 199,289 9,816 189,473
198,476 199,289 9,816 189,473
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51.4
( ) 2016 12 31
1 2 3
108,095 108,095
15,523 15,523
123,618 123,618
6,256 163,137 1,850 171,243
40,953 40,953
58,485 58,485
1,456 1,710 20,490 23,656
7,712 164,847 121,778 294,337
25,153 54 25,207
1,042 19 1,061
5,192 5,192
31,387 73 31,460
46,517 1,343,906 255 1,390,678
3,482 1,567 5,049
7,015 7,015
5,818 5,818
57,014 1,343,906 7,640 1,408,560
64,726 1,663,758 129,491 1,857,975
(17,504) (17,504)

(283,666) (283,666)

(19,650) (113)  (19,763)
(585) (19) (604)
(391) (391)

(20,626) (132)  (20,758)

(38,130) (283,798) (321,928)
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2015 12 31
1 2 3

65,050 65,050
14,732 14,732
79,782 79,782
141,195 649 141,844
164,572 164,572
5,529 5,529
1,019 700 45,815 47,534
1,019 141,805 216,565 359,479
13,833 38 13,871
900 20 920
1,247 1,247
15,980 58 16,038
15,138 1,187,375 84 1,202,597
1,498 3,547 5,045
6,586 6,586
23,222 1,187,375 3,631 1,214,228
24,241 1,425,032 220,254 1,669,527
(24,036) (24,036)

(406,407)  (406,407)

(11,129) (65)  (11,194)
(935) (26) (961)
<)) €10
(12,101) (91) (12,192)

(36,137) (406,498) (442,635)
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2016 1 1

2016 12 31

2015 1 1

2015 12 31

/(

)/

/(

/(
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2016
216,565 58 3,631 (406,407) oD
487,191 5,995
(1,758,926)
(588,006) () (1,999) 1,891,502 14
6,028 26 (9,835) (55)
13
121,778 73 7,640 (283,666) (132)
(657) 21 175 @n
2015
256,785 223 1,440 (347,282) (296)
384,359 2,599
(3,007,928)
(438,356) (131) (408) 2,963,544 144
13,777 (34) 3 (14,741) 61
©)
216,565 58 3,631 (406,407) (91)
776 @) 9 190
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3
52.
52.1
1 2017 1 13 2 5.5%
2,200 2017 3 13
2 2017 3 28 2016 12 31
18,294 ( 41)
31,947 ( 42)
2016 12 31 2016 12 31 1 0.17
55,215 ( 10)
2016 12 31 2

53.
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54 ( )
( )
12 31

2016 2015
2,809,879 2,586,843
616,450 690,230
59,105 40,909
590,223 511,969
93,880 79,777
286,123 355,550
31,430 15,803
322,948 470,182
9,282,320 8,473,314
1,375,156 1,195,554
2,869,711 2,293,949
604,991 541,252
11,660 10,660
213 273

30,000

152,457 153,184
82,670 81,213
221,425 185,575
19,440, 641 17,686,237
290,992 60,489
1,161,931 1,226,793
269,591 290,389
17,504 24,036
283,666 406,414
20,734 11,972
202,938 88,804
15,035,744 13,535,613
378,094 379,728
463,621 453,468
18,124,815 16,477,706
37 324,794 324,794
38 79,899 79,899
39 98,574 98,574
3,768 22,258
41 114,890 96,567
42 197,695 175,021
494,573 411,401
1,633 17
1,315,826 1,208,531
19,440,641 17,686,237

2017 3 28
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2016 1 1

)/

2016 12 31

2015 1 1

2015 12 31

)/
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ooooooo
C )
324,794 79,899 98,574 22,258 96,567 175,021 411,401 17 1,208,531
- - — — — - 182,945 - 182,945
- - - (18,490) - - - 1,616 (16,874)
- - — (18,490) - - 182,945 1,616 166,071
41 — — - - 18,323 - (18,323) - -
42 - - - - - 22,674 (22,674) - -
10 - — — — - - (54,176) - (54,176)
10 - — - - - - (4,600) - (4,600)
324,794 79,899 98,574 3,768 114,890 197,695 494,573 1,633 1,315,826
324,794 39,944 98,574 3,043 78,445 156,145 329,133 (629) 1,029,449
—_ — — — - — 180,779 - 180,779
— — — 19,215 - — — 646 19,861
— — — 19,215 - - 180,779 646 200,640
38 - 39,955 - - — — - - 39,955
41 — — — - 18,122 - (18,122) - -
42 — — - - - 18,876 (18,876) - -
10 — — - - - — (59,113) — (59,113)
324,794 79,899 98,574 22,258 96,567 175,021 411,401 17 1,208,531
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Consolidated Income Statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Interast income 1 657,190 725,793
Interast expense 1 {259,086) (289.653)
Met interest income 1 398,104 436,140
Fee and commission income Z 100,819 40,494
Fee and commission expense 2 (9.884) {7,945)
Met fee and commission income 2 90,935 82,549
Met trading gain z 5457 3.562
Met {lossigain on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss 4 (1,291} 1,727
Met gain on investment securities 920 857
Other operating income 5 16,003 16,027
Operating income 510,128 540,862
Operating expenses (] {197,049) {225 818}
Impairment losses on assets g (86,446} 184,172}
Operating profit 226,633 230,872
Share of result of associate 24 {9} {15)
Profit before tax 226,624 230,857
Income tax expenss ] (42,564) {50,083)
Profit for the year 184,060 180,774
Attributable to:
Equity halders of the Bank 183,941 180,582
Mon=contralling interasts 119 192
184,060 180,774

Earnings per share attributable 1o the
ordinary equity holders of the Bank
{expressed in RVIB yuan per share)
= Basic and diluted 11 .55 0.55

The accompanying notes torm an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famaounts m milkons of Senminbi, unlpss othenwnse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
124,060 180,774

Praofit for the year

Other comprehensive (lossiinoome:
Items that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit or loss:

Fair value changes on avallable-for-sale financial assets (25,552) 25,831
Income tax inmpact for fair value changes on
available-for-sale financial assets 6,384 (6,443}
Foreign currency translation differences 1,788 690
Other comprehensive {lossiincome, net of tax (17,380) 20,072
Total comprehensive income for the year 166,680 200,846

Total comprehensive income attributable to;
Equity holders of the Bank 166,878 200,583
Non-controlling interests (198) 263

166,680 200,846

The accompanying notes ferm an integral part of these consclidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As a1 31 December 2016
tamounts im milhigns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 12 2,811,653 2,587,057
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 13 622,665 697,923
Precicus metals 58,105 40,909
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 14 580,949 504,252
Financial assets held for trading 15 123,618 79,782
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 16 294,337 359,479
Derivative financial assets 17 31,460 16,038
Financial assets held under resale agreements 18 323,051 471,805
Loans and advances to customers 19 9,319,364 8,506,675
Available-for-sale finandal assets 20 1,408,881 1,214,542
Held-to-matunty imestments 21 2,882,152 2,300,824
Debt instruments classified as receivables 22 624,547 557,420
Investments in associate 24 213 273
Property and equiprment 25 158,669 156,178
Goadwill 22 1,381 1,381
Deferred tax assets 26 83,187 81,548
Other assets 27 244,829 215,303
Total assets 19,570,061 17,791,393
Liabilities
Barrawings from central banks 28 291,052 80,599
Deposits from banks and other financial institutions 29 1,156,044 1,221,901
Placements from banks and other financial institutions 30 302,021 315,759
Financial iabilities held for trading 31 17,504 24,036
Financial labllities designated at falr value through
profit or loss 2 283,666 406,407
Derivative financial liabilities 17 20,758 12,192
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 33 205,832 88 804
Due to customess 34 15,038,001 13,528,360
Debt securities kssued a5 388,215 382 742
Deterred tax liabilities 28 58 m
Oither liakilities EL] 545,319 528,597
Total liabilities 18,248,470 16,579,508

198 @rasLns
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

A% a1 31 December 2016
{amgunts in milliens of Renminbl, unless ofherwise stated)

As at 31 December

2016
Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preference shares 38 79,899 79.899
Capital reserve 38 98,773 98,773
Investment revaluation reserve 40 3,578 22,429
Surplus reserve 41 115,136 96,748
General reserve 42 198,205 175,606
Retained earnings 496,083 412,005
Foregn currency translation reserve 1,625 (163)
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank 1,318,193 1,210,091
Mon-contralling interests 3,398 1,794
Total equity 1,321,591 1,211,885
Total equity and liabilities 19,570,061 17,791,393

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,

Approved and authorized forizsue by the Board of Directars on 28 March 2017,

Hit

Executive Directar
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)
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The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

Year ended 31 Decembear

2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Prafit before tax 226,624 230,857
Adjustments for:
Amartization of intangible assets and other assets 2,773 2,890
Depreciation of property and equipment 16,264 16,743
Impairment losses on assets £6,4456 84,172
Interest income arising from imiestment securities (167,287} (145,535)
Interest income arising fram impaired loans and
advances to customers (2,209} (1.765)
Interest expense on debt securities issued 12,133 10,988
Revaluation gain on financial instruments at
tair value through profit or loss (7,137 (5,285)
Met gain on investment securities (920) (857)
Share of result of associate 9 15
Met gain on disposal of property, equipment and other assets (209} {4400
Net foreign exchange gain {13,797} {11,615}
152,690 180,163

et change in operating assets and operating liabilities:
MNet {increaselfdecrease in balances with central banks,

deposits with banks and other financial institutions (89,447) 108,639
Met Increase in placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions (140, 250) (&0,050)
het decrease in financial assets held under resale agreements 156,406 6,593
Met increase.in loans and advances to customers {939,134) {824,382)
Net increased{decrease) in borrowings from central banks 230,453 \19.523)
Met (decreaselfincrease in placements from banks and
othes financial institutions (13,738) 90,83
Met increase in due to customers and deposits from banks and
other financial institutions 1,433,784 1,395,723
Increase in other operating assets {56,173} {(119,076)
Increase in ather operating liabilities 40,995 124,032
Cash from operations 775,586 8382 961
Income tax paid {59,613} 162,613
MET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 715,973 B20.348
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from disposaliredemption of

investment securities 1,261,234 870,994
Cash received from interest income arising from

investrent securities 154,753 135,037
Cash received from disposal of property,

equipment and other assets 2,287 1,032
Cash paid for purchase of investment securities {2,039,374) (1,752,782}
Increase in investment in associate - (238)
Cash paid for purchase of property,

equipment and other assets (22,637) {21,687}

WET CASH LISED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (643,737} (767,694)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Contribution fram preference shareholders - 40,000
Cash received from debt securities Bsued 699,446 552,851
Capital contribution from non-contredling interests 1,843 -
Cash payments for transaction cost of
preference shares ssued = (63)
Cash payments for transaction cost of
debt securities issued (51} {17)
Repayments of debt securities fssued (705,293) (496,684
Cash payments for interest on debt securities issued (12,108} {11,306
Dividsnds paid to: (58,817} {61,535
Ordinary equity holders (54,176} 159,113)
Freference shareholders (4,600} (2,400
Mon-controlling interests {41} {22}
MET CASH (USED INVFROM FINANCING ACTIMITIES (74,981} 23,246

MET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (2,745) 75,900
CA5SH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A5 AT 1 JANUARY 821,969 738,241
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHAMGES ON CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS BA474 7.828
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMEER 43 827,698 821,969

MWET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES INCLUDE:
Interest received 464,635 554,629
Interest paid (243,275) (245,840

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

I GENERAL INFORMATION

Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the "Bank”} i the successor enftity to the Agricultural Bank of
China {the "Predecessor Entity”) which was a whally state-owned commercial bank approved for
sefup by the People’s Bank of China (the "PBOC") and founded on 23 February 1979 in the People's
Republic of China {the "PRC"). On 15 January 2009, the Bank was established atter the completion
of the financial restructuring of the Predecessor Entity. The Bank's establishment was authorized by
the PBOC. The Bank was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Stock Exchange of Hong
¥ong Limited on 15 July 2010 and 16 July 2010, respectively.

The Bank operates under financial services certificate Mo, BOOOZH111000001 issued by the China
Banking Regulatory Commission (the “CBRC) and business license No. 911100001000054748
tssued by Befjing Administration of Industry and Commerce. The registered office of the Bank is
Incated at Mo, 69 Jisnguomen Nel Avenue, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC.

The principal activities of the Bank and Its subsidiaries icollectively, the “Group®) inclide Renminbi
{"RMB*) and foreign currency deposits, loans, clearing and settlement services, assets custodian
services, fund management, financial leasing services, insurance services and other services as
approved by relevant requlators, and the provision of related services by its overseas establishments
a5 approved by the respactive local regulators.

The head office and darestic branches of the Bank and its subsidiaries operating in the Mainland
China are referred to &s the "Domestic Operations”. Branches and subsidiaries registered and
operating outside of the Mainland China are referred to as the “Overseas Operations” .

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1 Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The consclidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRSs™), as issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board ("1ASBT). In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of
Heng Kong Limited and by the Hong Keng Companies Qrdinance (Cap. 622) tor this financial
wear and the comparative period.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments which are measured at fair value, as explained in
the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
consideration given in exchange for assets and that is received {or in some drcumstances the
amount expected 1o be paid) with respect to liabikities,

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cerfain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgment ar complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the:
consolidated financial statements are disclosed i Mote |1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2016 relevant to and
adopted by the Group

The following amendments have been adopted by the Group for the first time during
the financial year ended 31 December 2016,

{1}  Amendments to [FRS 11 Acquisition of Interests in loint Operations
2} Amendments to lAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
a5 38 Depreciation and Amortization
131 Amendments to IFR3s Annual Improvements o IFRSs 2012 - 2014 oycle
4} Amendments to IFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
IFRS 12 and |45 28 Consolidation Exception
537 Amendments to 451 Disclosure Initiative

(1} Amendments to IFRS 11: Acquisition of Interests in Joint Operations

The amendments to IFRS 11 - loint Amrangements provide specific guidance
an accounting for the acquisition of an interest in 4 joint operation that is 2
business. The amendments require an mvestor to apply the prindphes of business
combination accounting when it acquires an interest in a joint operation that
constitutes a business.

{2} Amendments to |AS 16 and [AS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortization

The amendments to IAS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment, clarify that
depreciation of an item of property, plant and equipment based on revenue
generated by using the asset & not appropriate. The amendments to JAS 38 -
Intangible Assets, establish & rebuttable presumption that amortization of an
intangible asset based on revenue generated by using the asset 5 inappropriate.
The presuntption may only be rebutted in certain limited circumstances.

{3} Amendments to IFRSs: Annual Improvements ta IFRSs 2012 — 2014 cycle

The Annual Improvemeants to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle include a number of
amendments to various IFRSs, including the amendments IFRS 5 - Men-current
Bssets Held for Sale and Discontinueed Operations regarding methods of disposal,
the amendments to IFRS 7 - Financial instruments: Disclosures regarding servicing
contracts, the amendments to 1AS 19 - Employes Benefits régarding discount
rates, the amendments to |A5 34 - Interimv Financial Reporting regarding
dizclesure of information.

204 @rE2abE

267/458



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.1 Amendments to the accounting standards effective in 2016 relevant to and
adopted by the Group (Continued)

{4}  Amendments to IFRS 10, IFR5 12 and IAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying
the Consolidation Exception

The amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that the exception from preparing
consolidated financial statements i available to intermediate parent entities
which are subsidianes of investment entities. The exception is available when the
investment entity parent measures its subsidiaries at fair value. The intermediate
parent would also need to meet the other criteria bsted in IFRS 10 for the
exceplion to apply. The amendments also clarify that an investment entity should
consolidate a subsidiary which 5 not an investment entity and which provides
services in support of the investment entity’s investment activities, such that it
acts as an extension of the investment entity, However, the amendments also
confirmy that if the subsidiary is itself an investment entity. the investment entity
parent should measure its investment in the subsidiary at fair value through profit
or loss. This approach is required regardiess of whether the subsidiary provides
investment-related services to the parent or to third parties.

The amendments o IFRS 12 clarify that an investntent entity that prepares
financial statements in which all of its subsidiaries are measured at fair value
through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 10 shall present the disclosures
relating to invesiment entitles required by IFRS 12,

The amendments to 1A% 28 allow an entity which is itself not an investment
entity, but has an interest in an associate or a joint venture which is an
investment entity, @ policy cholce 1o retain the falr value measurement applied
by the associate or joint venture, or to unwind the fair value measurement and
perform 2 consofidation at the level of the associate or joint venture for their
subsidiaries.

{5} Amendments to IAS 1! Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarity guidance in 1AS 1 en materiality and aggregation, the
presentation of subtotak, the structure of financial statements and the disclosure
of accounting policies. Although the amendments do not require specific
chianges, they clarify a number of presentation isswes and highlight that preparers
are permitted to tailor the format and presentation ot the financial statements to
their circumstances and the needs of users.

The adoption of these amendments does not have a significant impact on the
operating results, comprehensive income, or tinancial position of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016

The Group has not adopted the following new and amended standards that have been
issued but are not yet effective,

Effective for
annual periods

beginning on

or after
{1y Amendments 1o bAS 12 Imcome Taxes 1 January 2017
{2} Amendments to (A5 T Statement of Cath Flows 1 lanuary 2017
(3} Amendments 10 IFR% 12 A58 Annual Improvements 1 lanuary 2017
2014 - 2016 cyce
(4} Amendments 10 1AS 28 ASE Ansual |mprovements 1 January 2018
2014'= 2016 cycle
(5) IFR5 15 Revenue from Cantracts 1 January 2018
with Customerns
6} [FRS 9 Financial [nstruments 1 January 2018
(7} Amendments 10 IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 8 Financial 1 lanuary 2018
[AEtUmeEnts With
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(3} Amencments 10 A5 40 Transfer of nvestment Property 1 lanuary 2018
{9} Amendments ta IFRS 2 Share = based Payment 1 lanuary 2018
(10} [FRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
(11} Amendments to Sabe or Contribution of Aseers The amendments werns
IFRS 10 and LAS 28 bBetwesn An Investar ang ariginally intanded 1o
fts-Associate or Joint Verture be effective for annual

periods beginning an o
after 1 January 2016, The
effective date has now
peen deferred/iremoved.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Continued)

{1} Amendments to [AS 12: Income Taxes

The 1458 has Bsued amendments to 1AS 12 - Income taxes. These amendments
ofi the recognition of deferred tax azsets for unreslized: losses clanfy how to
account for deferred tax assets related to debt imstruments measured at fair
value. The Group anticipates that the adoptian of the amendments will not have
a significant impact on the Group’s consclidated financial statements.

{2} Amendments to IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows

The 1ASE has issued an amendment to A5 7 introducing. an additional disclosure
that will enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes im labilities
arising from financing activities. The amendment i part of the 1A58'% Disclosure
Initiative, which continues 1o explore how financial statement disclosure can be
improved. The Group anficipates that the adoption of the amendments will not
have 2 significant impact on the Group’s consolidated finandial statements.

(3}  Amendments to IFRS 1.2: 1ASE Annual improvements 2014 = 2016 cycle

The 1458 Annual Improvements 2014 - 201& Cycle include the amendments to
IFRS 12 -Disclosure of Interest In Other Entities. These amendments darify the
scope of FRS 12 by specifying that the disclosure requirements, except for those
summarized financial information for subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
apply to an enfitys interests which are classified as hedd for sale or discontinued
operations in accordance with IFR5 5. The Group anticipates that the adoption of
the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Groups consolidated
financial statements.

{4} Amendments to IAS 28: [ASE Annual Improvements 2004 = 2076 cycle

The 1458 Apnual Improvements 2014 — 2016 Cycle include the amendments
o |AS 28 - Investments in Associates and Joint Yentures. These amendments
clarify that the election to measure investees at fair value through profit or loss is
availzble for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-
by-investment basis, upon indtial recognition. The Group anticipates that the
adoption of the amendments will not have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial statements,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Conbnued)

(5} IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining when to
fecoqnize revenue and how much revenue to recognize through a S-step
approach. The core principle is that a company should recognize revenue to
depict the tramsfer of promised goods or services to the custamer m an anount
that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be enfitled in
exchange for those goods or services, It moves away from a revenue recognition
model based on an “earnings processes’ to an ‘asset-Nability' approach based
on transfer of comtrol, IFRS 15 provides specific ‘quidance on capitalization
of contract cost and license arrangements: It also includes a cohesive set of
disclosure requirements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty
of revenue and cash flows arising from the entitys contracts with customers,
The Group anticipates that the adoption of this new standard will not have a
significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements,

(&) IFRS 8: Financial Instruments

The complete version of IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments was issued in July 2014
It replaces the guidance in A5 39 — Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement that relates to the cassification and measurement of financial
instruments.

IFRS @ retains but simplities the mixed measurement model and establishes three
primary measurement categories for finandal assets: amartized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (“0CI®) and fair vatue through profit or
ioss, The basis of dassification depends on the entity’s business model and the
contractual cash flow charactenstics of the financial asset. Insestments in equity
instruments are required to be measured at fair value through profit or loss
with the irrevocable option at inception to present changes in fair value in OCI
in which case the accumulated fair value changes in QCI will not be recycled to
the profit or loss in the future. For financlal Babilities there were no changes to
classification and measurement, except for the recognition of changes in own
credit risk in other comprehensive income for lizbilities designated at fair value

through profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Continued)

(&} IFRS % Financial Instruments (Continuead)

In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected
credit loss model, 35 opposed to an incurred credit Ioss model under 1AS 39 The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to-account for expected credit bosses.
and changes in those expected credit losses at each reporting date to reflect
changes in credit risk since initial recognition, The measurement of the loss
alfowance generally depends on whether there has heen a significant increase
in credit risk: since initial recognition of the instrument. IFRS 9 requires-an: entity
to recognize litetime expected credit losses for all financial instruments for
which there have been significant increases in credit nisk since initial recagnition
considering all reasonable and supportable information, induding thar which is
torward-iocking.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain three types of hedge
accounting mechanisms currently available in 1AS 30, Under IFRS 9, greater
flesdbility has been introduced to the types of transactions eligible for hedge
accounting, specitically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-tinancial items
that are aligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the affectivensss test has
been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an ‘economic relationship’.
Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required,
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities
have also been introduced,

The Group is analyzing its business models, loans 2nd other financial instruments’
confract terms and changes to its existing credit exposures to assess the potential
impact an its tinancial statements resulting fram the adoption of IFRS 9. Given
the nature of the Group's operations, it is expected to have an impact on the
classification of financial instruments, the caloulation, amount and timing of its
allowances for impairment losses for financial assets as well as the nature and
extent of financial instruments disclosure. Implementation of IFRS 2 will also have
an impact on the management arganization, various processas and key functions,
budgeting and performance: review, as well as the information technology
systerns. The Group has completed the classification of its existing financial
assets In. accordance with the criteria In IFRS 9, and & cumrently in the process of
refining hedge accounting policies, designing and developing the expected credit
loss model and continuously updating retated policees and management system.

The Group has not completed its assessment of the full impact of zdopting IFRS
4 and therefore iis possible impact on the Group’s operating resulis and financial
position has not yet been quantified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Conbnued)

(7} Amendments to IFRS 4: Applying IFRS 3 Financial Instruments with IFRS &
Insurance Contracts

On 12 September 2016, the IASE |ssued amendments to IFRS 4, Insurance
Contracts, Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with IFR5 4, which provides two
alternative measures 1o address the different effective dates of IFRS 9 and the
forthcoming insurance contracts standard. These measures include a temporary
option for companies whose activities are predominantly connected with
insurance 1o defer the effective date of IFRS 9 until the earlier of the sffective
date of the forthcoming insurance contracts standard and the annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, as well as an approach that
albowss an enfity to remove from profit or loss the effects of certain accounting
mismatches that may occur before the forthcoming insurance contracts standard
is applied. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not
have a significant Impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(8} Amendments to JAS 40- Transfer of investment Property

On 8 December 20186, the 1458 issued amendments to |AS 40 - Transfer of
Investment Property. These amendments specify that an entity shall transter
a property to, or from, investment property when, and only when, there is a
change in use of & property supported hy evidence that a change in use has
occurred; They alsa clarify that the list of circumstances set oul in 1AS 40 is non-
exhaustive list of examples of evidence that a change in use has oocumred instead
of an exhaustive list. The examples have been expanded to include assets under
construction and development and not only transfers of completed properties
The Group anficipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a
signiticant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(M Amendments to [FRS 2; Share - based Payment
On 20 June 2016, the IASB issued an amendment to IFRS 2, "Share-based
Payment”, addressing three classification and measurement issues, The
amendment addresses the accounting for cash-settled share-based payments

and equity-settied awards that include a “net settlement” feature in respect of
withholding taxes
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Continued)

{3}  Amendments to IFRS 2: Share - based Payment (Continued)

The amendment clarifees the measurement basis for cash-settled share-based
payments and the accounting for modifications that change an award from cash-
settled to equity-settled. It also introduces an exception to the principles in IFRS
2 that will require an award to be treated as if it 15 wholly equity-settled, where
an employer is obliged to withheld an ameunt for the employee's tax obligation
associated with a share-based payment and pay that amount to the tax authority.
The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments will not have a
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial staterments.

{10} IFRS 16: Leasas

IFRS 16 addresses the. definition of a lease, recognition and measurement of
leases and establishes principles for reporting useful information 1o users of
financial statements about the leasing Sctivities of both lessees and lessars, The
standard replaces &5 17 ‘Leases’, and related interpretations.

IFRS 16 now requires lessees to recognize a lease liability reflecting future lease
paymenis and a right-of-use asset for virtually all lease centracts, unless the
underlying asset is of low value or the lesse is shodt-term, in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Accordingly, a lessee should recognize
depreciatian of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability in the
consclidated statement of compretiensive Income, and also classifies cash
repayrments of the lease liability into principal portion and an interest portion for
presentation in the consolidated statement of cash flows.

The standard will affect prinsarily the accounting for the Group’s operating leases
when the Group is the lessee. As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of RMB12,967 million, see note IV 47
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments. The Group has not yet determined to
what extent these commitments will result in the recognition of right-of-use
assets and liabilities for future payments and how this will affect the Group’s
profit and classification of cash flows, Some of the commitments may be covered
by the exception for short-term and low-value leases and some commitments
may relate to arrangements that will mot qualify as leases under IFRS 16,

Far the lessar, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
fequirernents in 145 17, Accordingly, a lessor conftinues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. The Group expects that, as a lessor, there will be no significant impact
on its tinancial information:
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

1.2 Standards and amendments relevant to the Group that are not yet effective
and have not been adopted before their effective dates in 2016 (Conbnued)

(11} Amendments to (FR5 10 and 1AS 28: Sale or Contribution of Assets between
An Investar and lts Associate or Joint Venture

These amendments address an inconsktency between the requirements in IFRS
10 - Consolidated Financial Statements and those in 1A 28 - Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures in the sale and contribution of as5e1s between an
imvestor and its assoclate or joint venture, A full gain or loss is recognized when
a transaction involves a business, A partial gain or loss is recognized when a
transaction fnvolves assets that do not constitute a business, even if those assets
are in & subsidiary. The Group anticipates that the adoption of the amendments
will not have & significant impact on the Group’s conselidated. tinancial
slatements,

2 Consolidation
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the firancal statements of the Bank and the
subsidiaries as well as structured entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power aver the entity.

Income and expense of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated income statement from the date of acquisition or up to the date on which
control ceases, respectively.

Adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries, where appropriate, io
consistently reflect the accounting policies of the Group.

All intra-group  transactions, balances and unrealized -gains on transactions are eliminated
Unrealized bosses are also eliminated unbess the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset.

Mon-cantrolling interests of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the
controlling party’s equity therein.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consclidation (Continued)
Rasis of consolidation (Continued)

The carrying amount of non-controlling intérests is the amount of those interests at initial
recagnition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity, Further,
total comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributed, based on the proportion of their
respective holdings, to the equity halders of the Bank and to the non-contralling Interests,
avien if this results in the non-contialling interssts having 3 deficit balance.

In the Banks statement of financial position, its investments in subsidiares ane stated ar cost,
less impairment losses, i any,

Business combinations

Acguisitions of businesses are accounted tor using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum
of the acquisition date fair value of the assets transferred by the Group, Habilities incurred or
assumed by the Group, and any equity interests issued by the Group. Acquisition related costs
are recognized in the consolidated income statement as incurred.

At the acquisition date, irrespective of non-controlling interests, the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair values;
except that deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit
arrangements are recognized and measured in accordance with 145 12 - Income Taxes and IAS
19 = Employee Benefits, respectively

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the ditference between (i) the consideration transterred,
the fair value of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (it any) and (i) the net fair value of the
Identifiable assets acquired and the Habilities and contingent liabilities incurred or assumed.

Mon-controlling interests that represent ownership interests in the acquiree, and entitle their
holders to 8 proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liguidation are
accounted for at either fair value or the non-controfling interests' proportionate share in the
recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identitiable net assets, The choice of measurement basis
Is made on & transaction-by-transaction basis.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consolidation {Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition less the fair value of the Group's
share of the net identifiable assets of acquired subsidiaries and associates at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is presented separately in the consolidated
staternent of financial position. Goodwill on acquisition of associates is included in investment
In associates.

for the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units {"CGU") or groups of CGLS that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets,

A CGU to which goodwall has been allocated s tested for impairment annually of more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. With respect to goadwill
arising during a reporting period, the CGL to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment betore the end of that reporting period. if the recoverable amount of the CGL,
which i the higher of fair value less costs to sefl and value in use, is less than its camying
amount, the deficit, reflecting an impairment loss, 15 allocated: first 1o reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU on
# pro-rata basis, based on the carrying amount of esch asset in the CGU. Any goodwill
Impairment loss i recognized directly in the consolidated Income statement. An impairment
Ioss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in sibsequent periods

Investment in associate

An associate i an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary neor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the tinancial and operating policy decisions of the investee but does not constitute contral or
joint control over those policy decisions,

The post-acquisition profit ar loss of an associate s Incarporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investrment in an
associate is initially recognized at cost and adjusted thereatter o recognize the Group’s share
of the profit ar lass and other comprehensie income of the associate. When the Group’s share
of loss of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that assooate which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognizing its share of further loss. Additional loss. i recognized only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or construciive ohbligations or made paymenis
on behalf of that associate.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2  Consclidation (Continued)
Investment in associate (Continused)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group considers whether there are circumstances
that indicate the possibility of impairment of the Group’s investment in an associate; when
that is the case, the entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for Impairment In accordance with 145 38 - Impairment of Assets, as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (the higher of fair valie less costs 1o sell and vahie in use)
with its carrying amaunt, any impairment loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment, Any reversal of an Impairment (055 5 recognized, 1o the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When an entity in the Group transacts with the Group's assoclate, profits and losses resulting
from: the transaction are recognized In the Groups consolidated financial statements only
to the extent of the interest in the associate that are not related to the Group. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
ransferred,

3 Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-earning financial assets and interest-bearing
financial Habilities are recognized as interest income and interest expense on the effective
method, respectively, in the consolidated income statement using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amartized cost of a financial asset
or liability and of allocating the interest income or expense over the period The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial instrument or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
ta the net carrying amaount on initial recognition. When caloulating the effective interest rate,
the Group estimates cash flows considering all contractisal terms of the financial instrument,
but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes 2/l fees and interast paid or
received that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other
premiums or discounts.

Interest income on an impaired financial asset or a group of impaired similar financlal assets is
recognized using the original interest rate which was used to discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairmeent loss

4  Fee and commission income
The Group earns fee and commission income from a diverse range of senices it provides to
its customers. For those services that are provided over a specified period of fime, fee and

commission income is accrued aver that period a5 the senvices are provided. For other services,
fee and commission iIncome ane recognized at the time the services are complated.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5  Foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Domestic Operations is RMB. The presentation currency of the
Group and the Bank is RMEB.

In preparing the financial statements of each individual Group entity, transactions in Curmencies.
other than the functional currency of that entity (foreign curmencies) are recorded in the
respeciive functional currency (ie. the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchange prevailing ar the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting pericd, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date: Non-monetary items carmed at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when
the fair value was determined, Mon-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in 2
fareign curmency are not retranskated.

Exchange ditferences arising on the settlement of monetary items, 2nd on the retranstation of
manetary items, are recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period in which
they arise, except for the following:

LK exchange differences arising on a monetary items that forms part of the Bank's net
investment in the Overseas Operations;:

{ip  changes in the fair value of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified
a5 available for sale are analyzed between translation ditferences resulting from changes
in the amortized cost of the monetary assets and other changes in the carrying amount
Translation differences related te changes In the amortized cost are recognized in
the consolidated income staternent, and other changes in the camying amount sre
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-momnetary items carried at fair
value are incuded in the consolidated income statement for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of nen-monetary iterms In respect of which gains and
losses are recognired directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the suchange
differences are alsa recagnized directly in other comprehensive intame.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liahilities
of the Groups Owverseas Operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group at the rate of exchange prevailing &t the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at exchange rates at the date of the transactions, or a rate that
apprordmates the exchange rates of the date of the transaction. Exchange differences arising,
if amy, are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under
the foreign currency translation reserve and non-controlling interests, as appropriate. The
accumidated foreign currency translation meserve related to the Overseas Operanions will be
reclassified from equity to the consolidated income statement on disposal of all or part of the
Owerseas Operations.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6  Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current fax

The tax currently payable 5 based on taxable profit for the year Taxable profit differs from
profit as reparted in the consalidated income statement because it excludes items of income
of expense that are taxable o deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s hability for current tax is caloulated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the comesponding tax base
uwsed in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all
deductible temparary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax
assets and lizhilities are’ not recognized for temporary ditference related to goodwill or the:
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction thar affects neither taxable profit nor accounting. profit.

Deterred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with
investments In subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group Is able to controd the
reversal of the temporary difference and it iz probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future: Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences assocated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent
that it i5 probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which o utilize the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed 2t the end of each repoarting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficlent taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be utilized,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in

the period in which the liakility is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6  Taxation {Continued)
Deferred tax (Confinued)

The measurement of deferred tax lishihties and assets reflects the tax conseguences that
worukd follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
1o recover or settle the camying amount of its assets and labilities. Current and deferred tax
is recognized In the consclidated income statement, except when it relates to items that ane
recognized in ather comprehiensive income of directly in equity, in which case the current
and deferred tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there i a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets sgainst current tax labilities, when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation autharity and the Group intends (o setthe its current tax assets and liabilities on
2 net basis.

Transformation from Business Taxes to Value-added Taxes (the “VAT Filat
Programs”)

Pursuant to the "Circular regarding the Comprehensive Implementation of the Pilot Programs
for Transformation from Business Taxes to Value-added Taxes (the "WAT PRilot Programs®)”
(Cal Shul |20186] Mo. 361, the “Circular regarding Further Clarfication of Relewant Policles
Applicable to the Financal Sector in the Comprehensive Implementation of the VAT Filot
Programs (Cai Shui [2016] Mo. 48) and the “Supplementary Circular regarding VAT Policies
Applicable 1o Transacticns between Financial Instituticns™ {Cal Shul [2016] No. 70} ssued by
the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF™) and the State Administration of Taxation (the “SAT") of
the PRC, effective from 1 May 2016, the Group i subject to value-added tawes on its incoma
trom credit business, fee income on financial services, income from insurance business and
trading of financial prodicts at 6%, instead of business tax at 5% prior 1o 1 May 2016,

In accordance with Cai Shul [2016] Mo, 46 referred to above, the Bank elected to adopt a
simplified methodaology to calculate value-sdded taxes at 3% on interest income derived from
loans granted to farming househabds, rural enterprises and other rural institutions by county-
level sub-branches included in the Eank's pilot programs of the Sannong Finance Division
under the Bank's provingial branches in provinces, autonomous regions, municipalities directly
under the central government and municipalities with independent budgetary status as well as
those under the Xinjiang Production and Construction Corps Branch,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
6  Taxation {Continued)

Transformation from Business Taxes to Value-added Taxes (the "VAT Pilot
Programs®) (Conbinuad)

In accordance with “Circular regarding the Value-added Taxes Policies for Financial, Real
Estate Development and Education Ancillary and Other Services™ (Cal Shui [2016] No. 140)
and "Supplementary Circular regarding lssues concerning Value-added Taves Policies for Asset
Managentent Praducts® (Cai Shul [2017] No. 2), managers of asset management products shall
pay VAT for taxable activities undertaken after 1 July 2017,

After the implementation of the VAT Filot Programs, the Groups interest income, fee and
commission income, trading gain on finandial products and insurance premium income are
presented net of their respective VAT In the consolidated financial statements.

7 Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given and other relevant expenditure incurred
by the Group in exchange for services rendered by employees or for termination of the
employment contracts, These benefits indiude short-term employes benefits, post-employment
benetits and sarly retirement bensfits

Short-term employee benefits

In the reporting period in which an employee has rendered services, the Group recognizes the
short-term employee benefits payable for those services as a liability with a corresponding
increase in the expenses in the consolidated income statement. Short-term employee
benefits inclede salaries, bonuses, alowance and subsidies, staff welfare, medical insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance, housing funds as well as labor union fees
and statf education expenses.

Post-employment benefits

The Groups post-employment benefits are primarily the payments for basic pensions and
unemployment insurance related to government mandated social welfare programs, as well as
the annuity scheme established. All these post-employment benefits are defined contribution
plans, under which, the Group makes fived contributions inta a separate fund and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to make further contributicns if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employee Benefits refating to employee services in the current and
prics perods,

Contributions to the basic pensions and unemployment insurance plan are recognized in the
consolidated Income statement for the period in which the relared payment obligation is
Incurred.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
7 Employee benefits (Continued)
Post-employment benefits (Continued)

The employees of the Bank's head office and domestic branches ("Domestic Institutions™)
participate in an annuity scheme established by the Bank (the “Annuity Scheme®). The Bank
pays annuity contributions with reference to employees’ salaries, amd such contributions are
expensed In the consolidated income statement when incurred. The Bank has no further
obligation if the Annuity Scheme does not have sufficient assets for the payment of any
retirement benefits to employees tunded by the Annuity Scheme.

Early retirement benefits

Early retirement benefits have been paid to those employees who accept voluntary retirement
kefore the mormal retirement date, as approved by management. The related benefit payments
are made from the date of early retirement 1o the normal retirement date.

The accounting. treatment of the Groups early retirement benefits & In accordance with
termination benefits as determined in 145 19, The liability is recognized for the early retirement
benefit payments from the date of early retirement to the normal retirenvent date when the
criteria for recognition as termination benefit is met with a corresponding charge in the
consolidated income statement. Differences arising from changes in assumptions and estimates
of the present value of the llabiities: are recognized in the consolidated income statement
when incurred.

8 Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial pasition
and classitied into one of the categories presented below, All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financal liabilities are mitially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are: directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and liabilities {other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
of deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or habilities, respectively, on initial
recognition, Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
liakilities at fair walue through profit or loss are recognized immediately in the consolidated
income statément.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into tour categones - tinancial assets at fair
value through profit or loss ("FVTPL™), held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sake
financial assets and, Ipans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and 5 determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FYTPL have two subcategories = financial assets held tor trading and
those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition,

A financial asset i5 classified as held for rading it
. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of sale in the near future; or

. it forms part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

L it is & derivative instrument that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

A financial ssset ether than a financial 2sset held for trading may be designated at
FWTPL upon initial recognition i:

- such designation eliminates or signiticantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset foems part of a group of financial assets or financial liabiities
of hoth, which is managed and its performance is' evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Groups documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the grouping s provided internally on that basis;
of

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derlvatives, and
145 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurément permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair valiue arising from

re-measurement recognized directly in the conselidated income statement in the period
i which they arise.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets, quoted in an active
market, with fixed or determinable: paymenis and fived maturittes that the Group has
the positive inténtion and ability to hiold to maturity. Subsequent to intial recognition,
held-ta-maturnty investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any impaimeent [osses.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derfvative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are carried at amortized cost wsing the: effective interest method,
less amy impairment losses.

Financial assets classified as loans and receivables primarily indude deposits with central
hanks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and loans
to banks and other financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements,
loans and advances to customers, and specfied debt securities,

Available-for-sale finandial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as
such or are not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments,

Available-for-sabe financial assets are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period. Changes in fair value are recognized In other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the investment revaluation ressrve, until the financial asset i disposed
‘of ar & determined o be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve s reclassified 1o the consolidated
income statement,

Equity investments classified &s available-for-sale that do not have a quoted price in an
active market and whose tair value cannot be reliably determined are measured at cost,
less amy impairment losses, at the end of each reporting period.

Interest income related to financial assets classified as available-for-sale debt instruments
is calculated using the effective interest method and recorded as an element of Interest
Income in the consolidated income statement. Dividends on availzble-for-sale equity
instruments are recagnized in the consolidated income statement when the Group's
right to receive such payments is established.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets
Finanicial assets, other than those classified as PVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are impaired when
thers & abjective svidence that, a5 a resull of one ar more events that ocourred after
initial recagnition, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been

adversely affected.

A significant or profenged decline in the fair value of an equity investment classified as
available-fer-sale below its cost is considered to be chjective evidence of impairment.

Far all ather financial assets, the ohjective evidence of impairment coulkd include:
* significant financial difficulty of the lssuer or obligos;

. a breach of contract, such asz a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

] the lender, for economic or legal reasons relating 1o the borrower's financial
ditficulty, granting to the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

. it becomes probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial
rearganization;

. the diszppearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

. observable data indicating that there is 2 measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from a portfolio of financial assets, although the decrease
cannal yet be attributed o Individual financial assets in the portfolio:

- adverse changes in the payment status of borrawers in the portfalio; and

- natianal or local sconomic conditions that correlate wath defaultz an the
assets in the portfolio:
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
all corporate loans, debt instruments dlassified as receivables, available-for-sale financial
assets and held-to-maturity investients, and collectively for the remainder of financial
assets (other than those at fair value through profit or loss). i the Group determines
that no ohjectve evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or nof, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses it for impairment. Financial
assets that are individieally assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss s
of continues to be recognized are not Included in collective sssessment of impairment

impairment of financial assets carried at amortized cost

For financlal assets carried at amortized cost, an impairment loss (5 recognized in
the comsolidated income statement when there is objective evidence that the assets
are impaired. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) dscounted at the financial assets original
ettective interest rate. For finandal assets with variable interest rate, the discount rate
tor measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined
under the contract,

The calculation of present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized
financial asset reflects the cash flows that are expected to result from foreclosure, less
the cost of cbtaining and selling the collateral.,

The carrying amount of an impaired financial asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are
recognized in the comsolidated income statement. When 2 financial asset 5 considerad
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amaunts previously written off are credited to the consolidated income statement,

i, in & subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an ewent occurring after the impairment was
recognized, such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating, the previously
recognized impairment boss is reversed through the consolidated income statement fo
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognized.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.1 Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets classified as available-for-sale

For available-for-sale equity instruments, a significant or prolonged decling in fair
value bebow cost s considered to be objective evidence of impairment. In determining
whether a decling in fair value has been signiticant or prolenged, the Group considers
it the fair value of an availzble-for-sale equity instrument a5 at the balance sheet date is
loweer tham 50% (ncluding 50%) of its initial cost of investment or lower than its initial
cost of investment for more than one year (including one year) together with other
relevant considerations.

When a decline in the fair value of a financial asset dassified as available-for-sale
has been recognized directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revatuation reserve, and there is objective evidence that asset is impaired,
the cumulative losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement in the period in which the impairment
takes place.

An impairment loss on an eqguity investment classified as available-for-sale, and
carried at far value, s not reversed through the consolidated income statement
in subsequent periods, Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is
recognized directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment
revaluation reserve. An impalrment loss on an equity Investrment classified as avallable-
tor-sale equity investment, and camied at cost, is not reversed. An impairment loss on
a debt investrment classified as available-foa-sale is subsequently reversed through the
consolidated income statement if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
ohjectively related to an event accurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)

8.2 Financial liabilities

Financial kabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity In accordance wath the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial Bability and an equity instrument in 145
39 andd |AS 32, respectively.

The Group's financial liabilities are generally classified inte finandal liabilities at FVTPL
and other tinancial labdlites, carned at amortezed cost.

Financial liabifities at fair value throwgh profit or foss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL have two subcategories, including financial liabilities held
for trading and those designated at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it Is acquired or incurred principally
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it i part of a portholio
of identified financial instrunnents that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also
categarized as held for trading unless they are designated and effective as hedging
ImsTrunments.

The criteria for & financial liability designated at FVTPL is the same as those for 2
financial asset designated at FYTRL,

Financial liabilities at PVTPL are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on
re-measurement recognized directly in the consolidated income statement in the period
in which they arise,

Other financial Nabilities

Other financial liabilities are measured at amartized cost, using the effective interest
method.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.2 Equity instruments

An equity instrument (5 any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

A financial instrument [s an equity instrument if, and only if, both conditions () and ()
below are met:

{1} The financial instrument includes no contractual obligation to deliver cash or
another tinancial asset to another entity, or to exchange financial assets or
financial lkabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially
unfavarable to the Group; and

{il I the financial instrument will or may be settled in the Group's own equity
instrunents, it 15 @ non-derivative instrument that includes no. contractual
ohligations for the Group to deliver a variable number of its own equity
instruments; or a derivative that will be settled only by the Group exchanging
a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of its cwn
equity instruments,

Equaty Imstrumrents issued by the Group are recorded at the fair walue of proceeds
received, net of direct issuance expenses.

8.4 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date a derivative contract s
entered into and are subsequently re-measured at therr fair value at the end of the
reporting pencd, The resulting gain or loss is recogmized i the consolidated income
statement.

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative hiost contracts are treated as separate derivatives
when their characteristics and risks are not clearly and closely related to those of the
host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognized in the consolidated income staterment. These embedded derivatives are

separately accounted for at FVTPL.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8 Financial instruments (Continued)
8.5 Determination of fair value

Fair walue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to wanster a
lkability i an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measiwement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of
whether that price is directly ohservable or estimated using another valuation technigque.

For financial instrurments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of
financial assets and financal liakilities 5 based on quoted market prices. This includes
listed equity securities and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges.

& financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market i quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, industry group, pricing service of
requlatary agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly oocurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is
regarded a5 being inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a wide
bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread ar there are few recent
fransacticons.

For financial instruments not traded in active markets, fair value is determined using
appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques Include the use of recent
transaction prices, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and others
commanly used by market participants. These valuation techniques include the use of
observable andfer unobservable inpats.

8.6 De-recognition

The Group derecognizes & tinancial asset only when the contractual rights 1o the cash
fiows from the asset expire, or when it transters the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the 2sset fo another entity. I the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues
to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to recognize the asset to the
exctent of its continuing involvement and recognizes an associated lizbility, If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of gamership of a transferred financial
asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a
callateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
8  Financial instruments (Continued)
8.6 De-recognition (Continued)

On de-recognition of 2 financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable and, where
applicable, the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated i equity 5 recognized in the consolidated Incame statement.

Financial liabilities are derecognized when the related obligation is discharged, is
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrving amount of the financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and pavable is recognized in the
consolidated income statement

8.7 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

Finanmcial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position when both of the following conditions
are satishied: (i} the Growp has a legal right to set oft the recognized amounts and the
legal right is currently enforceable; and (H) the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realize the financial asset and settle the financial lizbility simultaneously.
The Begally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolency or
bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty,

8.8 Repurchase agreements and agreements to resell

Financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with repurchase agreements,
involving: fixed repurchase dates and prices, are not derecognized. They continue o
be recorded as investments classified as held-to-maturity investments, available-for-
sale financial assets or debt Instruments classified as receivables as appropriate. The
corresponding liability is included in financial assets sold under repurchase agresments.
The items which are not derecognized are disclosed in Mate [V 47 Contingent Liabilities
and Commitments = Collateral.

Consideration paid for financial assets held under agréements to resell are recorded
as Financial assets held under ressle agreements, the related collateral accepted has
not been recognized in the consolidated financial statements (Mote IV 47 Contingent
Liakilities and Commitments — Collateral),

The ditference between purchase and sale price is recognized as interest expense or
income (n the consolidated incaome statement over the term of the agreements using
the effective interest method,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
9 Insurance contracts
Insurance contract classification

Insurance contracts are those contracts under which the Group has accepted significant
insurance risk, relative to an insured event or occurmence. The Group issues primanly life
Insurance contracts, which insure ewvents associated wath maortality over a long duration. The
Group also ksues non-life insurance contracts, which cowver short-term casualty and health
Insurance risk. When necessary. the Group enters inte reinsurance contracts (o transfer
insurance risks to reinsurer, A significant insurance risk test is performed at inception of the
IMSUrENCe CONTracts.

‘Seme insurance centracts contain both an insurance component and a deposit component
The Group unbundles thase companents, if the insurance companent and the deposit
component ane separately measurable. The unbundled insurance component B accounted for
according to IFRS 4 - Insurance Confracts and the unbundied deposit companent is accounted
for as & financial liability under investment contract liabilities

Insurance income recognition

Premiums from long-term lite insurance contracts are recognized as revenue when due from
policyholders. Premiums related to short-term non-life insurance contracts are recognized
when received at the inception of the policy, a5 unearned insurance premiums in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and are amortized on a straight-line basis into
the consolidated income statement cver the term of the policy.

When the Group has transterred insurance risk through reinsurance contracts, the Group
caleulates the amount of premium ceded and the reinsurers' share of expenses and recognizes
them through the consolidated income statement in accordance with the terms of the
reinsurance contracts.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract lizbilities are measured based on a reasonable estimate of the amouwnt of
payments that the Group will be required to make to fulfill its obligations under the insurance
contracts, which represents the difference between expected future cash outflows and
inflows related to such contracts. A reasonable estimate of expected future net cash tows s
determined based on information currently available &5 at the end of the reparting period.
The Group has considerad the impact of time value in the Gability caleulation for long-term life
IMSUranCe.

The Group pertorms lizbility adequacy tests based on infarmation currently available, as at the
reparting date, Additianal insurance contract liabilities will be recorded if any deficiency exists,
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
10 Precious metals
Precious metals comprise gold, silver and other precious metals.

Precious metals that are not related to the Group trading activities are initially measured
at acquisition cost and subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Frecious melals that are related to the Group's trading activities are initially recognized at
fair value, with changes in fair value arising from re-measurement recognized directly in the
consolidated income statement in the perod in which they anse,

11  Property and equipment

Property and equipment including buildings held for use in the supply of services, or for
administrative purpose (other than construction in progress) are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, i any. When the costs attributable to the land wse rights
cannot be relizbly measured and separated from that of the building at inception, the costs
are included in the cost of buikdings and recorded in property and equipment.

Depreciation is recognized as a component of operating expenses in the conselidated income
staternent 50 as to recognize the consumption of the economic value of property and
equipment (other than construction in progress), less their estimated residual wvalues, owver
their estimated useful kves, 1sing the stralght-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation rates are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on 3 prospective basis,

The useful lives, estimated residual valie rates and annual depreciation rates of each cass of
property and equipment are as follows:

Estimated
residual Annual
Classes Useful lives value rates depreciation rates
Buildings 3-30 years 3% 1.94%-19.40%
Electronic equipment,
furniture and tixtures 3-11 years 3% 8829%-32.33%
Mator vehicles 5-B years 3% 12.13%-19.40%
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
11 Property and equipment (Continued)

Properties in the course of constructon for supply of services of administrative purposes ane
camied at cost, as construction in progress, less any impairment loss. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property and
equipment, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property and equipment |s derecognized upen dispasal or when no future
ecanomic benefits are expected to arise from its continued tse. Any gain or loss arsing
on the deposal or retirement of an item of property and equipment 15 determined as the
ditference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset.and is recognized
in other operating income in the consclidated income statement, The accounting policles of
Impairment of property and equipment are included in Note I| 18 Impairment of Tangible and
Intangible Assets other than Goodwill.

12  Land use rights

Land wse rights are classified in other assets and amortized over a straight-line basis over their
authorized useful lives,

12 Foreclosed assets

Foreclosed assets are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at the lower
of their carrying amount and fair value, less costs to sell, at the end of each reporting period.
When the fair value, less costs to sell, & lower than a foreclosed asset's carrying amount, an
impairment loss s recognized in the consofidated income statemeant

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal of the foreclosed asset is included in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the item s disposed,

The Group disposes foreclosed assets through various means. In principle, foreclosed assets

should not be transterred for own use, but, in the event that they are needed faor the Group's
own business of management purposes, they are transferred at their net carrying amounts and

managed a5 newly acquired property and equipment,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
14 Investment property
Irvestment property is property held to earn rental income or for capital appreciation, or both,

Investment property 15 initially measured ar its acquisition cost. Subsequent expenditure
incurred for the investment property 15 included in the cost of the investment propeny if it
Is probable that economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the Group and the
subsequent expenditure can be measured reliably. Other subsequent expenditure is recognized
in the consolidated income statement in the periad in which they are nclifred,

Investment properties are measured wsing the cost model. Depreciation and amortization is
recognized the same way as property and equipment and land use rights.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its investment
propertes 1o determine whether there is any indication that the assets have suffered am
impairment loss, H any such indication exists, the recoverable amount (the higher of tair
value less costs to sell and value in use) of the property is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, it any, If the recoverable amount of a property is estimated
to be fess than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the property s reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
The accounting policies of impairment of investment property are included in Mate Il 18
Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets ather than Goodwill,

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the camrying amount of the investment
property is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the Increased carying amount does not exceed the carrying amount had ne impairment loss
been recognized. & reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income
statement.

When an Investment property Is sold, transferred, retired or damaged, the Group recognizes
the amount of any proceeds on disposal, net of the camying amount and related expenses, in
the consolidated income statement.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
15 Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenevar the terms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classitied as operating
leases

The Group as lessor

When the Group is the lessor in 4 finance lease, an amount representing the minimum lease
payment receivahles and unguaranteed residual value, net of initial direct costs, all discounted
at the impdicit lease rate (the “net lease investrment ) 15 recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position as Loans and advances to customers. The difference between the net
lease inwestment and the undiscounted amount is recorded as unearned finance income,
amertizing aver the term of the lease using the effective inferest method and recognized in
the consolidated Income statement.

When the Group s the lessor in an operating lease, the assets subject to the operating lease
continue 1o be recognized as the Group's property and equipmeent. Rental income from
operating leases s recognized as other aperating income in the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the term of the related lease,

The Group as lessee

When the Group is a lessee under finance leases, the leased assets are capitalized under
property and equipment indtially at the fair value of the asset or, it lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The correspending liability to the lesser i included in other
lizbilities. Finance charges are charged over the term of the lease using the effective interest
method and recognized in the consolidated income statement. The depreciation policy for
depreciable leased assets is consistent with that tor depreciable assets that are owned,

When the Group is the lessee in an operating lease, operating bease payments are recodqnized
as an expense and charged to cperating expenses in the consolidated Income statement on
& straight-line hasis over the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. In the event that lease
incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are considered in
determining the amount to be recognized over the lease term,
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are short-terrn and highdy liguid assets, which are readily convertible
into: known amounts-of cash and subject to an insigniticant risk of changes in value. Cash and
cash equivalents include cash and assets with original maturity of three months or less under
cash and balances wath central banks, deposits with banks and other financial institutions,
placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions and financial assets held
under resale agreements:

17 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful lives are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment foss, Amartization for intangible
assets with finite useful lives is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives which generally range from 5 to 20 years

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are subject to annual
impaitment assessment.

Gains or |losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the nat disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognized in the consolidated income statement,

18 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reparting period, the Group reviews the carrying ameunts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. B any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, it any. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use,

If the recoverable amourt of an asset b5 estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the zsset is reduced to its recoverable smount. An impairment loss is
recognized in the consofidated income statement.

Where an impairment lo5s subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount had no impairment loss been recognized, A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
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I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
13 Dividend distribution

Drividend distribution. to the Bank's ordinary equity holders is recognized as a liability in the
Group’s and the Bank's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved
by the sharehalders’ annual general meeting of the Bank,

As authorized by the shareholders’ annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the sole
discreticn to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares. Preference share dividend
distriblition is recognized a5 a liability in the Group’s and the Bank's finapcial staternents in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

20  Provision

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event,
and it i probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Prawisions are measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reparting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
sunrcunding the cbligation. Where a2 provision |15 measured wsing the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of thase cash flows

21  Fiduciary activities

The Group acts a5 a custodian, trustee and in other fiduciary capacities to safeguard assets
for customers in accordance with custody agreements between the Group and securities
investment funds, social security funds, insurance companies, trust companies, qualified
toreign institutional investors, annuity schemes and other institutions and individuals. The
Group receives fees in return for its services prowded under the custody agreements and
does not have any interest in the economic risks and rewards related to assets under custody,
Therefore, assets under cistody are not recagnized in the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group conducts entrusted lending arrangements for its custemers. Under the terms
of entrusted loan arrangements, the Group grants loans to borrowers, as an infermediary,
according to the instruction of its customers who are the lenders providing tunds for the
entrusted loans. The Group B responsible for the arrangement and collection of the entrusted
loans and receives a commission for the services rendered. As the Group does not assume
the economic risks and rewards of the entrusted loans and the funding for the comresponding
entrusted funds, they are not recognized as assets and labilities of the Group.
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Il SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cantinued)
22 Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantes contfact is a contract that requires the |ssuer to make specitied
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specitied debtor fails to make
payment when due, in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognized at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent o initial recagnition, the Group's labilities under such guarantees are measured ar
the higher of the initial amount, less amartization of guarantee fees recagnized in accordance
with the revenue recognition policy, and the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the guaraniee. These estimates are determined based on expenience of similar transactions,
historical losses and supplenented by the judgment of management. Any increase in the
liability relating to guarantees is taken to the consolidated income statement.

23 Contingent liabilities

A contingent lability 5.4 possible cbligation that arises from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occumence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amount of abligation cannot be measured reliably,

& contingent Kability is not recognized, but disclosed, unbess the possibility of an outflow of
resources embodying economic henefits s probable. The Group’s contingent liabilities are
disclosed in Note IV 47 Contingent Liabilities 2nd Commitrments

& provision Is recognized when it meets the criteria as set forth in Mate 11 20 Provision.

il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Mote Il, management is
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities. The estimates and related assumptions are based on historical expenience and other
refevant factors induding on the basis of reasonable expectations for futune events,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongaing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate i revised if the revision affects only
that period or in the pericd of the revision and futire periods if the revision affects both current and
future pericds.

The tollowing are the critical judgments and key estimates that the management has made in the
process of applying rthe Group’s accounting polickes and that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next twelve manths.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers

The Group reviews its loans and advances 1o customers tooassess impairment on 3 periodic
basis during the year, In determining whether an impairment loss should be recognized in the
consolidated income statement of profit and loss, the Group makes estimates and judgments.
a5 to whether there is any observable data indicating that there is objective evidence of
impairment and the extent, if any, 1o which it will have a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows related to individually assessed Ioans and advances or pools of loans amd
advances to customers with similar risk characteristics, as described in Nate I 8.1 Impairment
of Financial Assers Carned at Amortized Cost.

‘Significant judgments are made in the determination of whether ohjective evidence of
Impairment exists in individually assessed loans and advances to costomers or pocls of loans
and advances to customers with: similar risk’ characteristics. Among other things, ‘objective
evidence of impairment includes deterioration i the financial condition of specific borrowers
{or specific pools of borrowers) affecting their ability to meet their loan payment obligations
such as overdue stapus, financial position of guarantors, latest collateral valuations and
concessions by the Group that would not otherwise be granted to barrowers for economic or
legal reasons relating to thelr financial difficulties, as well as increasing Industry sector over-
capacity or obsolescence, or deterioration in national or regional economic conditions that
are correlated to increasing customer defaults on boans and advances. These judgments are
made both during managements reqular assessments of the quality of loans and - advances
to customers' quality and when other circumstances indicate the possibility that objective
evidence of impairment may exist.

Where it is detérmined that objective evidence of impairment exists, significant judgments
and estimates are made in estimating the adverse impact on future cash flows related to
individually assessed impaired Ioans and advances to customers. The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewed reqularly to reduce any ditferences between loss estimates and actual loss experience
Factors affecting these estimates include the availability and granularity of Iinformation
related to specific borrowers and guarantors, latest collateral valuations and ather available
infarmation, and the clarity of the comelation between gualitative factors, such as industry
sector performance or changes in regional economic conditions and loans and advances to
customers’ detaults of related borrowers.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1 Impairment losses on loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Corporate loans and advances to customers not identified as impaired from individually
assessments, together with personal loans and advances to customers are included in
homogenous groups with similar credit risks charactenstics for performance of impaimment
assessments on a collective basis, Significant judgments are applied to the calculation of
assessed impairment wsing these models. Critical factors affecting these judgments include
modelling assumptions (8.9. loss given default) and levels of correlation betwesn qualitative
factors and loans and advances to customers default. The collective impairment loss is assessed
atter taking into account: () historical loss experience in portfolos of simidar credit risk
characteristics; (i) loss identification period for incurred but unidentified impairment losses;
{iii} industries and geographic locations; and {iv) the cumrent economic and credit environments
and whether in management’s experience these indicate that the actual level of inherent losses
i5 likely to be greater or less than that suggested by historical experience. The Group considers
the impact of the changes and uncertainty in the macro-economic environment, in which the
Group operates when assessing the methodolegy and assumptions wsed for loss estimation
and makes adjustments where appropriate,

2 Fair value of financial instruments

The Group uses valuation technigues to estimate the fair value of financial instruments
which are not quoted in an active market. These valuation techniques include the wse of
recent transaction prices of the same or similar instruments, discounted cash flow analysis
and generally accepted pricing models, To the extent practical, market observable inputs and
data, such as interest rate yield curves, foreign currency rates and implied option volatilities,
are used when estimating fair value through a valuation technique. Where market observahle
inputs are not available, they are estimated using assumptions that are calibrated as closely &
possible to market observable data. Howewver, areas such as the credit risk of the Group and
the counterparty, liquidity, volatilities and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in_assumptions about these factors could affect the estimated fair value of financial
nstruments.

With respect to PRC government chligations related to large-scale policy directed financing
tramsactions, fair value is determined using the stated terms of the: related instrument and
with reference to terms determined by the PRC government in similar transactions engaged in
or directed by the PRC government. In this regard, there are no other relevant market prices or
yietds reflecting arm’s length transactions of & comparable size and tenor.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3  Held-to-maturity investments

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets; quoted in-an active market, with fixed or
determinable payments and fxed maturities that the Groups management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity as held-to-maturity investments. In assessing the
Group’s Intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity, management primarily
considers the business purpose for acquiring a security, as well as the Group's lquidity needs
This is a significant judgnient because if the Group fails to hold these investmants to matunity,
other than for specific and limited circumstances (e.g. sale of an insignificant amount close to
roaturity}, it will be required to reclassify the entire portiolic of held-to-matunty investments
a5 available-for-sale financial assets and be preduded from dassifying investments as held-to-
maturity investments for the next teio years,

a Impairment of other financial assets

For held-to-maturity investments and financial instruments classified as receivables, the
determination of whether such an investment s impaired requires significant judgment.
Objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets s impaired includes a
breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency In interest or principal payments of the
disappearance of an active market for that financial asset hecause of significant financial
difficulty of the issser, etc. In making such judgment, the impact of objective evidence of
impairment on expected future cash flows of the investment & taken inlo account.

For available-forsale investments, the determination of whether such an investment is
impaired requires significant judgrent. In making this judgment, the Group considers the
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investrnent is less than its cost; or whether
other ohjective evidence of impairment exists based on the financial health of and near-term
business outlook tor the investee, induding factors such as industry and sector performance,
credit ratings, delinquency rates and counterparty risk.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

5 Taxes

There are certain transactions and activities in the ordinary course of the Group's business for
which the ultimate tax etfect is uncertain. The Group made certain estimation and judgement
for items of uncertainty in the application of tax legistations, taking into account existing tax
legistation and past practice of tax authorities, Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different fram the amounts that were initially estimated, based on management's assessment,
such differences will affect the current Income tax, deferred income tax, valie-added tax and
business tax during the period in which such a determination is made.

6 Employee early retirement benefits obligations

The Group recognizes liabilities in connection with early retirement benefits for employees in
Domaestic Institutions using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method based on various
assumptions, including the discount rate, average medical expenses growth rate, pension
benefit growth rate for early retirements and other factors, The present value of the liability
i5 determined through discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates
of RME treasury bonds which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related
liability. Any difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may affect
the amount of expense recognized in the consolidated income statement in the period during
which such changes take place and the corresponding liability recognized in the consalidated
statement of financial posttion,

7 Consolidation of structured entities

Where the Group acts as asset manager of or investar in structured entities, the Group makes
significant judgement on whether the Graup controls and should consolidate these structured
entities, When performing this assessment, the Group assesses the Group's contractul rights
and obligations in ight of the transaction strictures, and evaluates the Group's power over
the structured entities, performs analysis and rests an the variable returns from the structured
entities, including but not limited to commission income and asset management fees earned
as the asset manager, the retention of residual income, and, it any, the liquidity and other
support provided to the structured entities. The Group also assesses whether it acts as a
principal o an agent theough -analysis of the scope of its decision-making authority over the
structured entities, the remuneration to which it is entitled for asset management services, the
Group’s exposure to variability of returns from its other interests in the structured entities, and
the rights held by other parties in the structured entities.
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Il CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

8  De-recognition of financial assets transferred

Im its normal course of husiness, the Group transters its finandal assets through various types
ot transactions incleding regular way sales and transfers, securitization, tinancial assets sold
under repurchase agreentents, securities lending. The Group applies significant judgement in
assessing whether it has transferred these financial assets which qualify for a full or partial de-
recognition.

Where the Group enters into structured transactions by which it transfers financial assets to
structured entities, the Group analyzes whethar the substance of the relationship between
the Group and these structured entities indicates that it controls these structured: entities
to determine whether the Group needs to consolidate these structured entities, This waill
determine whether the following de-recognition analysis should be conducted at the
comsolidated level or at the entity evel from which the financial assets are transferred.

The Group analyzes the contractual rights and obligations in connection with such transfers to
determine whether the de-recognition criteria are met based on the following considerations:

. whether it has transferred the rights to receive contractual cash flows from the
financial assets or the transter qualities for the “pass through® of those cash flows to
intdependeant third parties.

. the extent to which the associated risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
assets are transferred. Significant judgment is applied in the Group’s estimation with
regard to the cash flows before and after the transfers and other factors that effect the
outcomes of Group's assessment on the extent that risks and rewards are transferred.

. where the Group has neither retained nor transferred substantially all of the risks and
rewards associated with their ownership, the Group analyzes whether It has relinquished
its controls over these financial assets by assessing whether the transferee has the
practical ability fo sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without needing to impose additional restrictions on
the transfer, and if the Group has continuing involvement in these transferred financial
assets. Where the Group has not retained controd, it derecognizes these financial assets
and recognizes separately as assets or habilities any rights and cbligations created or
retained in the transter. Otherwise the Group continues to recognize these financial
assets to the extent of its continuing involvement in the financial asset.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 Net interest income

Year ended 31 Decembar

2016 2015
Interest income
Leans and advances to customers

Including: Corporate loans 2nd advances 261,332 321,040
Personal loans and advances 135,131 145,181
Discounted bills 14,327 10,767
Subtotal 410,790 476,988
Hebd-to-maturity Investonents 99,737 83684
Available-for-sale financal assets 46,155 41,344
Balances with central banks 39,264 39 745
Debt instruments classified as receivables 21,385 20,507
Depasits with banks and other financal instituticns 17,621 25,409
Placements with and leans 1o banks and
other financial institutions 12,922 14,391
Financial assets hield under resale agreements 6,497 21,378
Financial assets held for trading 2,589 1,999
Financial assets designated at
fair value through profit or loss 220 348
Subtotal 657,190 725,793

Interest expense

Cue o customers (209,149) (233,377)
Depaosits from banks and other financial institutions {27.175) (37.036)
Debt secunties issiied {12,133} {10,988)
Flacements from banks and other financial institutions (4,247} 4,731)
Borrowings from central bank (3,556) {1,890)
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements (2,826) (1,621}
Subtotal (25%,086) (289,653
Net interest income 398,104 436,140

Interest income accrued on impaired financial assets
tincluded within interest income) 2,209 1,765
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2 Net fee and commission income

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Fee and commission incoms

AQEnCY SErvices 39,377 28 628
Bank card 20,108 20,689
Settlement and clearing senvices 16,715 17,714
Efectronic banking services 9,993 8,962
Consultancy and advisory senvices 9,050 88492
Custodian and ather fiduciary 3,118 2857
Credit commitment 2,263 2,547
Others 194 205
subtatal 100,819 90,494

Fee and commission expense

Bank card (5,394} {3.401)
Electronic banking services (1,992) {1,852}
settlement and clearing services {1,463} {1,921}
Cithers (1,029} {770
Subtotal {9.884) {7,945]
Met fee and commission income 90,935 82,549

3 Net trading gain

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Met gain on held-for-trading debt securities 129 1,370
et gain on precious metals (i 931 aig
Met gain on foreign exchange rate dervatives 4,706 1,489
Met loss on interest rate derivatives (309) {126}
Total 5,457 3,562

(1] Net gain on precious maelals comsisls of nel gain on predous metak and precious metal related
denivalive producs.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4  Net (loss)/gain on financial instruments designated at fair value through

profit or loss

Met (loss)gain on principal guaranteed wealth

Year ended 31 December

2016

management products (1,653) 1,693
Met gaindloss) on debt secunties 17 {17]
Cithers 345 31
Total (1,291} 1.727

5  Other operating income

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Insurance premium 10,972 7.745
Government grant 2,919 2237
Rental income 406 316
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 285 255
Met {lossigain on foreign exchange (98) 2,842
Othiers 1,519 1,628
Total 16,003 16,027

6  Operating expenses

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Staff costs (1} 111,536 110,349
General aperating and administrative expenses (2) 44,440 48461
Depreciation and amortization 19,037 19,633
Tax and surcharges {3) 11,449 29,075
Insuramce beretits and claims 11,211 7.984
Provision for guarantees and commitments (3.474) 2.084
Pravision tor nsk incidents and legal proceadings (432) 5,500
Others 3,282 1,723
Total 197,049 225818
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
6  Operating expenses (Continued)

{1} Staff costs

Year ended 31 December

2016 L0153

Short-term employes. benefits

salaries, bonuses, allowance and subsidies 0,770 67,513
Hawusing funds 8,638 8 |
Secial insurance 5016 4,956
Including: Medical insurance 4,524 4,317
Maternity insurance 312 352

Employment injury insurance 180 287

Labar union fees and staft education expenses 2,625 3.026
Others 9,424 9,458
Subtotal 96,473 93,804
Defined contribution benefits 15,304 15,151
Early retirement benefits (241) 1,394
Total 111,536 110,349

{2) Included in general eperating and administrative expenses is auditor's remuneration of
RMEB141 million for the year (2015: RME139 million)

(3} Business tax for the Group's Domestic Operations was generally calculated at 5% of
taxable income, which was declared and paid to the local tax department by Domestic
Operations prior to the VAT Program.

In' accordance with the “Circular regarding the Extension of Value-added Taxes and
Business Tax Policies” {Cai Shui [2016] No. 83), jointly issued by the MOF and 5AT on 25
July 2016, business tax of the Groups county-bevel sub-branches tor the pilot program
would ke levied at 3% on interest income from agriculture-related loans trom 1 January
2016 1o 30 April 2016,

From 1 May 2016, most of the Group® operating income i subject to VAT, Please refer
o Wote || & Taxation to the consolidated financial statements for details.

City construction and maintenance tax is calculated at 1% - 7% of business tax and
VAT for the Group's Domestic Operations.

Ediscation surcharge s calculated at 3% - 5% of business tax and VAT for the Group's
Domestic Operations.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management

(1) Detaik of the Diectors’, Supervisors” and Senior Management's emoluments are a5
taliows (in thousands of RMB):

Year ended 31 December 2016

Contribution Other
Basic  to retirement benefits
5 and benefit in kind
i schemes L]
Executive Directors
Zhou Mhabing U] - FLES 50 T 143
Than Hian 1 {1 - 484 101 58 (15
Law Weenlang (i} - 438 o 1] 591
Incependent
Hos-Execistive Direcioes
Wen Tiggun 410 - - - a1
Franci Yoen Ti-tan 380 - - - ELL
iz Xing 369 - - - L]
Lu Janging i B - . - .
‘Wiang: Xinvin il m - = - mn
Moo Exenuitive Diveciors
Ihaa Chao ] - - - - -
Iheu Kn i - - - = =
Ihang Dinglong i . - . . -
Chen Jizngn i - - = = =
Hu Mz i = - = - =
X Randong (i} - - - - -
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

{1) Detaik of the Directors’, Supenvisors’ and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thausands of RMB) (Continued):

Year ended 31 December 2006

Contribution Other
Basic = retirement bemefits
salaries and benefit in kind
Fees alloveance schemes Rawii)
Supendors
Yuzn Changaing - 484 100 58 =)
Wang Yingun b . . - . .
Thengy Xin vini) nm - - - n
Xig Tzl ] k2 = = = ki
L Chengry il i) 15 - - - 15
Yia Toagy fviie) % < - 3 %
Li Wang n - - - 80
L Shusn m - - - 280
Senicr Management
Gong Chao - 436 5 58 L1
Wang Wal - 436 5 58 501
Gus Ningning f} - 201 5 EL 87
kg i il - i E § i
Ihang Keai - 878 116 129 114
Eraoutive Diector resigned
Lin Shipu i) - Bt n ] 112
Cai Huamzng i} - Fill n EL] ant
Independen Non-Exscutive
Directors resigaed
Fredenick Ma Sihing ] 150 - - - 150
Senist Managament retignad
Li Thenjiong [ - 108 i 14 153
L Xizomuan ) - 436 5 58 591
Total 1183 4,883 942 E17 425
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7  Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
({Continued)

(1) Detailk of the Diectors’, Supernisors” and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thousands of RMB) (Continued):

i} Zhou Maling was electod Chairman of the Board of Dérecrors and Execubive Direcror
effective | July 2016,

i) Zhao Huan was elected President effective 4 Masch 2076, Executive Director amd vice
Chairman of the Boand of Directors effective 24 March 2016,

W@ Ahao Huan and Low Wenlong are also the Semor Management of the Group and ther
emoluments disclosed above wolude those for senvices rendered by them as the Serior
Maragement for the year ended 31 Decomnber 2016

fivh  Lu Nanping resipaed a5 Independent Non-cxeculive Director and from positions af retevant
special coammittees of the Board of the Bank due o work arangements in December
2015, Ly Nanping will continue to perform his duty as independent Non-execulive
Director wntil e CBRC ratifies the eligibiities of the newly mominaled independent Nan-
execulive Bivecior fo meet the requiremenis of refevant regulatory rules and the Artickes of
Assaciation,

(1) Wag Xinxin was elecied independent Non-Execulive Director effective 12 May 2016,

v} Tirese Non-Executive Dwectors of the Bank did not receive any fees from the Bank
Their emolumrents were bome by the: mafor omlimary equity hotders of the Bank. No
apportiomment had been made as the Directors considered that i weas imprachicabie
[0 appostion this amownt between their services [o the Growup and their services (o the
ordinary equity holders of the Bank,

fvill  Wang Xingochun o not recelve any emoluments for his parf-time position a5 shareholder
representative supervisos from the Bank in 2016,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

{1) Detaik of the Directors’, Supenvisors’ and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows: (in thousands of RMB) (Continued):

fvilfl  For Employee Bepresentative Supenvisors of the Bank, the amounts sef forth abave only
fncluded fees for thelr services as Supensors,

fiel Ll Chenguu and Xia Zongyu were elected Supervisor Representing Employees effective 5
fuly 2016, '

fx} Guo Ningning was elected Execubive Viee President effective & June 2016,
e} Kang ¥ owas elecled Vice President effective 24 January 2017,

(i) Liu Shiyy ceased to be Chairman of the Board of Directors and Executive Dinector effective
21 Fehruary 2016.

i) Cad Huamang ceased o be Executive Vice President and Executive Director effective 14
September 2076,

vl Fiedeidek Ma Skhang eoased tobe Intlependent Noa-Execulive Diector effective 13 May
2016,

fevd)  Li Zhrergifang ceased fo be Executive Vice Fresident effective 3 March 2016,
fovil  Lin Xisoxuan ceased to be Executive Vice Fresident efféctive 16 December 2016,

fevif)  Other berefits in kind Include the Bank's contributions to medical funy, hoosing fund and'
ather social insurances. which ave payable fo labour and secuily authonties based on the
fower of certain-percenfage of the salarkes and alfowance or the prescribed upper limils as
required by the refevant requlations ssued by e government autharties,

The total compensation packages for the above Executive Directars, Supervisars and
Senbor Management for the year ended 31 December 2016 have not yet been finalized
in accordance with regulations of the relevant authornties in the FRC at the date of this
repart. The final compensation will be disclosed in a separate announcement when
determingd.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

(1) Detailk of the Diectors’, Supernisors” and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thousands of RMB) (Continued):

Executive Directoas
Liu Sheyu - B 128 58 1
Cal Hisrang (] - 544 115 b} TiT
Lou Wenlang i) = 544 115 58 riFs
Independent
Hon:Executie Digecors
Fredenck Ma S-hang 36 - - - UL
Wen Tigjan 3 = = = 349
France Yusn Tin-{an iTh - - - 1
¥iaa Xing (i} Pits - - - 292
Lu Jiznging vl - - - - -
M- Exequtive Diectors
2haa Chaa 1] - - - - -
Theu Ke il = = = = =
Zhang Cwglang [l = = - = =
Chen Janba kil - - - - -
Hu Machei {vitnll - - - - -
Ky Bzndter [kvin - - - - -
Supapamors
Yuzn Changaing fix) = 353 Fi 1 458
Wang Kingthun W - - - - -
Zheng Xin bl 3 - - - 0
Kia Zeagp fxil 30 - - - k]
Xia Teik Il 20 - - - 30
Li'Wang ] 143 - - - 143
Lv Shugin i} 143 - - = 143
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

{1) Detaik of the Directors’, Supenvisors’ and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thausands of RMB) (Continued):

Senior Managament

Gong Chiso - 544 195 54 117

Wang Wl - 544 15 5 7

Li Zhenjizng - 544 {1 58 7

Lin Maoxuan o) = in =] 30 362

Thang Keam {xe] - 04 5 100 BhZ
Execuive Deecion msigned

Zhang Yun {iv - BI5 119 58 782
Ingependent Mon-Exeoutive

[irecioes resigned

Arthory 'Wa Tigyuk ] 157 - - - 157

Giu Dang {m] 2] - - - 164
Hon-exeaiiive

Directors resigasd

hen Bingul el - - - - -

Cheng Fengehao ik - - = = =

Yize thatheng il ~ - = - -
Supenaors moigned

Che Yingen [rean) = Filks H 18 158

Jia Miangsen (] i - - - Fe]

[l Gonyou {eH 13 - - - 138
Senic Maskzement pemned

Thw Gaoaming [} - 48 4l 58 BT
Total i 5,049 1,083 £47 i, 108

252 @rEasms

315/458



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Fof the year ended 31 December 2016
famourts m milkons of Renminbi, wnless othenwnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7  Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
({Continued)

(1) Detailk of the Diectors’, Supernisors” and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thousands of RMB) (Continued):

i} Lai Huaxiamg was elected Executivg Director effective 7 September 2015,

i) Cai Huaxiang and Low Wenlong were aiso the Senior Managoment of the Group and their
emoluwments disdosed above noluded those for services rendered by them as the Senioe
KMaragernent for the year ended 31 December 2015,

g Xao Ximg was elected independent Non-Executive Direclor effective 6 March 2015,

fivt  Lu Sanping was efected independent Nom-Executive Dvechar effective 5 June 2015,

v} These Mon-Executive Dinectors of the Bank did not ceceive any fees from the Bank,
Thelr emaluments were bome by the majer ovdinary equily holders of the Hank No
apportianment had been made as the Directoss considered that it was impracticable
[0 appostion this amownt between thei services fo the Group and their services [0 the
ordinary equiiy holders of the Bank,

vt Zhang Dinglong and Chen Kanba weve elected Non-Fxecutive Direclors effective 15 lanuary
2005

fwill  Hu Kizohu was elected Non-Executive Director effective 14 January 2015,
fwllfl Mo Namdomg was elected Non-Execotive Director effective 28 February 2015,
ik Yuan Changging was elected Chafrman of the Board of Supervisors effective 29 June 2015,

f{xh Wang Xingchun o mot recelve any emoluments for his parf-time position a5 shareholder
representative supervisor from the Bank in 205,

i For Employer Representalive Supervisors of the Bank, the amounts sel forth above only
included fees for their senvices as sUpervisors.

(xi} L Wang and Ly Shugin were elecied External Supervisors effective 29 Jume 2015, amd Dar.
Gényou censed ta bi External Superdsor effective 29 June 2015
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

{1) Detaik of the Directors’, Supenvisors’ and Senior Managements emoluments are as
follows (in thausands of RMB) (Continued):
ity Lim Xisoxuan was elected Executive Mice President effective 7 Soptember 2015,
feivl  Zhang Kegiv was elecred Seciefary fo the Board of Birectors effective 24 Jume 20015,
frv)  Fhang Yo ceased o be Executive Dérecior and President effective 4 December 2015,

fxwt)  Anthony Wo Ting-yuk and Qi Dong ceased 1o be Independant Non-Execulive Diectors
effective § fume 2015

fevii)  Shen Bingwi, Cheng Fengohan and Xiso Shusheng ceased o be Non-Executive Directars
effective 16 January 2075,

ol Che Yingedn ceased to be Chalman of the Board of Supeevisors effective 28 Aprl 2015,
fxic)  Ma Niangsen ceased o be Sugervisor Representing Emplopees effective 25 Oclober 2015,
fix) S Gaoming esased fo be Secretary fo the Soard of Direciods effective 5 May 2015,

E

Other beaefits in kind inclpde the Sank’s contributions o medical fund, housing furd and
other socfal msuramces, which are payable fo labowr and secunity authoviies based oa the
fower of certain percentage of the salaries and- alfowance ar the prescribed wpper fimits as
required by the refevant regulations Bsued by the government authornies.

s of the announcement date of 2015 consolidated financial statements, the above
compensation packages for the Directors, Supervisors and Senics Management for the
vear ended 31 December 2015 were not finalized and the amount of remuneration
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management recognized and disclosed In the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2015 was RMBS.00
million. Supplementary announcement on final compensation of AMB10.11 million
was released by the Bank on 26 August 2016 and the comparative figures for the year
ended 31 December 2015 have been restated accordingly.

54 (prEanes
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
(Continued)

{2} Five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group

o

{iE}

Of the five indimduals wath the highest emoluments, none of them are directons
of supenvisors whose emoluments are disdosed above. The emoluments of the
five individuals whose emeluments were the highest in the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 21 December 2015 were as follows (in thousands

of RMB):

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Basc salanes and allowance 11,158 10,075

Discretionary bonuses 59,352 8,271
Contribution to retirerment benefit

schemes and other 998 1,091

Total 21,508 19,437

The number of these five indinidusls whase emaluments fell within the follawing

bands are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016

RMB3,500,001 10 RMB4, 000,000 yuan -
RME4, 000,001 to RMB4A, 500,000 yuan
RME4, 500,001 1o RMES, 000,000 yuan 1

For the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 Decermber 2015, no emalument was
paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals a3 an inducement to ein or
upon joining the Group or as a compensation for loss of office. For the years ended
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, none of the five highest paid individuals
wamed any emolument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 Benefits and interests of directors, supervisors and senior management
{Continued)

{3) Other benefits and interests of Directors and Supervisors pursuant to the
New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, no emolument was
paid by the Group to any of the Directors and Superdsors as an inducement fo join
oF upon jeining the Group of a3 & compensation for bose of office. Except for the
Annuity Scheme and Pension Scheme (Mote Il 7 Employee Benefits), there were no
other retirement benefits for Directors or Supervisors, or consideration provided 1o third
parties for making available Directors' or Supervisors’ services; and none of the Directors
of Superisors waived any emolument, or had material interests, whether directly or
indirectly, in any material transactions, arrangements or contracts in relation to the
Group's business for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

The Group enters into credit transactions with the Directoss, Supenisors of certain
controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supenisors at
arm’s length in the ordinary course of business. For the years ended 21 December
2016 and 31 Decermber 2015 and as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the respective
balances of loans and advances frony the Group to Directors, Supervisors of certain
controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors or Supervisors werne
not significant; the Group did ot provide any guarantee of security to the Directors,
Supervisors or certain controlled body corporates and connected entities of the Directors
or Supervisors in respect of their loans, quasi-loans or credit transactions.

8 Impairment losses on assets

Year ended 31 December

2016 015
Loans and advances to customers 78,928 81,897
Debt instruments classified as receivables 2,603 8341
Held-to-maturity investments 2,213 935
Placements with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 1,270 {1e7)
Available-for-sate tinandal assets 403 78
Property and equipment 1 -
Other 928 598
Total 86,446 84,172
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

) Income tax expense

Current income tax
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax
- Hong Kong Profits Tax
~ Other jurisdictions

Year ended 31 Decembar

58,661
410
301

Subtotal
Deterred tax (Note IV 26)

59,372
(9;289)

Total

50,083

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calcilated at 25% of the estimated taxable profit for both years,
and also includes supplementary PRC tax on Overseas Gperations as determined in accordance
with the relevant PRC income tax rules and regulations. Taxation arising in other jurisdictions
(including Hong ¥ong) is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions, Pre-tax
deduction items of enterprise income tax are governed by the relevant tax regulations in the

FRE

The tax charges for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015 can be
reconciled 1o the profit per the conselidated income statement as follows:

Frofit before tax

Year ended 31 December

230,857

Tax caleulsted arapphecable PRC
statutory tax rate of 255
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose {1}
Tax effect of items such a5 expenses
not deductible for tax purpose
Effact of different tax rates in other jurisdictions

5T Ma
(8,962)

1,361
{30)

Ineome tax expense

50,083

{1} Non-taxabde income primarily tcludes interest income from PRC treaswry bonds: amd mumicipal

govermment bomds,
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10 Dividends

Year ended 31 December

Dividends on ardinary shares declared and paid

Cash dividend related to 2015 (1) 54,176 -
Cash dividend related 1o 2014 2) - 39,113
54,176 59,113

Dividends on preference shares declared and paid
Cash dridend related 1o the preference shares () 4,600 2,400

(11 Diseibwrion of final dividend for 2015

A cash dividend of RMBQ. 1668 per ordinary shade related to 2015, amounting to RAMS54, 176
million in total was aporoved, after the required approgriations for the siatelory surplus resere
and the general reserve for 2015 a5 determined in accordance with the relevant accounting rules
amd fnamdal requiabions applicable fo PRC enderprises (the “FRC GAAPTL at the annval general
meetimg keld an 27 June 2016,

The above dividend was recognized as distribution and distribeted during the year ended 31
December 2016,

{21 Distribution of final dividend for 2014

A cash dividend of BMED 182 per ondinary share related to 2014, amownring fo RMB5S, 113
million fn total was aporoved, after the reguired aporopriahions for the siatetory surplus eserve
and Mee general reserve for 2014 a3 determined in sccordance with the relirvant accounting rubes
and finandal requlations applicable to FRC enderprises (the “FRC GAAPT), atf the annwal general
meeting beld on 29 June 2015,

The above dividend was recognized as distribution and distributed dudng the year ended 31
December 2015,

3 A final dividend of RMBO. 17 per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31 Decomber 2016
tofaling RMBSS, 215 mulfian has been proposed by the directars and s subject to approval by the
ardingry equily holders in the annual general meeting.

fd) DiEtrbution of dividend on preference shares for 2016

A cash dividend at the dividend rate of 5.5% per annom related to the second tranche of
preference shares arnounting fo RME2, 200 mitlion fn raral was aporoved ar the Board of Direclors'
Meeting held on 21 January 2016 and aisiribubed on 11 March 20716,

A cash dividend at the dividend rare of 8% pev annem related o the fiest tanche of preference
shares amownting fo RE2 400 millan i tofal was spproved af the Board of Direcios” Moshing
held on 28 Ocrober 2016 and disinbuted on 7 Novemnber 20716,

(5 Distribution of dividend on preference shares for 2015
A cash dividend at the dividend rate of 6% per annum related fo the fiest tranche of preference

shares amonting to RME2.400 million in fofad was spproved af the Seand of Direchors’ Mieeting
Hield an 23 October 2075 and distrbuted on 5 Novemier 2015,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

11 Earnings per share

Year ended 31 Decembar

2016 2015
Earnings:
Prefit for the year attributable to equity holders of
the Bank 183,941 180,582
Less: profit for the year atiributable 1o
preference shareholders of the Bank (4,600) (2,400}

Profit for the year atributable to
ardinary equity halders of the Bank 179,341 178,182

Number of shares:
Weighted average number of
ardinary shares in issue (million) 324,794 324,794

Basic and diluted earnings per share (RME yuan) 0.55 .55

For the purpose of calculating basic #arnings per share, cash dividends of RMEB£,E600 million of
non-cumulative preference shares declared in respect of the year of 2016 was deducted from
the amounts sttributable to ardinary equity holders of the Bank.

The conversion feature of preference shares is considered to fall within contingently issuable
ordmary shares. The triggering events of conversion did not occur for the years ended 31

December 2016 and 31 December 2015, therefore the conversion feature of preference shares
has no dilutive etfect on earnings per share calculation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12 Cash and balances with central banks

A% at 31 December

2016 2015
Cash 111,607 116,390
hMandatory reserve deposits with central banks (1) 2,437,536 2216082
surplus reserve deposits with central banks (2} 111,753 38,656
Other deposits with central banks (3 150,757 195,929
Total 2,811,653 2,587,057

1 The Group places mandaiory reserve deposis with the PEOC and overseas requiaiory bodles
These indlude BME reserve deposils and forelgn curmency reserve deposils. These mandatony
reserve doeposiis are not available for the Group's dally operations.

Effective from 25 March 20016, for Domestic Operalions of the Bank which meer the requirements
of “Notice on Performance. Appraizal Results OF the Sammong Banking Operafions of Agricuitural
Bank of China Limited for 2016 issued by the People’s Bank of China™ (Yinbanfa [(2016] Na, 27L
RME mandatory reserve deposits with the PEGC are based on 14.5% of qualified RMB deposits
(21 December 2315; 15%) For the remarning Domestic Cperations of the- Bank, RAME mandatory
reserve. deposits are based on 16.5% of qualified B deposits (31 December 20157 17%) For
the owerseas participating banks with eliglhie RMB deposits, AME mandalory reserve deposits are
based on 16.5% of qualified AME deposits (31 December 2015; %) Foreign corrency mandalony
seserve deposts e based on 5% (3T December 2015 5%) of qualifid foreign curmency deposis
frowm customess. Mandatory reserve deposits placed by the Bank’s Overseas Operations are
determingd based on respective overseas requlatony requinsments, The foreign. currency meserve
depasits placed with the PEOC sre non-interest bedring.

(2] Surplus reserve deposits primadtly represent deposils malntased with the FROC in addition to the
rndalony reseve deposits and mainly for the purpose of clearfog,

(3)  Other deposits with central banks primanty represent fiscal deposits and foreign exchange reserve
placed with the PEOC that are not avallable for use in the Group's dally opevations. These fiscal
drposils are non-interest bearing, sed the wlensst rate of foreign exchange reserve s fentatively
set at zero. The foreign exchange resenve is mainfained with the PAOC In accordanoe with e
related Nolive issued by the PEOC on 31 Awgust 2015, The reserve 15 payabile an a monthly basis
ar 20% of the total condract amownt of ceshomens diven fonvand fransactions n the previous
ot Swch foreign exchange resevve will be repayabie in 12 months according fo the Nolice.

260 @rEashs

323/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

12  Deposits with banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Depoasits with:
Domestic banks 5B3,545 £56.601
Other domestic financial institutions 6,471 2,748
Cverseas banks 32,976 38,581
Gross amount 622,992 697,930
Allowance for impairment knsses — collectively assessed (327) (7)
Deposits with Banks and
other financial institutions, net 622,665 697,923

As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of deposits with banks and other finamcial
instifutions which have been pledged a5 security was RMEBE, 526 million (21 December 2015:

RIMB3,240 million). These deposits were mainly security deposits pledged with dearing house
and exchanges.

14 Placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2016
Placements with and loans ta:
Domestic banks 222,526

129,493

Other domestic financial nstitutions 322,316 324,620

Oversess banks 39,239 51,743

Gross amount 583,981 505,856

Allowance for impainment losses = collectively assessed {3,032} (1,604)
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions, net 580,945 504,252
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15  Financial assets held for trading

As at 31 December

2016
Debt securities issued by:

Gewvernmants 3,290 4,464
Public sector and quasi-governments 44,554 23,734
Financial institutions 46,944 26,793
Corparates 13,307 10,039
Subtotal 108,095 65,050
Precious metal contracts 15,523 14,732
Total 123,618 79,782
Anzlyzed as:
Listed in Hong Kong 185 =
Listed outside Hong Kong in 107,910 65,050
Unlisted 15,523 14,732
Tatal 123,618 79,782

m Debt secunties traded on the Ching Domestic inter-bank Hond . Marke! are included i “Listed
outside Homg Kong™.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16 Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

2016
Debit securities issued by:

Governments 17,610 17,733
Public sector and quasi-governments 55,230 78,129
Financial institutions 63,045 23383
Corporates 35,358 22,599
Subtotal 171,243 141,844

Depasits with banks and

ather financial institutions 40,953 164,572
Macements with and loans to banks and

ather financizl institutions 58,485 5,529
Cthers (1} 23,656 47,534
Tatal 294,337 359,479
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 2,685 1,871

Listed outside Hong Kong (2} 163,101 11,267

Unlisted 128,551 246,341
Total 294,337 350,479

(i¥] Oivers mainly include crealilt assels, squity mstrvments and fund Investments.

21 Debr secoritios traded on the Ching Domestic ntesbank. Sond Marke! are incleded o “Listed
outside Homg Komg®,
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities

The Group primarily enters Into foreign exchange rate, interest rate and precious metal
derivative contracts related to trading, asset and liability management, and customer initiated
transactions.

The contractualinotional amounts and fair values of the derivative financial Instruments
entered inte by the Group are set out in the following tables, The contractual/notional
amounts of derivative financial instruments provide a basis for comparson with fair values
of instruments recognized on the consclidated statement of financial position but do not
necessarily mdscate the amounts of future cash flows invohwed or the current fair values of the
instrumnents and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
tair value of derivative instruments become tavorable (assets) or unfavorable (liabilities) as 2
result af fluctuations in market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or precious metal prices
relztive to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial assets and liabilities can
fluctuate significantly.

Certain fimancial assets and financial Nabilities of the Group are subject to enforceable master
netting arrangements or similar agreements. The agreement between the Group and the
counterparty generally allows for net setibement of the rebevant financial assets and financial
liabifities when both elect to settle on a net basis. In the absence of such an election, finandal
assets and financial liabilities will be settled on a gross basis. However, each party to the
master netting arrangements. of similar agreements will have the option 1o settle all such
amounts on a net basis in the event of default of the other party, As at 31 December 2016
and 31 December 2015, the amount of the financial assets and financial liabilities subject to
enforceable master netting arrangements or similar agreements are not material to the Group,
According to relevant standards, the Group did not elect to offset these financial assets and
financial liabilities on a net basis. The Group does not hold any other financial instruments,
other than derivatives, that are subject to master netting arrangements or similar agreements.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17  Derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

31 December 2016

Contractual/

notional Fair value

amount Assets Liakilities

Exchange rate derivatives
Cumency forwards and swaps,

and cross-currency interest rate swaps 1.382.4M 25,139 {18,410)
Currency aptions 119,352 [3:3 (1.353)
Subtotal 25,207 (19,763)

Interest rate derivatives

Interest rate swaps 258,523 1,061 (604)
Precious metal contracts and others 94,506 5192 (391)
Total derivative financial assets and liahilities 31,460 (20,758)

11 December 2015

Exchange rate derivatives
Currency forwards and swaps,

and cross-currency interest rate swaps 1,307,952 13,737 (11,102)
Currency options 22,704 134 a3
subtatal 13,871 (11,194)

Interest rate derivatives

Interast rate swaps 158,118 920 {9el)
Frecious metal confracts 32,049 1,247 {37)
Total derivative financial assets and Habilites 16,038 (12,193)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
17 Derivative financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Credit risk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparties represents the
counterparty credit risk associated with derivative transactions and is cakculated in accordance
with the “Capital Rules tor Commercial Banks (Provisional)” issued by the CBRC which was
effective 1 January 2013 and is dependent on, amang other factors, creditworthiness of
customers and maturity characteristics of each type of contract. As at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015, the credit risk weighted amount for derivative transaction counterparty
was measuned under the Internal Ratings - Based approach,

As at 31 December

2016

Credit risk weighted amount for counterparty 26,601 19,364

18 FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD UNDER RESALE AGREEMENTS

A=z at 31 December

2016 2015

Analyzed by collateral type:

Debt securities 303,120 179,068
Bills 19,931 292741
Total 323,051 471,809

The collzteral received in connection with financial assets under resale agreement is disclosed
in Mate IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments - Collateral.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1% Loans and advances to customers

Analysis ol loans and advances 1o customers:

As at 31 December

2016
Corporate loans.and advances

Loans and advances 5,803,277 5,818,306
Discounted bills 569,948 356,995
subtotal 6,373,225 6,175,301
Personal loans and advances 3,348,414 2,734,617
Gross boans and advances 9,719,639 8.5805,918

Allowance for impairment losses

Individiszlly assessed {133,605) (133,900

Callectively assessed {266,670) (260,343)

Total allowance for impairment fosses (400,275) 1403,243)
Loans and advances 1o customers, net 9,219,364 8,506,675
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
13 Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

Analysis of loans and advances to customers by collective and individual assessments:

Loans and |dentified impaired

llowance s all i ance | total gross

lans an
Subsotal
31 Decerber 2016
ot Inaie and-advancss 943885 37,986 191,543 2hR E 5,715,639 bk

ABawarce foe mmpaiment v FELRT (23,394) (133,505} (152, 504) {430,275}

Loans and adwanies 1
CUSIOIES, NI 9150134 5981 55,043 8,230 3315384
31 Dieoeamber J015
e baan and anwEnces BEAT 51 31,888 16978 12867 2508 98 2B

Alowarce for mpaiment ks (24T 254} 122,083 {13350 {135,245 (403,243

Laans and adwences 12
Customar, nat 8445757 5880 &0 56,578 £ 506575

1 Loans and advances for which allowance 5 collectively dssessed consist of Joans and sdvances
which have not been specifically identified as impaired,

2] Identified impaked loans and advances include loans for which objective evidence of impairment
exisls and which have been identified as bearing impairment fosses, which are. measuced either
imifviciually foorporate fcans and advances) ov coflectively (personal foans and advances),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
(ameounts m milkons of Renminbi, urless othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1% Loans and advances to customers {Continued)

Meverments of the allowance for iImpairment losses on loans and advances 1o cUSOmers:

Year ended 31 December 2016

Individually  Collectively

assessed assessed

allowance allowance
1 Jameary 2016 133,900 269,343 403,243
Inpairment allowance on loans charged 96,110 64,216 160,326
Reversal of impairment allowance (21,941) (59,457} {81,398)
Mer additions 74,169 4,759 78,928
Wiite-offs and transfer out (73,949) (8,797) {82,746)
Recovery of loans and advances

written oft in previous years 825 1,421 2,346

Umwinding of discaunt an allowance {1.720) {479) (2,209)
Exchange difference 290 423 M3
31 December 2016 133,605 266,670 400,275

Total
358,011

1 laniary 2015 73,094

I

284,977

Impairment alicwance on loans charged 103,532 49,622 153.154
Reversal of impairment allowance (8,447} (B2.810) (71.257)
Met additions 95,085 (13,188) 81,897
Wirite-offs and transfer out (33,921) (7,408) 141,229)
Recovery of loans and advances

written off in previous years 805 425 1,230
Unwinding of discount on allowance {1,302} {483} {1,765)
Transter in - 4,626 4626
Exchange difference 139 374 513
21 December 2015 133,900 269,343 403,243
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20 Available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31 December

2016
Debt securities issued by:

Gewvernmants 464,613 333 537
Public sector and quasi-governments 383,861 465,630
Financial institutions 353,335 176,548
Corparates 188,869 226,882
subtatal 1,390,678 1,202,597
Fund investments i1 7.015 6,586
Equity instruments (1) 5370 5359
Others 5.818 -
Total 1,408,881 1,214,542
Analyzed as!
Debt securities
Listed in Hong Kong 68,431 41,923
Listed outside Hong Kong (2} 1,260,325 1,148,771
Unlisted 61,822 11,503
Equity instruments and fund investments and others
Listed in Hong Kong 2,354 306
Listed outside Hong Kong 9,169 7,687
Unlisped (3) 6,680 3,862
Total 1,408,881 1,214,542

(] The Group's other avallabio-for-sale financal assets primanly indude assers management products
imvested by the Group, Fund isvestments and other are umconsolidafed structured enhities held by
Growp,

21 Debt secwrities traded on the China Damestic inter-bank Bond Markei are incleded in *Listed
oulsile Homg Kong®.

) As ab 31 December 2016, unilsted equity instruments of the Grodp amounted 1o RMEZZT milion
was measured 3t cost because thelr fair value cannot be refiably measwed (31 December 205;
AMBI 14 millvon),
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

21 Held-to-maturity investments

As at 31 December

2016
Debit securities issued by:

Governments 1,320,638 852 367
Public sector and quasi-governments 1,129,986 1,061,581
Financial institutions 263,950 202,729
Corporates 171,604 185,967
Gross amotnt 2,886,178 2,202,644

Allowance tor impairment losses = collectively

assessed (4,026) {1,820}
Held-to-rraturity invastments, net 2,882,152 2,300,824
Analyzed as:

Listed in Hong Kong 3,518 6,221

Listed outside Hang Kong (1) 2,868,782 2,278,021

Unlisted 9,852 16,582
Total 2,882,152 2,300,824

{1 Debr secuities traded on the Ching Domestic inter-bank Bond Marker are included in “Lizhed
aulside Hong Kong”™.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
22 Debt instruments classified as receivables

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Recersable from the MOF (i 272,023 272,023
sSpecial government bond (2} 93,300 93 300
Government bonds 120,618 42 241
Public sectar and guasi-government bonds 29,997 39,786
Financial Institution bonds 64,130 57,339
Corporate bonds 20,983 32514
Certificate treasury bonds and
savings treasury bonds 2,990 2,029
Others (3) 25,160 18,733
Gross amount 629,201 559,465

Allowance tor impairment losses

Individually assessed (3,516} {1,470)

Collectively assessed (1,138) {575}
Total allowance for impairment losses (4,654) {2,045)
Debt instruments classified as receivables, net 624,547 557,420
Analyzed as:

Listed outside Hong Kong 261,027 107,228

Unlsted 368,174 452,237
Total 629,201 559,465

1) Pursuant fo the "Notice on Relevant issues Concerning the Disposal of Non-perforning Assels of
Agricufiural Bank of Ching” (Calin 2008] No. 138} izswed by the MGFE recefvable from the MOF ix
to: be settled danually aver § tentative period of 15 vears starting from | Jansry 2008 and bears
interest at the mte of 3.3% per annum

2] Special government bond refers to the non-fransferable bond isswed by the MOF fn 1998 in the
aggregate principal smount of RMESE.3 bdlian fo the Predecessor Entily for capital replenishment,
The bond will mature in 2028 and bears interest at 8 fixed rate of 2.25% per annum, starting
from. I December 2008,

3 Orher deb! instruments classified a3 recefvables are primarly celated to investment in
unconsidated stiuchred entities held hy the Gowp.

272 @rE2ans

335/458



EDINETOOOO
O0O00000000000(Ee24593)
ooOooood

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23 Investment in subsidiaries and structured entities

{1} Investment in subsidiaries

The tollowing are the principal subsidiarnes of the Group as at 31 December 2016:

Ches Agkud Ihoweebet 158 Rorghong FC  HEDSES 000 000 BN eined hokdeg
Forargy o, 4

MEC vt 11Nk J008  Hoe Kong ML MO I E0A0 100ube: M it foldey
Fioldhegs mited

A3 Fruncil Ly Himebe [0 Segha BC - RS 00000 100 Em MW el g
T L.

Anpiui Rark of Btcwermber 3011 London, United PR 0 o0 LT fariing
Chirw 210 it Fiegdon

RECCA R TEMwR 00 - Shnghal BC RSS20 000 a1 WET SLE)  urd e
Maraemend (o, Lid

B8 eugien Resa! ITgar 0B et Monoh, R 60 0 51 518 by
Rk Limted FRC
bty Compary

BB Hobe Hardwen | 17 oyt AR b PR B3 B 00 £l ] BEE) Sariing
Rl Bk Lmvbed
Lably Lomary

AR el ark T My 110 R, PR RIS 400000 na il Exring
Lot Lintaty Ciampury

AR Ao Fund Bark JiMtech IO S, FEC RLE 000, 000 50 il Lriting
Lited Lty {armpury

AEC Dy Vorglang Nk 01 Thejang, B FRELI10,000. 600 i) 510 =]
Fural B Vit
Lty Coepary

5C men Tong T ey 21T e, FC R 00 000, ] S By
Feoral Bk [imited
Luabily Lorpary

MEC eiemamce (o W B0 15 Decembee XIS Bgni AL AEIMASEATS 51 SLm L ey

Aggiouur Bk o Chia TMoerbe M Rosmbouy FURCHL 08, 006 1000 LT iy
[apricerg s [

Agrnudturd fark of Chew dierrbe 00 Mowos R RUAETAD0000.000 e 1 Earking
{Wutoe) Eriled
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
23  Investment in subsidiaries and structured entities (Continued)
{1} Investment in subsidiaries {Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there were no changes in the proportion of
equity interest or voting rights the Group held in its subsidiares.

il Twro of the thiee directors on the board of ABC Hubei Hanchuan. Rursl Sank Unwited
Liability Company weve appointed by the Bank. The Bank conclded thar it has effeciive
contiod over this entity and has incleded it in its tonsofidation scope.

fiy  Gn 31 December 2012 the Bank acquired 51% of the ssued share capital of lishe (ife
insurance Co., Lid and renamd it a5 ABC Life msugnce Co, Ltd (ARC Life fnsurance™)
amd the Group recogmized goodwill of RMET, I8! miliion as a result of this-acquisition.

Duirrg the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group and orher iwvestors contribuled
adaitiongl capital totally RAMB3,761 milfon jo ABC Life Inturgnce, ingiading regisiened
capital of RMEGTY million and rapital resenve of RMBZ 844 million, Afrer the capital
injection, the proporfion of equily interes! ond voling righis the Group held fn ABC
Life Insurance remamed at 51%, Confrbution by non-contfrollmg interest amownted fo
R 1,843 miion,

As ar 31 vmmber_m'm there was no objective évidence noted for any goodadll
impaiment.

Far the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no restriction on the Groups ability
10 access or Use its assets and settle its liabilities.

{2}  Structured enlities

The Group also consolidated structured entities s disclosed in Note IV 46 Structured
Entities.
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Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
(ameounts m milkons of Renminbi, urless othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24 Investment in associate

31 December

2016

Investrrent in associate 213 273

On 28 May 2015, the Sino-Congolese Bank of Africa (La Bangue Sino-Congolaise pour
I'afrique, herein referred to as BSCABank), established by the Bank and other investors
with authorized capital denominated in Central African CFA franc (" XAF™), was granted the
required banking license by the local regulatory autherity. The Bank holds 50% equity interest
and vating rights in BSCA Bank, and has the right to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of BSCA Bank, but does not constitute control or joint control over those
policy decisions.

25 Property and equipment

Electronic
equipment,
furniture and Motor Construction
Buildings fixtures vehicles  in progress

Cost

1 January 2016 155,264 62,547 4,586 10,833 243250
Add mians 1,691 6,973 3,843 B30 0,817
Transfers 6,824 2B6 1 (7.111) L
Despasals {341) (5.603) (121} m {6, E66)
31 December 1016 162,858 4,203 8,309 22,031 257,401
Accienilated depraciation

Vlanuary 2016 (46,618) (37.2718) (2.858) - (B6,754)
Charge for the year (7.534) (7,853} (3 - [16,264)
Eliminated an cioposals 520 1973 107 - 4,600
31 Decamber 16 (54.032) 41.258) (3.128) = (48,418)
Allowange for impaimment foses

1 Janizany 2016 (259) (@) (2 (&) (318)
Iripaerment boss 1) - - - n
Eliminated on disposal 4 1 - - 5
31 Decemser 216 (29%) (8) (2) () (314)
Camying valus

31 Decamber 2016 108,530 11,97 5179 2,023 158,660
1 Janiany 2016 108,367 25,260 1726 20,825 156,178
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

25 Property and equipment (Continued)

Cost

| danuary 2015 142,795 56,048 4314 23,885 217,542
Additions 2,685 7,563 E 8,008 18,665
Transiers 10,210 354 - (18574} -
Diaposals 147 (1828 (236} (486} {2,957}
31 December 2015 155,264 62,547 4,588 20,833 243,250
Accumalated deprecistion

1 danuary 2015 {36,733} {30,788) [2,753) - (12.274)
Lharge for the year (8,129) 18,283} {325} B (16,743}
Eliminated on disposals 244 1,745 4 - 3163
31 December 2015 (4EE1E) 137 278} (2,858} - {85,754}
Alicwcance Tor impairment osces

1 danuany 2015 1239) {9 2] L {318
Imgrakmant ks - - i - =
Eliminated on- diposa - - - - -
31 Drecember 2015 (2995) {9 (2} {5} {318)
Camying value
31 December 2015 108,367 25,2640 1,726 20,825 156,178
1 January 2015 103,763 25,251 2058 23,877 154,950

According to the relevant laws and reqgulations, subsequent to the Bank’s transformation nto
2 joint stock company, the legal title of properties previously held by the Predecessor Entity
are to be transferred to the Bank, As ar 31 December 2016, the registration transfer process
of certain properties has not been completed. Management believes that the incomplete
registration framsfer process does not affect the rights of the Bank as the legal successor 1o
those assets.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26 Deferred taxation

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of financial position, certain
deterred tax assets and: liabilities have been offser when there & 2 legally enforceable right
to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate 1o the same fiscal authonty. The followang 15 the analysis of the deferred tax balances:

As at 31 December

2016 5
Detemred tax assets 83,187 81,548
Deferrad tax liahilities (58) {111)
Net 83,129 81,437

(1) The following are the movements and major deferred tax assets and liabilities
recognized:

Provigon

| lanrary 2015 7,185 L 1431 4 (4,607} 23 B4
(Changelired 10 the

roesobdared inpome

STShAmBeE {1,154 m {e0g) 1.0 L} [Z [4,6a3)
Lt e

ComprehensyE MIGTE - - - - (K] - (%1
31 Depemier 016 15831 GE18 131 3358 (4413} 4 A

1 Ry 201 AL f.14 123 £ F0i i“ 8

Crdithhargl 1o the

oatdared feome

S 9571 19 (304 i 1 2581 42 k]
Chasge 1 cther

marehensg neome - - - - 1M - BT
31 Ereemiber 1015 1185 B4 153 440 e i BLA3T
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
26 Deferred taxation (Continued)

{2} Deferred income tax assetsiliabilities) and relsted temporary differences, before
otfsetting qualitying amounts, are attributable to the following items:

31 December 2016

Deductible/
[taxable) Deferred
temporary Tax assots!
difference  (liabilities)
Deferred tax assets
Allowance far impairment losces 303,723 75,931 308,741 77,185
Staff cost aocrued but not paid 27,270 5,818 25,765 f,441
Fair value changes of
financial instruments 24,340 §,085 15,703 3,926
Prowision 13,5580 3,398 17,682 4421
Early retirement benefiis 5,325 1,33 7,724 1,931
Onhers 359 88 392 97
Subratal 374,607 93,651 376,007 94,001

Deferred tax liabilities
Fair value changes of

Hinancal instruments (41,992) {10,498} (50,1300 {12,533)
Dhers (83) (24} (125} {31
Subtatal (42,090) {10,522) (50, 255) {12 564)
Nat 332,517 83,129 335,752 81,437
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27 Other assets

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Interest receivable 110,270 104,775
Land wse rights (1) 22418 23,036
Accounts receivable and temporary payments (2} 78,998 44576
Premiums receivable and reinsurance assets 16,670 27.001
Irvestrent propery 3,213 2,997
Leng-term deferred expenses 3,103 3,587
Intangible assets 2,848 2,740
Foreclosed assets 1,945 1,699
Value-added tax receivable 1,430 -
CHhers 3.834 4,892
Total 244,829 215,303

(F) According o the refevant laws and regulations, subseguent fo the Banks tansformation info a
Joat stack company, fand use oghls previously hedd by the Predecessor Enfily are to be transferred
o the Bank. Az at 31 December 2076, the registration fransfer process: of ofetain lard use rights
has not been completed, Management befieves that the incomplete registration travsier process
daes mal affect the rights of the Sank as the legal suecodssor to those land uss rights

20 Acrownrs recolvalile and fempodary payments primarily indlode items i the process of cleasing and
settiement,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
28 Borrowings from central bank

Az at 31 December 2016, barrawings from central bank neainly included Medium-term Lending

Facilities from FBOC amounting fo RMBZB9,000 million (31 December 2015 RMB3E 600

rrillion).

289 Deposits from banks and other financial institutions

Az at 31 December

2016
Deposits from:
Domestic banks 178,354 116,519
Other domestic financial institutons 947,210 1,091,258
Owerseas banks 5220 9514
Cther owerseas financial institutions 25,260 4,610
Total 1,156,044 1,221,901

30 Placements from banks and other financial institutions

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Placerments fram:

Dormestic banks and other financial institutions 123,108 145,255
Owerseas banks and other financial institutions 178,913 170,504
Total 302,021 315,759

31 Financial liabilities held for trading

The financial liabilities held for trading are liabilities related to precious metal contracts
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

32

a3

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Principal guaranteed wealth management products 283,666 406,407

The Group deskgnates wealth management products with principal guarantesd by the Grolp
35 financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. The corresponding investments are
designated as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. As at 31 December 2016
and 31 Decernber 2015, the ditference between the fair value of these products issued by the
Group and the contractual amount payable to the holders of these products upon maturity
was not material,

For the corrent and price year, there were no significant changes in the fair valoe of the
Group’s financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss attributable 1o the
changes in the Group's own credit risk.

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Analyred by type of coltateral:

Debt securities 205,022 88,333
Bills 810 471
Total 205,832 88,804

The collateral pledged under repurchase agreement is disclosed in Mote IV 47 Contingent
Liabilities and Commitments = Coflateral.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

34 Due to customers

As at 31 December

2016
Demand deposits

Corporate customers 3,902,828 3,229 703

Individual customers 4,536,249 3,898 806
Time deposits

Corparate cUstomers 1,778,060 1,662,658

Individual customers 4,286,428 4,174 684
Pledged deposits {n 338,065 319,757
Others 196,371 252,752
Tetal 15,038,001 13,538 360

{1} Analyzed by activity to which pledged deposits are related to:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Guarantee and letters of guarantes 100,896 66,093
Bank acceptance 86,167 113,421
Trade finance 75,375 77903
Letters of credit 30,118 16,729
Others 45,50% 45601
Total 338,065 319,757

35 Debt securities issued

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Bonds issued () 202,107 198.476
Certificates of deposit issued (2) 147,245 165,508
Commercial papers issued (3} 28,711 11,586
Interbank certificates of deposit issued (4} 10,152 7072
Tetal 388,215 382,742

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, there was no default related to any debt
securities issued by the Group.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 Debt securities issued {Continued)
{1} The camying value of the Group’s bonds isseed are as follows:

As at 31 December

2016

4.15% RME fixed rate Green Bonds:

maturing in October 2017 {id &00 &00
2.125% USD fixed rate Green Bonds

maturing in October 2018 {iiy 2,175 2,507
2.75% UISD fixed rate Green Bonds

maturing in October 2020 (i) 3468 3,247
Medium term notes issued {iv} 40,383 37.164
4.0% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in May 2024 v 25,000 235,000
5.3% subordinated fixed rate bonds

maturing in June 2026 (v} 50,000 50,000
4.99% subardinated fiwed rate bonds

maturing in December 2027 {wii} 50,000 50,000
5.8% Tier-two capital fixed rate bonds

maturing n August 2024 (i} 30,000 30,000
Total nominal value 202,226 198,608
Less: Unamortized issuance cost and discounts (119} {132}
Carrying value 202,107 198,476
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 Debt securities issued (Continued)
{1} The carrying value of the Group’s bonds [ssued-are as follows: (Cantinued)

Pursuant to the approval by relevant regulatory authorities, the bonds issued by the
Group are set cut as below:

fil The RME green bonds isswed i London in Golober 2015 have a tenor of 2 years, with a
fixed coupon rate 4, 15%, payable semi-anmually

fiff.  The USD green bonds issved in London i October 2015 have & tenor of 2 yeavs, with a
fixed coupon rate 2 125%, payable semd-annually,

fiild  The USD green bonds issued i London i Ocleber 2015 have & temor of 5 years, with a
fixed coupon rate 2,.75%, payabie semi-smnomlly

fivk  The medivm tenm rotes (TMTVE were sseed by the Ovesedas Operations of the Group and
are measured at amortized cost. The deralls of medivm ferm noles Bseed were as follows:

As gt 31 December 20716

Maturity dates Qutstanding
ranging from Coupon rates (%] halance
Fizpd rate UE0 MTNS Cretober 2007 to 18752878 26,765
June 2021
Fioed rate RME MTHS May 207 to 3.35-3.80 3350
August 2019
Fipating rate LISD MTNs March 2017 to F-manth V50 LIBOR .78
September 2019 plus 0.75 10 1.33
Fixed rade ELIR MTNS March 2017 .48 365
Jorey cotipan USD BTN February 2017 - 118
Tatal 40,283

Fired rafe LSD MTNS Ay 2ONE o

0.5-2.575 27,055

May 2020

Fized ride RME MTN; My SOT6 to 3.23-3.90 &,041
Aupirst 2018

Fipating rate U530 MTNS Septemnber 2016t Bwmoath LSO LASOR £ 500
My ANE o 043 1o 1.33

Fizpg rate EUR MTNG Marely 2076 fo [ERE 497
March 2017

Fived rade HED MTNS Mareh 2006 10 La-I 15 #12
fune 2018

Freed rate JPY MTN March 2018 a 108

Jevo coupan AAE MTN Febriary 005 s

Tatal 37064
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
35 Debt securities issued {Continued)

(1) Thecarying value of the Group's bonds issised are as follows: (Continued)

v Tive subordingted faed rate bonds Smeed in May 2009 have g tenge of 15 years, with a
fixedd coupon rate of 4.0%, payalie annually. The Bank fas &n option fo rediem o8 of the
bands at face value on 20 May 2079, If the Bank did nor exevdgse this option, the coupan
rate of the bonds will imcrease fo 7,0% pev annom from 20 May 2079 onwards,

vt The subordinated fixed rate bonds issued In june 2001 have & tenor of 15 years, with a
fixed coupon rate of 5.3%, payalle anneally. The Bamk has an option 1o redeem all of fhe
bonds at face value on 7 fure 2021, If the Bank did nof exercise this option, the coupon
rale of the bomds wowld remaie 38 5:3% per annum from P lume 2071 onwards.

i) The subordinated fived rate bonds issued in December 2002 have a tenor of 15 years, with
a fored coupon rate of 4.99%, payable annually The Bank has an option fo sedeem all of
the bonds at face valoe on 20 December 2022, | the Bank oid not exercise s option,
the coupan rate of the bands would remain at- 4389 per annum fram 20 December 2022
omyands,

fwilf)  The Tiertoo cap.l’l‘a!ﬂ bonds issued it August 2004 have a femar of 10 years, with a fised
coupon rafeof 5.8% peyable annually, The Bank has an option o redeem parl or all of the
bonds ar face valee on 17 August 2018 if specifed redemplion conditions a5 shipulaned
in the offering. documents were met, subject to regulatony -aporoval, If the Bank did nol
exercise this aplion, the colpon rale of the bonds wowld remain al 5.8% per annum from
18 Avgust 2018 amwards. These Ther-two capital bonds have the write-town feature of a
Tigehong capital instrument, which alows the Bank fo wiite down the entire pringipal of
the bands when regulatory Inggening events as stipulated in the offering docwments occur
and any accumuoiared wnpaidd miemst would bocome not payable, and! they are gualified as
Tier-twea Capital Instrurments in sccordance with the CERC requirements.

(2) At at 31 December 2016, the certificates of deposit were issued by the Overseas
Operations 'of the Group and were measured a1 amortized cost. The terms of the
certiticates of deposit range trom one month to seven years, with interest rates ranging
from 0% to 5.8%. As at 31 December 2015, the terms ranged fram seven days ta
seven years with interest rates ranging from 0% to 4.5%.

(3) As at 31 Decamber 2016, the commercial papers were issued by the Overseas
Qperations of the Group and were measured at amortized cost. The terms of the
commercial papers range from one month to two years, with interest rates ranging from
0.03% to 6.4%. As at 31 December 2015, the terms ranged from seven days to one
year, with interest rates ranging from 0% fo 1.05%.

(4) - Asar 31 December 2018, the interbank certificates of deposit were issued by the Bank's
Head Office. The terms of the interbank certificates of deposit range from one month o
two years, with interest rates ranging from 2 68% to 4.39%. As at 31 December 2015,
the terms ranged fram three months 1o two year with interest rates raniging from 0%
1o 3.32%.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36 Other liabilities

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Interest payable 229,115 235,383
Clearing and settlement 87,093 69,419
Insurance liabilities 75,728 €4.589
staft costs payable (1} 35,902 39,880
Amaunt payable to the MOF (2 26,293 7.330
Income taxes payable 18,356 38,087
Provision 13,580 17,682
VAT and other taxes payable 5,222 T
Dormant accounts 1,782 1.576
Others 49,338 52,514
Total 545,319 528,597

{1}  Staff costs payable

As at 31 December

2016

Shart-term employee benefits (i 33,956

Defined contribution benetfits (b 621 445
Early retirement benefits i) 5,325 7,724
Total 39,902 39,890
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

36 Other liabilities (Continued)

{1}  Staff costs payable {Continued)

(i}  Short-term employee benefits

2016
1 lanuary Ancrued Paid 31 December
Salanes, bonuses,
llowance and subsices (@) 17173 10,770 (B69,019) 25,524
Hausing fureds 1a) 178 28,638 [8,661) 155
Socizl imsurance inciading: {3h 124 5018 (4,964) 176
= Medical insuranoe 107 4,524 (8,475) 156
= Maternity msurance ] 2 {308) 16
~ Employmant infury
insprance ] 184 {184) 4
Labioe union fess and staf
edication expenses 3,981 L8258 {2,168) 4418
hers 3,665 9414 {9,408) 3,683
Total nm 96,473 (94, 238) 33,95

Satanes, Donuges,

allowance and subsicees (M W, 1E 67,513 167, 368) 13713
Housing funds fal 183 8,351 (3, 858) 178
Social insurance inchading: {2y 178 4,956 {5,070} 24

- Medical insuranpe 154 4,317 14,364} 107

- Maternity maiirance 12 ELY 1355 8

= Empioyment injury

IFSLANCe 12 287 {291} 8

Labor umion fees and stafl

edlcation expenses 3ig3 3,026 {2,226} 3481
Others 3180 8458 (8,973} 3665
Total 30,4952 G380 163,035) 3

fa} Salanies; bonuses, alfowance amd subsidies, housing funds and 5003/ nsurance are
wmely distributed and pald In accomEmee with the refevant faws and reguiations
and the Group’s policy.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 20016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 Other liabilities (Continued]
{1}  Staff costs payable (Continued)

(i)  Defined contribution benefits

2016
1 January Averued Paid 31 December
Baxic pansans 396 11,332 (11,272} 456
Unemployment insurance 44 545 {554) 35
Annurly Scheme 5 3427 {3.302) 130
Tetal 445 15,304 (15128} 621

Basic pansons =41 11,450 {11,205} 1%

Unemployment instrance 2 121 {743 44
Annuity Scheme 14 3380 {3,288} 5
Tetal 621 15,151 {15,327} 445

The defined contribution benefits are timely distributed and paid in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations and the Group's policy.

{i)  Early retirement benefits

016

1 January Acorued Paid 31 Decembear
Earhy ot Iretriayt Baafing 1,724 [241) {2,158) 5315

Earty retirement benefits 8,538 1,334 {2,608} 1734
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
36 Other liabilities (Continued)
(1)  Staff costs payable (Continucd)
fiil}  Early retirement benefits (Continued)

The principal assumptions used for the purpose of the actuarial valuations were
a5 follows:

As at 31 December

2016 215
Discount rate 3.05% 257 %

Annual average medical expense growth rate B.O0% 8.00%
Annual subsidies growth rate 8.00 % 8.00%
Normal retirement age
- Male &0 &0
- Femrale 55 55

Aszumphions regarding future mortality experience are based on the China Life
Insurance Mortality Table (year 2000 - 2003) {published historical statistics in
China).

Any difference arising from the actual result or changes in assumptions may
atfect the amount of expense recognized in the consolidated income statement.

{2} Amount payable to the MOF
Fursuant to the “MNotice on Relevant lssues Concerning the Disposal of Non-performing
Assets of Agricultural Bank of China® (Caijin [2008] Mo, 138) ssued by the MOF
the MOF commissioned the Banmk to manage and dispose of non-performing assets

transterred. The amount payable to the MOF represents proceeds collected by the Bank
trom the disposal of these non-performing assets on behalf of the MOF
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37 Ordinary shares

For the current and prios year, there was no change in the Bank's ordinary share capital

As at 31 December
2016 and 2015

Number
of shares
{millions) Nominal value

Registered, issued and fully paid:

& shares of RMEB1 each 294,055 294,055
H shares of RMB1T each 30,739 30,739
Total 324,794 324,794

28

290 @rEashs

A share refers to the ordinary shares listed in the Mainland China. They are offered and
traded in RMB, H share refers to the ordinary shares fisted in Hong Kong. Their par value is
denominated in RME when they were initially offered and are currently traded in HZE.

As at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, all of the Bank's A Shares and H Shares
were not subject to bock-up restriction

Preference shares

lssped lspead

Firan tial nunber  noming
mstruments fsued price of shares wakie
0 Dévidend rate [RME yuas)  Amilbas) [mlbiont]  Mabaity dute Comdtion
Frefirence s B per anrm for the st § paare 106 4 R0 Nomaturiy dace No conierson
~drit vanche dr nmante, and reorinsd diing e ey
Beny S years at sl below
Preference sam 5.5% per annenn for the fret § years 100 A 00 Nomasemy e Noronverion
-wondTende s e, o e sy furing e i
§years o vlted el

The Bank was authorized 1o issue 800 million preterence shares of RMBI0OD each, pursuant 1o
the approval by its ordinary equity holders and relevant requlatory authaorities.

The tirst tranche of 400 million preference shares were issued at par in November 2014, The
carnying amount, net of direct ssuance expenses, was RMB29,944 milllan a5 at 31 December
2018 The first tranche preference shares bear a dividend rate of 6% per annum, dividends are
non-cumulative and where payable, is paid annually, for the first tive years from issuance. The
dividend rate will be repriced every five years thereafter with reference to the five-year PRC
treasury bonds yield plus a Tixed premium of 2.29%
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
38 Preference shares (Continued)

The second tranche of 400 million preference shares were issued at par in March 2015, The
carrying amount, net of direct issuance expenses, was RMBZZ, 955 million as at 31 December
2016, The second tranche preterence shares bear a dividend rate of 5.5% per annum,
dividends are non-cumulative and where payable, is paid annually, for the first five years from
Issuance. The dividend rate will be re-priced every five years thereafter with reference 1o the
five-year PRC treasury bonds yield plus a fived premium of 2.24%.

There were no changes in the carnying amounts of the preference shares since issuance.

&5 authorized by the shareholders' annual general meeting, the Board of Directors has the
sole discretion to declare and distribute dividends on preference shares, The Bank shall not
distribute any dividends to its ordinary equity holders betore it decares such dividends to
preference shareholders for the relevant pericd, The distribution of preference shares dividend
is at the Bank’s discretion and & non-cumulative, Preference shareholders are not entitled to
participate in the distribution of retained profits except for the dividends stated above.

The Bank has redemption option when specified conditions as stipulated in the offering
documents 2re met, subject to regulatory approval, whereas preference shareholders have no
right to require the Bank to redeem the preference shares.

Upon liquidation, the clams of preference shareholders have priority over ordinary equity
holders on the residual assets of the Bank, but are subordinated to those of depositors,
general creditors, Tier-two Capital Instruments holders or any other subordinated debt holders
with equivalent rights.

Upon accurrence of the triggening events as stipulated in paragraph 2(3) of the Guidance
of the China Banking Regulatory Commission on Commercial Banks' Inmovation on Capital
Instrurments (CBRC Mo, 56 [2012]) and subject to regulatory approval, preference shares
shall be mandatorily converted into ordinary A shares of the Bank at the conversion price of
RMBEZ 43 yuan per share, partially or enfirely. The conversion price of the preference shares
will be adjusted where certain events occur including bonus issues, rights issue, capitalization
of reserves and new issuances of ordinary shares, subject to terms and formulas provided for
in the offering documents, to maintain the: relative interests between preference shareholders
and ordinary equity holders,

These preferance shares are classified as equity instruments, and presented as equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, and; are qualified a5 Additional Tier-one Capital
Instruments in accordance with the CBRC requirements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 20016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse siated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
39 Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the premium related to ofdinary shares issued by the Bank in

2010 Share premium was recorded in the capital reserve after deducting direct issuie expenses,

which consisted primarily of undenariting tees and protessional fees.

40 Investment revaluation reserve

2016

Gross
amount Tax effect Net effect
1 lanuary 2016 29,907 (7.478) 22,429
Fair value changes on avallable-for-sale
financial assens
= Amount of losses recognized directly
in other comprehensive income (24,570) 6,140 {18,430)
- Amount remaved fram other
comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss (562) 141 (421)

31 December 2016 4,775 (1,197} 3,578

1 January 2015 4176 {1,038) 3,118
Fair value changes on available-tor-sale
financial assets
= Amount of gains recognized directly
in other comprehensive income 26,218 {6,542) 19,676
= Amount remaoved fram other
comprehensive income and
recognized in profit or loss 1487} 122 1363]

31 December 2015 29,907 {7,478) 22,429
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
41 Surplus reserve

Under PRC Law, the Bank & required to transfer 10% of its net profit determined under the
FRC GAAP to 2 non-distributable statutory surplus reserve. Appropriation o the statutory
surplus reserve may cease when the balance of this reserve has reached 50% of share
capital. Pursuant to the resolution of the Board of Directors’ Meeting held on 28 March
2017, an appropriation of 10% of the profit tor the current year, determined under the
generally accepted accounting principles of the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve, in the
amseunt of RMB18 204 million (2015: RMB18,078 millkon) was approved. In addition, certain
subsidiaries and overseas branches also appropriated surplus reserves in accordance with local
requirements.

subject to the approval of the equity holders, the statutory surplus reserves can be used for
replenishing accumulated losses or increasing the Bank's ordinary share capital The statutony
surplus reserves amount used to indrease the ordinary share capitzl & limited to & bevel where
the balance of the statutory surplus reserves after such capitalization is not less than 25% of
the ordinary share capital

42 General reserve

Pursuant to Caijin [2012] No. 20 “Requirements on Impairment Allowance for Financial
Institutions™ {(the “Requirement”) issued by the MOF effective 1 July 2012, in addition to
impairment allowance, the Bank establishes a2 general reserve within equity holders' equity
through the appropriation of profit to address unidentified potential impairment risks. The
general reserve should not be less than 1.5% of the aggregate amount of risk assets as
defined by the Requirement. The general reserve includes regulatory reserve appropriated
by the Banks overseas branches ("Cwerseas Institutions®) pursuant to local regulatory
requirements.

Fursuant to relevant PRC regulatory requirements, some domestic subsidiaries of the Bank are
required to appropriate certain amounts of their net profit as general resenves,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
42 General reserve (Continued)

During the year ended 21 December 2016, the Group transferred RMB22,699 million (2015:
RMB18,899 million) to the General Reserve pursuant to the regulatory requirements in the
PRC and averseas jurisdictions. Of this amount, RMB22,464 million (2015: RME18,721 million)
related to the appropriation proposed for the year ended 31 December 20015 which was
approved in the annual general meeting held on 27 June 2016,

On 28 March 2017, the Board of Directors® mesting approved 2 proposal of appropriation of
RMB21,947 million 1o general reserve. Such appropriation will be recognized in the Group's
consolidated financial statements after approval by ordinary equity holders in-the forthcaming
annual general meeting

43 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash tlows, cash and cash equivalents
include the tollowing balances with an original maturity of three mmonths or less:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Cash 111,607 116,390
Balance with central banks 114,830 490,035
Deposits with banks and ather financial institutions 168,369 128,173
Placerments with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 172,012 234,139
Financial assets held under resale agreements 260,880 253,232
Total 827,698 821,969
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 Qperating segments

Operating segments are identified on the basis of internal management reports with respect
ta the components of the Group that are regulacly reviewed by the Board and relevant
management committess, which constitite the chief operating decision makers, for the
purposes of alfocating resources to segments and assessing their performance. The Group's
chief operating decision makers review three ditferent sets of financial infermation based on
(i} geographical locations, (i} business activitees and (i) County Area amwd Urban Area banking
business.

The measurement of segment assels and labilities, as well as segment revenue, expense
and results is based on the Group's sccounting policies. There s no difference bebween the
accounting policies used in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements and those
used in preparing the operating segment infarmation

Transactions between segments are conducted under normal commercial terms and conditions.
Internal charges and transfer pricing are determined with reference-to market rates and have
been retlected in the performance of each segment.

segment revenue, results, assets and labilities include itens directly attributable to a segment
as well as thase that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Geographical aperating segments

The details of the geographical operating segments are as follows:

Head Offica

Yangtze River Delta: Shanghai, Jliangsu, Zhejiang, MNingbo

Fearl River Dalta: Guangdong, Shenzhen, Fujian, Xiamen

Bohai Rim: Beijing, Tianjin, Bebel, Shandong, Qingdao

Central China: Shanxi, Hubei, Henan, Hunan, liangxi, Hainan, Anhul

Western Chinac Chongging, Sichuan, Guizhou, Yunnan, Shaanxi, Gansu, Qinghal,
Mingxia, Xinjlang (including ¥injiang Bingtuan), Tiket, Inner
Mengolia, Guangi

Mortheastern China: Lisoning, Hedongjiang, Jilin, Dalian

Overseas and Others: Subsidiaries and overseas branches
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Geagraphical operating segments (Contnued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Geographical aperating segments (Continued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 Operating segments (Continued)

Business eperating segments
The details of the business operating segments are as follows:
Corporate banking
The corporate banking segment provides financial products and services to corporations,
government agencies and financial institutions. The range of products and services includes
corporate [oans and advances, trade finance, depesit products, corporate wealth management
services and other types of corporate intermecdiary services.
Personal banking
The perzonal banking segment provides financial products and services to Individual custommers.
The range of products and services includes personal loans, deposit products, card business,
personal wealth management services and other types of personal intermediary services.
Treasury operations
The Group's treasury operations conduct money market and repurchase transactions, debt
instruments investments, precious metal transactions and derivative transactions for its own
accounts or on behalf of customers.
Others
Others comprise components of the Group that zre not attributable o any of the above

segments, along with certain assets, lishilities, income or expenses of the Head Office that
could not be allocated on-a reasonable basis,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Qperating segments (Continuad)

Business operating segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016

operations

Othars

Comclidated

total

External mtecest incoma 181,890 135,219 135,194 41m B57,190
External imtesest eepense [E9.004) (148,393 [20,454) {1,225} [2549,088)
Inter-segment interest {gxpense¥noome (3,993} 167,567  (163,574) - =
Net intengst incoms 188,893 154,403 51,256 3,552 398,104
Fee and commssian income: 53,33 46,200 - 1N 100.81%
Fee and commEsian expense {3,193} (6,642} {2} (47} [9,854)
Mt fee and commision income 50,145 30,567 {2} 124 90,935
Net trading gain i - 5118 57 5457
Net ganfllossk on feanaal instruments

designated at far valve throogh profit o joss 188 {1.639) {296} 356 (1.291)
Net gain on irvestment secufities = = 88 631 s20
Daber opetating incomedeapene) 215 1,584 s 12012 16,003
Cperating incame 141764 194,215 56317 17832 510,128
Dperating eupenses (70.025)  (89.683) (20,352}  (16.38%) [197,045)
Imparment Isses on sty (55612} ({24051} i6,187) (596) (86,44E)
Operating profit 116,127 £0.481 29,178 B47 116,633
Shane of results of assaciates - - - 1] L]
Protd befare fa 116,127 0,481 29,178 38 226,624
Income tax snpense [42,564)
Profi for the year 184,060
Deprecation and amorization included

m qlaerat.;-ng EEpenies 3,832 11,298 3797 120 19,037
Capdtal expenditure .74 11,054 3,715 4412 2821
At 31 December 2016

et dssets 6ITAT  37MMI 9223419 200,035 18,486,874

Inclading: [svestment in atwwoeiste - - - 3 13
Unafocated a5t E3,187
Total assets 19,570,061
Segment lizhilites (6.778.331) (9,760.885) (1.542.284)  (150,558)  (18.232,056)
Unslocated fablites: [16,414)
Total abities (15.248,470)
Credit comenitmestts 1,234,807 399,527 - - 1,634,334
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

Business operating segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015

External imanest income 9680 5375 D6 T 4,008 725,783
External intenest expense (38,642) (168,061}  (21541) {1,400 {285,653
Infer-segment interest (expenseyintome: {19,707} 176040 (156,333 - -
Net inberest mcome 231,331 133,334 45,856 4,298 436, 140
Fee amd commission noome 43,764 45,529 - 1,20 50,454
fee and commission expense {2.353) {3,328} - (B3} {7,945}
Net fee and commission incame 41,412 40001 - 1,136 82,549
Net trading gaintloss) - - 3602 ] 3562
Net-gain on financial instruments designated

at fair vadue through prodit or Soss €6 1318 299 a4 1727
Net gain on investment secunties - - 103 754 a5
Other pperating income 2,587 4,006 2,536 B.538 16,047
Diperating mcome 175,386 196,679 85,756 13,031 540,862
Dperating expenses 1928670 196439y (500 (1150 (225,818
Imparment iasses on assets (79,5000 (1,924} {1,708) 11,0400 184,172}
Operatang profi 103,029 88,316 9,038 485 130,872
Shate of rasuls of sssociates - - - {15} 115
Profit before tax 103,028 58,316 29,038 474 230,857
[FCENTE T8 Bapense (50:083)
Profit for the year 180,774

—————

Depreciation and amonization included

I DpArating expentes 3,785 19,460 4,381 107 18,633
Capital expenditize 3,850 14,958 4 467 1,058 214313
At 31 December 2015

man astels 6,086,284 3181775 8300508 141,880 17,709.845

Including: Investment in associate - - - i3 3
Unallocated assess 81,548
Tovtal &ez8ts 17,791,393
Saqmant liabiimies (6.155,984) (9,232 538) (10249%9) (1277760 (16.541,304)
Unallocated labimies {38,207}
Total abiinies {16,579, 508}
Cradit commitments 1,148,227 335487 - - 1483714
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famourts m milkons of Renminbi, wnless othenwnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44 Operating segments (Continued)
County Area and Urban Area segments

The Group's operating segments organized by County Area and Urban Area banking business
are set out a5 follows:

County Area banking business

The Group's County Area banking business provides a broad range of financial products:
and services to custemers in designated: County Area, through its operating branches in the
counties or county-kewvel cities throughout the PRC. The products and services mainly comprise
lrans, deposits, bank cards, and other types of intermediarny senvices.

Urban Area banking business

The Group's Lrban Area banking business comprises all banking activities outside of the
County Area banking business, overseas branches and subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Operating segments (Continued)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
External intenest income 143,479 EAERAL] - 657,190
External imberest expense (58, 268) {170,818) = (259,085)
intersegmant inerest incomed@ipense) 102,598 (102,508) - -
Net interest moome 157,808 240,295 - 398,104
FiBe and COmMISSIoN INCome 35,605 65,214 - 100,819
Fiee and COmMission eepense (3.718) {6,168} - (9,824)
het tee and commession income: 11,887 59,048 = 90,935
Net trading gain 17 5,440 - 5,457
Net gainflioss) on financial nstruments

designated ot fair valie through profit or o 19 (1.310) - (1.291)
Net gam on investment secunties = 520 = 520
Dther pperating income 4,579 11,424 - 16,003
Dperating income 194,311 5,817 - 510,128
Operating enpences (24,205) [112,B44) = [157,049)
impairment lases on ssets {44,186) {42,260) = {86,445)
Operating profit 65,920 160,712 - 126,633
Share of results of amodates = El] = 9
Prafin before 1ax 65,520 160,704 - 226,624
Incomme tax axpenis {42,564)
Prsdit for the year 184,060
Deareciation and amorzaton induded m

operating expenses B.B5S 10,182 £ 18,037
Capital expenciune 5494 17,427 - 22,521
At 31 December 2016
Segmant a5ets 7.040.416 12,554,090 (107,632) 19,436,874
including; vestmant in ausociste - 213 - 13
Unaliocare assss 83.187
Tonal assets 19,570,061
Segment liabiktes (B.506.859)  (11.740,829) 107632 (18,232,088)
Unaliacated liabiaies (16,414)
Total linbeiajes {18,248,470)
L gt COMMATEnts 380,806 1,253,528 - 1,634,334
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 Qperating segments (Continuad)

County Area and Urban Area segments (Conlinued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015
External interest ncome 166,863 558930 - Ti5.793
External interest expense {100 263) {18%,390) - (289.653)
Inter-segment inlerest incomelexpense) 101,332 {301,332} - -
et intesast noome 167,532 268,208 - 436,740
Fag and COMMIEHN mosme 3,289 39,205 - 40,4494
Fee and Commission experse £3.008) 4.247) - 17.545)
Net-fee and commission income 8,19 54,358 - 81 540
Ket trading gain 0 3352 = 3562
Pie‘t%m on financis nsTruments designated

at Tair value through profit of log 63 1,664 - L1
Net gz on inmestment securiies - B57 - B57
Other operating intcene 4,483 11544 - 16,027
Oipesating income 00.ETY 334,983 - 5471861
Operating Experses {91 828 {133,550 - 215818
Impairmeni ksses on assets {33.645) {50,523} - [34,172)
Qpesating peofit LER 155,470 - 230,671
Share of resufts of associates - {15} - 1151
Profit befose tax T340 135,435 - 230,857
Imcaene tax expense {50,083
Profit for the year 180,774
Deprecration and amonization inckided in

fnesating expansas 45,036 16,557 - 19,633
Capital aupenditure 8,696 12537 - 1433
At 31 December 2015
Segment aseats 6,379,322 11,432,038 (101,515} 17,704,845
Including: Invesiment in asocate - 173 - 273
Unaliocated asets 81,548
Totalastens 17,791,393
Segment labiies 15,992.911F  (10,649,505) 101,515 {16.541304)
Unallocated liabdiies (36,207}
Tonal liabidkies {16,578, 508)
Credt commitments 301,417 1,182,297 - 1483714
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 20016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse siated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions
{1} The Group and the MOF

As at 31 December 2016, the MOF directly owned 39.21% (31 December 2015:
39.21%} of the ordinary shares of the Bank

The MOF is a Chinese government ministry, primarily responsible for managing state
fiscal revenue and expenditure, and establishing and enforcing taxation policies. It
reparts to the Chinsse State Coundcil.

The Group had the following balances and transactions with the MOF in its ordinary
course of business under normal commaercial terms:

As at 31 December

2016

Assels
Trezcury bonds and special government bond 640,131 656,427
Receivable from the MOF (Note IV 22) 272,023 272,023
Interest recelvable

= treasury bonds and special government bond 7,648 7,734

- receivable from the WOF 3,802 25
Accounts receivable and tempaorary payments 13,147 3,665
Lizbilities
Amount payable to the MOF (Nate IV 36} 26,293 7.330
Customer deposits 10,265 10,309
Interest payable 23 12
Other liability

- redemption of treasury bonds on behalf of

the MOF 102 103

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
Interest income 63,974 41,987
Interest expense {189) {128}
Fee and commission income 15,072 7.048

Interest rate ranges for ransactions with the MOF durning the year are as follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015
% %

Treasury bonds and receivable from the MOF 1.94-9.00 194 - 900
Customer deposits 0.05-1.76 001 -306

The Group's redemption commitment for tressury honds undenwriting is disclosed in
MNote IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments.

304 @rE2aRE

367/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Fol the year erided 31 December 2016
.',n.m.;-..:-.: n milkons of Aenmeinbi, wntess othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45 Related party transactions (Continued)
{2) The Group and Huijin

Central Huijin Investment Ltd. ("Huijin®} is & wholly-owned subsidiary of China
Imvestment Corporation Limited, which & incorporated in Bedjing, PRC. Huijin was
established to hold certain equity interests In state-owned financial institutions as
authorized by the Chinese State Council and does not engage in other commercial
activities. Huijin exercises its legal rights and assumes obligations related to the Bank on
behalt of the PRC Government,

As at 21 Decernber 2006, Huijin directly owned 40.03% (31 December 2015: 40.03%)
of the ordinary shares of the Bank,

Transactions with Huijin

The Group had the following balances and transactions with Huijin incits ordinary course
of business under normal commerncial terms:

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Assets
Investment in debt securities 12,103 12,137
Interest recervable 145 145
Liabilities
Principal guarantesd wealth management

products issued by the Bank 7.000 20,500
Customer deposits 27 8,001
Interest payable 448 537

Year ended 31 December

Interest income 463 301
Interast expense (S18) {956)

Interest rate ranges for transactions with Huijin during the year are as tollows:

Investment in debt securities 3.16-4.20 3.16-4.20
Principal guaranteed wealth management products

issued by the Bank 2.90-5.00 4.35-5.00
Lustomer deposits 1.38-2.80 0.72-2.80
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 Related party transactions (Continued)
{2)  The Group and Huifin (Continued)
Transactions with companies under Huijin
Huijin has equity interests in certain other banks and finsncial institutions under the
direction of the Chinese government. The Group enters into transactions with these
banks and financial institutions in the ordinary course of business under normal

commercial terms. Corresponding balances with these banks and financial institutions
were a5 follows:

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Assers
Investment securities 817,129 817,653
Depaosits with Banks and other financial institutions 120,985 76,061
Placements with and loans to banks and

other financial institutions 56,783 62,752
Dervative financial assets 2,671 1,111
Financial 2ssets held under resale agreements 74,740 33,124
Precicus metal leasing 930 -
Loans and advances 1o customers 12,876 20,358
Lizhilities
Depasits from banks and other financial institutions 63,007 63,087
Placements trom banks and ather financial institutions B5,744 73,087
Derivative financial iabilities 2,238 1,444
Financial assets sold under repurchase 2greements 12,438 83,000
Equity
Preference shares 2,000 2,000

Off-balance sheet items
Non-principal guaranteed wealth management
products ssued by the Bank 22,642 15,700
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
famounts m milkons of Aenmenbi, writsss othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 Related party transactions (Continued)

{3} The Group and other government related entities

Other than disclosed above, a significant portion of the Groups banking transactions
are entered into with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and other State
controlled entities. These transactions are entered into under normal commercial terms
and conditions and mainly include provision of credit and guarantee, deposits, foreign
exchange transactions, derivative transactions, agency services, underwriting and
distribution of bonds issued by géwrnment agencies, purchase, sales and redemption of
invastient securities issued by government agencies.

Management considers that these transactions are activities conducted in the ordinary
course of business, and that the dealings of the Group have not been significantly
or unduly affected by the fact that the Group and those entities are government
related. The Group has also established pricing policies for products and services and
such pricing policies do not depend on whether or not the customers are government
authorities, agencies, attiliates and other State controlled entities.

{4} The Bank and its subsidiaries

The Bank entered into banking transactions with its subsidiaries at arm's length in the
ordinary course of bBusiness.

Management considers that transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries are not
significant.

(5} The Group and its associate

The Group entered into banking transactions with its assaciate at arm's length in the
ordinary course of business,

Management conskders that transactions between the Group 2nd its assoclate are not
significant.
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 Related party transactions (Continued)
(6) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons who have the authority and responsibility
to plan, directand control the activities of the Group:

The Group enters into banking transactions with key management personnel in the
normal course of business. During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015, the Group had no material transactions with key managensent perscnnel.

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the yvears
was a3 follows:

Year ended 31 December

2016
{Restated)
Salaries, bonuses and staft welfare 8.43 1011

According to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC, the key
management personnel's final emoluments for the year ended 31 December 20186
have not been finalized. Management of the Group helieves that difference between
the tinal emoluments and that disclosed above will not have significant impact on the
comsolidated financial statements of the Group. The final compensation will be disclosed
in a separate anncuncenent when determined,

The compensation of key management personnel for the year ended 31 December 2015
was not decided at the time when the Groups 2015 consolidated financial statements
were refeased and the amount of remuneration of directors and other members of key
management recognized in the consolidated income statement for the year of 2015 was
RMBE.00 million. Supplementary announcement on final compensation of RMB1G.11
million was released by the Bank on 26 August 2016. The comparative figures for the
year of 2015 have been restated accordingly.
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Folf the yeds ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
45 Related party transactions (Continued)

{7) The Group and the Annuity Scheme

The Group had the tollowing balances and transactions with the Annuity Scheme set up
by the Bank apart from the obligation for defined contribution to the Annuity Scheme:

As at 31 December

2016
Deposits from Annulty Scheme 16,367 8,050
Interest payahle 619 15

Year ended 31 December

2016

Interest expense 394 450

Interest rate range for transactons with the Annuity Scheme during the year is as
fallows:

Year ended 31 December

2016 2015

Deposits from Annuity Scheme 0.72-6.20 5.75-6.20

46  Structured entities

(1}  Principal guaranteed wealth management products sponsored and managed
by the Group

Principal guaranteed wealth management products sponsored and managed by the
Group represent products to which the Group has guaranteed the investors principal
investment, regardiess of their actual performance, Investments made by these products
and the corresponding liabilities to the investors of these products are presented in
financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,
respectively.

(2} Other Consolidated structurad entities

Other structured entities consolidated by the Group include certain trust investment
plans, asset mansgement plans, funds and securitization products issued, managed
andfor invested by the Group. The Group controls these enftities because the Group
has power over, is exposed to, or has rights to, varable returns from its involvement
with these entities and has the ability to use |ts power over these entities to affect the
amaunt of the Group’s returns.

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets of these consclidated structured entities were
RMB30&,177 milbon (31 December 2015 RMB322 678 millian),
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
46 Structured entities (Continued)
{3)  Unconsolidated structured entities
Unconsolidated structured entities sponsored and managed by the Group

Unconsolidated strsctured entities sponsored and managed by the Group mainky include
non-principal guaranteed wealth management products (“WhPs"), which are not
subject to any guarantee by the Group of the principal invested or interest to be paid.
The WhPs invest in a range of primarily fixed-rate assets, most typically money market
instruments, debt securities and loan assets. As the manager of these WMPs, the Group
irvests, on behalt of the imestors in these WPs, the funds raised in the assets as
described in the investment plan related 1o each WMP and receives fee and commission
income.

As at 31 December 2016, the total assets invested by these WMPs amounted
to RMED, 279,009 million (31 December 2015: RMB1,110,912 million) and the
corresponding outstanding WMPs issued by the Group amounted fo RMB1,299,375
millign {31 December 2015 RMB1,102.201 million), During the vear ended 31
December 2016, the Groups interest in these WhiPs included net fee and commission
income ' of RMBS,313 milllen (2015: RMBE, 721 milien} and net interest income of
RMB2G1 million (2015 RMBA27 million), which related to placements and repo
transactions entered into by the Group with these WP Vehicles,

The Group enters into placements and repo transactions at market interest rates with
these WWMPs, The average balance during 2016 and the outstanding balance as at
31 December 2016 of these transactions were RMBE,776 million weighted average
outstanding period of 3.06 days} (2015 RMB18,742 million. and 4.40 daysh and
RWB125,627 million (31 Decermber 2015 RMBTS,000 million), respectively. The Group
was under no obligation ta enter into these transactions. As at 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015, the outstanding balance of these transactions was presented in
placements with and loans to banks and other financial institutions and financial assets
held under resale agreements, which represented the Group's maximum exposure to the
WiiPs,

There were no contractual liquidity arrangements, guaraniess or other commitments
among or between the Group, WNPs or any third parties that could increase the level
of the Group’s risk from WMPs dischosed above during the years ended 31 December
2016 and 31 Decernber 2015, The Group was not required to absorh any losses incurred
by WihiPs before other parties. During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
no losses was incurred by these WRPs relating to the Group’s interests in these WiiPs,
and the WihiPs did not expenience difficulty in financing their activities,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

46 Structured entities (Continued)
(3} Unconsolidated structured entities (Continued)

Unconsolidated structured entities held by the Group

The Group invests in other unconsolidated strectured entities which are sponsored and
managed by other entities for investment return, and records trading gains or losses and
interest income therefrom: These unconsofidated structured entities primarily include
asset management plans, funds and asset-backed securities. As at 31 December 2016,
the related carrying amount of investments and the maximum exposure by the Group
to these other unconsolidated structured entities was RME24 463 million (31 December
2015: RMB30,537 million), included under the financial assets designated at fair value
through profit or loss, the available-for-sale financial assets, the held-to-maturity
investments and the debt instruments classified as receivables categories in the
consolidated staterment of financial position. The infermation on the size of 1otal assets
of these unconsolidated structured entities was not readily available from the public

domain.
47 Contingent liabilities and commitments

Legal proceedings and others

The Bank and its subsidiaries are invodved as defendants in certain lawsuits arising from their
mormal business. operations. As at 31 December 2016, provisicns of RMBE.O30 million were
made by the Group (31 December 2015; RMEG,696 million) based on court judgments or
advice of legal counsel, and included in Mote IV 36 Other Liabilities. Management of the
Group believes that the final result of these Iawsuits will not have a matarial impact on the

financial position or operations of the Group,

Cn 28 September 2016, the Bank and its New York Branch entered into a Cease and Desist
Qrder with the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System of the United States, On 4
Movernber 2016, the Bank and its Mew York Branch entered into a Consent Order with Mew
York State Department of Finamcial Services (the “Department”) and paid a civil monetany
penalty to the Department accordingly. The Bank and its Mew York Branch are taking

aftirmative actions to respond to other requirements under these two orders,

As at 31 December 20186, the above-mentioned civil monetary penalty has been paid and
reflected in these consolidated financial statements. As at the date of this report, the Group is
of the view that it is not practicable to estimate whether there will be any further reguiatary
actions undertzken by the US regulators as this will be dependent upon the regulatory
conclusion after the Bank's and its New York Branch's actions towards the other requirements
under these hwo orders. As such, the Group did not accnie any provision over this matter as at

31 December 2016.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

Capital commitments

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Contracted but not provided for 4,951 4,836

In addition, as-at 31 December 2016, the Group did not have outstanding equity investment
commitments for its investee companies (31 December 2015 the Group did not have
cutstanding equity Investment commitments for its investee companies).

Credit commitments

As at 31 December

2016

Loan commitments

- With an original maturity of less than 1 year 18,433 14,351
- With an original maturity of 1 year or above 549,968 436,082
Subtotal S&8,401 450,433
Bank acceplande 312,255 382,255
Credit card commitments 323,217 258,745
Guarantee and letters of guarantee 229177 233376
Letters af credit 181,284 158,905
Tetal 1,634,334 1,483 714

Credit commitments represent credit cards and general credit factlity limits granted to
customers, These genersl credit faciliies may be drawn in the form of loans or through the
Issuance of letters of credit, guarantee and letters of guarantes of bank acceptance.

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments represents the counterparty credit risk
associated with credit commitments and 15 calculated in accordance with the “Capital Rules
for Commercial Banks (Provisional}® issued by the CBRC which was effective 1 lanuary 2013
and s dependent on, among other factdrs, creditworthiness of counterparties and maturity
characteristics of each type of contract. &s at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,
credit risk weighted amount for credit commitments was measured under the Internal Ratings
- Based approach.

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Credit risk weighted amount for credit commitarenis £31,636 774925
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)

Operating lease commitments

Al the end of each reporting period, the Group, 25 2 lessee, had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under nen-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

Within 1 year 3,948 4,107
1 to'2 years 3,051 3,169
2 to 3 years 2,262 2,473
3 to 5 years 2,451 2,969
Above 5 years 1,255 1,627
Total 12,967 14,345

During the year of 2016, operating lease expense recognized as operating expense by
the Group was RWBS,190 million (2015 RMBS, 115 million), and is included in Note IV &
Operating Expenses,

Finance lease commitments

A5 at 31 December 2016, the contractual amount of non-cancellable finance lease
commitments of the Group, as a lessor, was RMB3I38 million (31 Decenvber 2015: Nil).

A5 at 31 December 2016, the gross amount of finance lease receivables included in the
Group’s loans and advances was RMB38,245 million {21 December 2015 RMB33,051 million)
with the remaining maturity a5 follows:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Cverdue 4,256 3794
Within 1 year 7,643 8,010
1 to 5 years 17,748 14,534
Above 5 years E.558 6,713
Total 38,245 33,051
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
47 Contingent liabilities and commitments (Cantinued)
Collateral
Assets pledged

At the end of each reparting period, the carrying amounts of assets pledged as collateral
under repurchase agreements are as follows:

As at 31 December

2016
Debt securities 208,529 89,851
Bills 314 473
Total 208,343 90,124

The carrying value of financial assets sold under repurchase agreements by the Group as at 31
Decamber 2016 was RMB205,832 million (21 December 2015: RMB2B. 804 millian) as et out
in Mote IV 33 Financial Assets Sold under Repurchase Agreements. Repurchase agréements are
due within 12 manths from the eftective dates of these agréaments

Finanmcial assets sokd under repurchase agreements included certain tramsactions under which,
title of the pledged securities has been transferred to counterparties. These fransactions have
been disclozed in Mate IV 48 Transferred Financial Assets.

In-addition, debt securities and deposits with banks and other financial institutions pledged
in accordance with regulatary requirements ar as collateral for derivative transactions. and
borrowings from central banks etc. by the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to
RMB26E5,153 million in total (31 December 2015: RMB1 14,458 million).

Collateral accepted

The Group received debt securities and bills as collateral in connection with the securities
lending transactions and the purchase of assets under resale agreements (Maote IV 18 Financial
Assets Held Under Resale Agreements). The Group did not hold any collateral that can be
resold or re-pledged as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015,

Redemption commitment for treasury bonds

The Group ts entrusted by the MOF to underwrite certain treasury bonds. The investars of
these treasury honds have a right to redeem the bonds at par at any time prior to maturity
and the Group is committed to honor such redemption requests. The redemption price is
calculated as the par value of the bond plus unpaid interest in accordance with the terms of
the related early redemplion arrangement.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

a7

Contingent liabilities and commitments (Continued)
Redemption commitment for treasury bonds (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the nominal walue of treasury bonds the Group was obligated to
redeem pricr to maturity was RMESE,555 million (31 December 2015 RMB53,627 million).
The original maturities of these bonds wary from 3 to 5 years. Management of the Group
expects the amount of redemption before the maturity dates of these bonds will not be
material.

The MOF will not provide funding for the early redemption of these bonds on a back-to-back
Basis, but will settle the principal and interast upon maturity.

Commitment an security undenvriting

As at 31 December 20168 and 31 December 2015, the Group did not have unfulfilled
commitment in respect of securities underwriting business.

Transferred financial assets

The Greup enteds nto transactions in the normal course of business whersby it transfers
recognized financial assets to third parties or to structured entities. In some cases these
transfers may give rise to full or partial de-recognition of the financial assets concerned. In
ather cases where the transterred assets do not qualify for de-recognition as the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of these assets, the Group continued te recognize the
transferred assets.

Securitization transactions

The Group enters into securitization transactions by which it transfers loans to structured
entities which issue asset-backed securities 1o investors. The Group asseszed among other
tactors, whether or not to derecognize the transferred assets by evaluating the extent to
which it retains the risks and rewards of the assets and whether it has relinquished its controls
over these assets based on the criteria 25 detailed in Note Il 8.6 and Note (Il 8,

A5 at 31 December 2016, the unexpired asset-backed securities included accumulative loans
transferred by the Group before impairment of RMB18.364 million (31 December 2015
RMEIG, 125 million). RMB10,154 million of this balance (31 Decerber 2015: Nil) was in
respect of non-performing leans transferred and the Group concluded that these loamns
mransterred were qualified for tull de-recagnition. The remaining balance of RMBS 210 million
(31 December 2015: RMB10,125 million) was in respect of performing loans transferred and
the Group concluded that it had continuing involvement in these assets. As at 31 December
2016, the Group continued to recognize assets of RMB712Z million (21 December 2015
RMBR44 million) under loans and advances 1o customers. The Group also recognized other
assets and other liabilities of the same amount arising from such continuing involvement,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

48 Transferred financial assets (Continued)
Transfer of non-performing loans

Curing the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group transterred non-performing Ioans
through disposal to third parties or Bsuing asset-back securities, with gross koan balance of
RiMB72,969 million {2015 RME25.800 million), of which RMB10,154 {2015: Mil} was through
[ssuir asset-back securities disclosed above. The Group carried out an assessment based on
the criteria as detaibed in Mote Il 8.6 and Note Il 8 and concluded that these transtermed assers
qualitied tor tull de-recegnitian,

Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements

The Group did not derecognize financial assets transferred as collateral in connection with
repurchase agreements. As at 31 December 2016, of these collateral pledged disclosed in Note
IV 47 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments = Collateral, RMB14,087 million (31 December
2015 RMB5,986 million) represented debt securities whereby legal title has been transferred
o Counterpartes.

Securities lending transactions

For debt securities lent to counterparties under securities lending agreements, the
counterparties are allewed to sell ar repledge these securities in the absence of default by
the Group, but have an obligation to return the securities at the maturity of the contract. The
Group has determined that it retains substantially all the risks and rewards of these securities
and therefore has not derecognized them. As at 21 Decerber 2016, the carrying amount of
debt securities kent to counterparties was RMB15,415 million (31 December 2015 Nil),

49 Financial risk management
Overview

The Group's primary risk management objective is to maintain risk within acceptable
parameters to meet the requirements of requlators, depositors and other stakeholders, 25 well
a5 to maximize return for investors within an acceptable level of risk,

The Greup has designed risk management policies, which address, among other things, the
establishment of risk limits and controls to identify, analyze, monitor 2nd report risks. Relevant
and timely information used to conduct these risk management activities & provided thraugh
Infarmation systems maintained by the Group and intended to address the Group’s information
needs in this area. The Group regularky reviews its risk management policies and systems to
address changes in markets, praducts and emerging best practices

The maost significant types of risk to which the Group is exposed are credit risk, market risk
and liquidity risk. Market risk includes foreign exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
Risk management framework

The Board of Directors is responsible for establishing the overall risk appetite of the Group and
reviewing and approving its risk management objectives and strategies.

Within this framework, the Group's senior management has overall responsibility for managing
all aspects of risk, including implementing risk management strategies, initiatives and credit
policies and approving internal rules, measures and procedures: related 1o risk management.
The Risk Management Department of the Group implements procedures for managing the
significant risks to which the Group is exposed.

49.1 Credit risk
Credit risk management

Credit risk represents the potential loss that may arise from 2 customer or counterparty's
failure to meet its obligations when due. Credit risk can also anse from operational
fallures that result in an wnauthorized or inappropriate advance, commitment or
Iinvestment. The Group's major credit risks arise from loans and recelvables, treasury
operations and off-balance sheet related credit risk exposures.

The Groups credit risk management system is compased of the Board of Directors
and its Risk Management Committee, Senior Management and its Risk Management
Committee, Credit Approval Committee and Asset Disposal Committee, a5 well a5
the Risk Management Department, Credit Management Department, Credit Approval
Departirent and related front-office customer departments. The Group's credit risk
management function operates under centralized management and authorization under
a range of specified limits.

The Group performs standardized credit management procedures, including credit
due diligence and proposal submission, credit underwriting review, loan disbursement,
post-lending monitoring and non-performing loan management. The Group enhances
its cradit risk: management by strictly complying with its credit management procedures;
strengthening customer imvestigation, credit rating, lending approval and post-lending
maonitoring measures; enhancing risk mitigation effect of loans through collateral;
accelerating disposal process of non-perfarming loans and continuausly upgrading the
credit management system.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
459.1 Credit sk (Continued|
Credit risk management {Continued)

In 2016, the Group took 2 combination of measures, including the strict implementation
of the state’s macro-economic policies, continuous optimization of its credit structure,
strengthening the building of the credit risk management system, heightening risk
managenent and control in key areas, timely identification and mitigation of various
risks amd potential vulnerabilities, and expanding options and channels for recovery
and disposal of non-performing lnans, and maintained a steady and solid level of asset
guality.

Apart fram the credit risk exposures an credit-related assets, deposits and placements
with and loans to banks and other financial institutions, the credit risk arising from
freasury business is managed by selecting counterparties with acceptable credit quality,
balancing credit risk and return, reterencing to both internal and external credit rating
information where available and by applying appropriate limits subject ro ditferent level
of management authority, and by timely reviewing and adjusting those limit Im credit
system. In addition, the Group also provides loan commitments and financaal guarantee
serices to customers which may require the Group to make payments on behalf of
customers upon their failure to perform urder the terms of the related contract. Risks
arising from loan commitments and financizl guaranfees are similar to those assocated
with loans and advances, These transactions are, therefore, subject to the same risk
management policies and procedures.

Impairment assessment
Key factars related to the Group’s impairment assessment

In accordance with the “Guideline tor Loan Credit Risk Classification” fssued by the
CBRC, the Group has esiablished a loan credit risk classification system and performs
credit risk management based on loan classification in one of five categories. The Group
classifies loans into the following five categories: normal, special-mention, substandard,
doubtful and loss. Loans classified as substandard, doubtful and boss are regarded as
non-performing Ioans, The primary factors considered in loan impairment assessment
include probability of loan repayment and recoverability of principal and interest,
which reflect borrowers’ repayment ability, repayment record and Intention, projected
profitability, bank guarantees or collateral and legal responsibility of repayment. The
dllowance for impairment Iosses is assessed collectively or individually, 25 appropriate.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Contnued)
Impairment assessment (Continuved)
Key factors related to the Group’s impairment assessment (Continued)

The five categories of Inan classification into which the Group classifies its loans and
advances o antomers are set out below:

Mormal Borrowers can honor the terms of their loans. There 15 no
reason o doubt their ability 1o repay principal amd interest in
full on a timely basis,

Spacial = menthan Borrowers are able 1o service their loans currently. although
repayment may be adversely atfected by specific factars,

Substandard Borrowers' ability to service their loans is in question and they
cannot rely entirely on normal operating revenues to repay
principal and interest. Losses may ensue even when collateral
of guarantees are invoked

Doubttul Borrowvers cannotl repay principal and interest in full and
significant losses will need to be recognized even when
collateral ar guarantees are invoked,

Loss Only a small portion or none of the principal and Interast
can be recovered after tzking all possible measures and
exhausting all legal remedies:

With respect to investments in debt securities ather than held for trading or designated
at fair value through profit or loss, the Group assesses for indicators of impairment at
the end of each reporting pericd based on objective evidence and performs impairment
assessment individually or collectively, a5 appropriate. For the inmpaired available-for-sale
investments, the amount of the impairment allowance for available-for-sale investments
is equal to the existing unrealized loss, which is recorded as a charge in the consolidated
income statement.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
45.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held
or other credit enhancements

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk represents the credit risk exposure 1o the Group
at the end of each reporting period, without taking into account any collateral held
of ather credit enhancements. The exposure to credit risk at the end of each reporting
paricd primanly arises from credit and treasury operations; 2s well as off-balance shest
iterns such as loan commitments, credit card commitments, bank acceptance, guaranies
and letters of guarantee and letters of credit, as credit risks arsing from these items are
similar to those assecated with loans and receivables.

A summary of the maximum exposure to credit sk is a5 follows:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
Balances with central banks 2,700,048 2AT0.667
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 622,665 697,923
Placemenis with and loans to banks and
other financial institutions 580,949 504,252
Financial assets held for trading 123,282 749,762
Financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss 286,564 355,530
Derivative financial assets 31,460 16,038
Financial assets held under resale agreements 323,051 471,809
Loans and advances to customers 9.319,364 8,506,675
Available-for-sale finandal assets 1.390,678 1,202,597
Held-to-matunity investrments 2,882,152 2,300,824
Debt instruments classified as receivables 624,547 557,420
Other financial assets 205,718 176,352
Sibtotal 19,090,476 17,339,849
Credit commitments 1,634,334 1,483,714
Total 20,724,810 18,823 563

The Group has implemented specific policies and credit enhancement practices
o mitigate credit risk exposure to an acceptable level. The most typical practice
I5 obtaining guarantee deposits, collateral and guarantees, The amount and type
of acceptable collateral are determined by credit risk evaluations of borrowers or
counterparties. The Group implements guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral and evaluation parameters.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)

49.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before taking into account any collateral held
‘or other credit enhancements (Continised)

The main types of collateral obtained are as follows:

- hortgage loans o retail customers are generally collateralized by mortgages over
residential properties;

- Other personal lending and corporate loans and advances are primarily
callateralized by charges over land and properties or other assets of the
barrowers; and

- Financial assets held under resale agreements transactions are primarily
collateralized by debt securities and bills.

The Group monitors the marker value ot collateral periodically and requests for
additional collateral in accordance with the underlying agreement when necessary,

Loans and advances o customers

The following tables set out the concentraticn of risk tor koans and advances to
customers by geographical area and industry.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{1} The compesition of loans and advances to customers by geographical area is
analyzed as follows:

Az at 31 December

2018
Amount % of total Amount

Carporate loans amd

advances

Head Oftice 279,658 44 215317 15
Yangtze River Delta 1,310,376 20.6 1,355458 220
Pearl River Delta 752,897 11.8 724,691 TE?
Bohai Rim 1.001,682 15.7 1,062,323 172
Central China 857,319 13.5 774,559 125
Western China 1.463.806 229 1,346,434 21.8
Northeastern China 272460 43 256,614 4.2
Owerseas and Others 435,027 6.8 439,905 71
Subtotal 6,373,225 1000 6,175,301 100.0

Persanal loans amd

atvances

Head Office 104 - 1M =
Yangtze River Delta BE0,092 25,6 £92,935 254
Pearl River Delta 713,500 21.3 538,353 19.7
Bohai Rim 498,332 14.9 401,251 14.7
Central China 451,954 135 357.957 131
Western China 694,461 0.8 629,495 230
Mortheastern China 122,436 3.7 107,798 ig
Owerseas and Others 5538 0.2 6,727 0.2
Suhtotal 3,346,414 100.0 2,734,617 100.0

Gross loans and advances
to customers 9,719,639 2,009,018
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Conbnued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

(2} The compesition of loans and advances to customers by industry b analyzed as
follows:

As at 31 December

2016
Amount % of total
Corporate loans and

advances
Manufacturing 1,325,386 209 1,481,883 24.0
Transpartation, logistics

and postal services 1,052,336 16.5 924 306 15.0
Retail and wholesale 497,976 1.8 650,670 10.5
Production and supply of

power, heal, gas

and water 673,621 10.6 604,312 9.8
Real estate 510,470 B0 548,388 29
Leasing and commercial

SEIVICES 560,270 B.8 461,772 .5
Finance 735,915 1.5 457,823 74
Kining 243,396 3 280,558 4.2
Construction 187,931 2.9 216,636 35
Water, environment

and public utilities

managerent 241,365 3.8 205,797 3.3
Others 344,559 5.4 363,105 5.9
Subtotal 6,373,225 100.0 6,175,301 100.0

Personal loans and advances

Residantial morigage 2,560,002 765 1,927 049 J0.5
Personal business 196,727 59 230,424 8.4
Personal consumption 153,945 4.6 185,531 6.8
Credit cards 242,451 7.2 222,206 81
Others 193,289 5.8 169,407 6.2
Subtotal 3,346,414 100.0 2,734,617 100.0

Gross loans and advances
1o customers 9,719,639 8,909,018
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49
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Financial risk management (Continued)

49.1 Credit risk (Continued)

Loans and advances to customers (Continued)

{3)  The composition of leans and advances to custamers by contractual maturity and

security type is analyzed as follows:

Less than
1 year

31 December 2016

1105
years

Over
5 years

Unsecurad lnans 992,899 466,138 886,821 2,345,858
Guaranteed loans 618,532 330,718 344,430 1,293,680
Loans secured by collateral 947,133 519,723 3,127,606 4,594,468
Fedged loans 786,985 69,113 629,535 1,485,633
Total 3,345,555 1,385,692 4,988,392 9,719,639

216,995

340,163

839,763

Unsecured loans Z,096,927
Guaranteed loans 692,293 263,559 393,338 1,349,190
Loans secured by collateral 1,127 445 649 224 2489132 4265801
Fledged loans 623,149 71,132 502,719 1,198,000
Total 3,359,882 1,324,084 4,225952 BS09918

4}  Past due loans

31 December 2016

91-360 361 days Over 3

days to 3 years years
Urzecured loans 4,411 8,619 4. 480 406 17.896
Guaranteed loans 18,386 23,586 26,612 2,937 72,521

Loans secured by

collateral 53,772 52,054 60,454 5,405 172,685
Pledged loans 1,976 2,209 6,901 447 11,533
Total 79,5345 86,468 98427 10,195 274,635
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Cantinued}

{4}  Past due loans (Continued)

Unisecured loans 721 8,522 2,190 21 18,204

Gusrantesd lozns 21478 25,103 18,134 4,143 59,858
Loans secured by

collateral &7.076 83,271 37.878 8716 174,941
Pledged loans 2,600 7,202 5,049 1,568 16,419
Total 98,465 105098 63251 12698 279512

When either loan principal or interest is past due by one day in any period, the
whale loan is classitied as past due loan,

(5} Credit quality of loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December

2016 2015
MWeither past due nor impaired i) 9,433,058 8623179
Past due but not impaired i) 55,747 73,872
Impaired iy 230,834 212,867
Subtotal 9,719,639 B.909,918

Allowance for impairment bosses of
Inans and advances to customers (400,275) {403,243)

Loans and advances to
customers, net 9,319,364 8,506,675
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
#9.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to custamers (Continued)
(53 Credit quality of laans and advances to customers {Continued)

) Loans and advances neither past due nor impaired

31 December 2016

Special-
Normal mention Total
Corporate loans and advances 5,832,088 321,400 6,153 488
Personal loans and advances 3,276,326 3,244 3,279,570
Total 9,108,414 324,644 9,433,058

rrention

Corporate loans and advances 5,648,447 303,383 5,951,830
Personal loans and advances 2,669,491 1,838 2,671,349

Total 8,317,938 305241 8,623,179

{li}  Loans and advances past due but not impaired

31 December 2046

Including:

Expasure

cavered by

tallateral

Total and pledge

Comporate kand 2o advances 1,940 4502 18 26,850 13,588
Farineal loans and advanies 17,124 £590 5173 18,887 0,430
Total 38,064 11,452 5191 55,747 018

Corparate loans anc advamoet. 32914 11,568 7,581 43464 3R 567
Personal loans and advances 16, 084 176 5582 31,376 0068

Total 40,554 19,315 13,563 73872 SEAI6
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
458.1 Credit risk (Continued}
Loans and advances to customers (Continued}
13)  Credit quality of loans and advances to customers (Continued)

i} Impaired loans and advances

31 December 2016

Allowance

for
Impairment Net book
Book value losses value
Individ ually assessed 192,848 (133,605) 59,243
Collectively assessed 37,988 (28,9949) 8,987
Total 230,834 (162,604) 68,230

far

IMpaE menl

value VG565

Individually assessed 180,978 {133,900) 47,078

Collecthvely assessed 31,889 (22,049} 9,840

Total 212,867 {155,949) 56,918
Including:

As at 31 December

2016 205

Individually assessed and impaired 142,848 180,578
Individually assessed and impaired as
a percentage of gross loans and

advances of the Group 1.98% 2.03%
Inchuding: exposure covered by collateral
and pledge 33,021 29.319
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Loans and advances to customers (Continued)
{53 Credit quality of loans and advances to customers (Continuesd)
(i) Impaired loans and advances (Continted)

The composition of impaired loans and advances to customers by
geographical area is analyzed as follows:

31 December 2016

Amount % of total |
Head Office 7 - 7 -
Yangtze River Delta 35471 15.4 41 E84 19.6
Pearl River Delta 30,530 13.2 29 500 139
Beshai Rim 45,728 19.8 40,005 188
Central China 30,194 131 28,084 13.2
Western China 76,046 329 63,921 30.0
Mortheastern China 8,772 38 6,036 28
Overseas and Others 4,086 1.8 3,530 1.7
Total 230,834 100.0 212,867 100.0

{6} Rescheduled loans and advances

Rescheduled loans and advances are those loans and advances to customers
which have been renegotiated because of deterioration in the finanaal position
ot the borrowers, or of the inability of the bomowers to meet their original
repayment schedule. Concessions are given by the Group that would not
atherwise be granted to these borrowers for economic or legal reasons relating
ta their financial difficulties. Rescheduled loans and advances of the Group 25
at 31 December 2016 amounted to RMB52,491 million (31 Decernber 2015:
RMB27,919 million).

During the year, as & result of loan renegotiations, the Group recognized loans
with renegotiated terms and convertible bomds with fair value upon renegotiation
of RMB3,702 million and RMEB1, 358 million, respectively, The loss associated with
these Inan renegotiations was not significant.

{7} Assets foreclosed under credit enhancement arrangement

Such assets are disclosed as foreclosad assets in Note IV 27 Other Assets,
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(ameounts m milkons of Renminbi, urless othensnse stated)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)

45.1 Credit risk (Contmued}
Debt instruments

Cradit quality of debit instruments

The table below represents the carrying value and accumulated impairment charges of
held-to-rraturity investinents and debt instruments classified as receivables:

As at 31 December

2016 2015
either past due nor impaired {1} 3,509,837 2,858,931
Impalred 2} 5.542 3178
Subtotal 3,515,379 2,562,109
Individually assessed {3,516} {1,470)
Collectively assessed (5,164) (2,395}
Allowance for impairment losses (2,680} (3.865)
Total held-to-maturity Investrments

and debt instruments classified as
receivables, net 3,506,699 2,858 244

392/458
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments {Continued)
Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued)

{1}  Debt mstruments netther past due nor impaired

31 Decomber 2016

Financial

mesets at

fair value  Availabde- Debt

through far- sale Held-to-  instruments
profit finandal maturity dlassified as
or |oss assets Investments receivables

Dbt secufites isped by

~ (e mments 20,900 454613 1.320,638 120618 1,926,769
= Public sectorand
LS ETETIETES 99,784 383824 1,129.986 9997 1,643,591

= Financial instiutions 104,505 353,335 263,950 64,130 751,404

= Comorates 45,665 186,869 171,604 20,436 429,574
Special government bond - - - 53,300 93,300
Recearabia from the MOF - - - 2712013 172,023
Certficate treasury bonds

A0 savings Treasiry

bords - - - 2930 1990
(rehers 15,883 - - 0,165 36,048
Total 205221 1390641 2885178 £23658 5155699

Db seouritees issied bye

- Eowemments 22097 333,537 B52.367 42841 1250942
= Public sectorand
UAS-GOVBTMENTS 101,583 465589 1061581 9 T7R6 16AEE30

- Financial inflitutions 50,178 176,073 078 57,339 436,317

- Comporates 33638 226 882 185,967 39T 477 A5E
Special government bond - - - 93,304 93,300
Recatrable fram the MOF - - - 173023 FIrRirES
Cendicate traasury bands

00 saings ey

bons - - - 294 2,318
(harg 43585 - - 16,008 50683
Total 250479 1202081 2301544 556,267 4311491
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
458.1 Credit risk (Continued}
Debt instruments (Continued)
Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued)
{2} Impaired debt instruments

31 December 2016
Debt

Held-to-  instruments
maturity  classified as

investments receivables
Corporate bonds - 547 547
Others - 4,585 4,995
Subtatal - 5,542 5,542
Allowance for impairment losses - (3.5186) (3.516)

Impaired held-to-maturity
investments and debt
instruments classified as
receivables, net - 2,026 2,026

TLIrity
Investments T
Carparate bonds - 543 543
Others - 2635 2,635
Subtotal = 3,178 3.178
Allowance Tor impalrment losses - (1,470} (1,470}

Impaired held-to-maturity
investments and debt
instruments classified as
recelvables, net - 1,708 1,708

Anncal Repadt 20016 331
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
48.1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)
Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued)
{2} Impaired debt instruments (Continued)

The Group's available-for-sale debt instroments were individually assessed for
impairment. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying amount of the impaired
available-for-sale debt instruments of the Group was RMB3IT million (31 December
2015 RMB316 million). The accumulative impairment losses recognized for these
impaired available-for-sale debt instruments by the Group as at 31 December
2016 was RMB331 million (31 December 2015: RMB312 million).

13} Debtmstruments analyzed by credit rating

The Group adopts @ credit rating approach to manage the credit risk of the debt
securities portfalio held. The ratings are obtained from major rating agencies
where the issuers of the securities are located. The carrying amounts of debt
securities investrments 2nalyzed by rating a5 2t the end of the reporting period
are & follows:

31 Detember 2016

Unratedsi)

Dot secumities Baued by

- Govermments 1,300,581 Sad B4t 5144 1,033 TH5 1,524,608

- Pullic secter and

QUL VErnmENTS 1465672 TELBAD 10852 09 - 1643403

= financial insiwions 526,081 44056 36,308 5620 3037 s

- Corporates fi T B LIl B 06 425363
Special government bond 93,300 - - - = 93300
Receiabls from the MOF w3 - - - - mpn
Cortificae treanury bongk

and 5avings eaoury

broncts 750 - - - - 1,950
(ahers 37,578 - - - - 3151
Tatal IMLER L3841 55,111 76,605 47,198 5,192,598
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49,1 Credit risk (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continied)
Credit quality of debt instruments (Continued}

(3} Debt instruments analyzed by credit rating {Continued)

Dieit setuitien izumed by
= OBt 408930  HiaeE TET 1 362 1,250 466
= Putlic sactar and
QuEs-ovesnmeEnts LSIZT03 148418 4.7 ER| - 668469
- Financial institerions I 022090 51T 01 14303 4a5 T84
- Corpanates i} S8407  InEods 11d4R3  3SAGN 12202 A7TA42
Special gavernment band 53,300 - - - - 30
Ricehiacde from the MOF FEPATE ] - - - - M
Centifitate tressury bonds
and saings traamany
b 19 - - - - 14919
Oihers E0507 - - - - B0S07
Tatal 355313 9120 eTAM RETS L3RR 413

{ii  Unrated debt investments held by the Group are bonds issued primarily by
policy banks, the Chinese government, municipal government bonds and
receivable from the MOF

{ily  The ratings of super short-term commercial papers of the Group amounted
to RMB23,420 milllon {31 December 2015 RMB51,553 million), as

included in carporate honds abave are based on issuer rating tor this credit
risk analysis.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that funds will not be available 1o meet liabilities as they fall
due, This may arise from cash flows or maturity mismatches of assets and liabilities.

The Group’s Assets and Liabilities Management Department manages its Rquidity risk
through:

Cptimizirg asset and liability structure;
- Maintaining stability of deposit base;

- Making projections of future cash flows, and evaluating the appropriate liguid
asset position:

- Maintaining an efficient internal funds transter mechanism within the Group; and

- Performing stress testing on a regular basis,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
43.2 Liquidity risk (Continuecd)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The tables below summarize the maturity analysis of financial assets and financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities based on the camying amount at the end
of each reporting period.

Lt o Balareies with convir s

Deposth with bards weed oo rarcl

Felickity 158 - - RS
Flarmreniwith ared s I Gk ard

el Arnaroal S - nms - - EaMy
Frangial s bekd for rading - Er T TS T R Y T 1 - EeH
Frartl muk deurated o e ke

throuh proli or ke . - T NS M M W m Ean
Cevies Sariisl a2t - =M s KM 1 ™3 - s
Ferarrisl s held undes resdle

agemR, am - P WM Wi - - = s
Lears brel acdiapins Yo DTS ] - EEIN O BRATR  DBILSG UBSEE 1Bl - Liae
it brarraal st - - GRS DISOS1 THSE MLEG  WMI LN
el matur dy Paiimerls - - BLE MM IR LBLAT U - LHRE
Dbl resrumrerits el o et - W LME BN DAk MM - EMST
Ceher brwrcidl 45 VEP O TSR HSH W s i} F - s
Total il e QH] HIME 1AM LMAME  INLUE ANEMY SENGE  LOLNY 1R
Sorron boe oorl Eard - P} fe3E (LY (EAHN N - - sy
Dposts fom ik and oo fraecial

Lo - IS5 OSEESR  (MEdE)  pAMS] 5 - - |LisEg
Flacemen foes barks snd oibes francal

estuote - - HInENE  agSN BN L Qud - Loy
Fraeca kahines held by v - WS R BN = = - - s
Fitaresl hahlte) deyated i e it

e prene s - EN BRsE aD neRY [£7] -~ R
Derwiver il kabiiies - RS s s L) i) - [
Frarcid mwts oid o spurthsy

g . = (SL0ER M) 176D - - = AN
D o catoen - BANEHT W (OESM) RETED DEsE  GH = fisa3 )
Defrl socunties Snued v - I BAER WY BLe)  1El - g
(Cther bl Sl - (AT RN NN MEE 8lEY  BaRD - Rl
ol brwredl b - BIEISD LEBANN (0MN9 DARSE pmEN (BRI - i IEEEE)
Hiel periin SREN BSSMA LI (T3] BASNE LMRMN LAMEE 1WA 1ELE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)

49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the remaining contractual maturity of financial assets and financial
liabilities (Continued)

Cich ard bulares. with oyl b = ImME MaE = AW - = LA 1S
Drprits mith burks i ethee frarcd

rEidon = Bl O ER OHEY S 130 - =
Placureniy with sl boars b bl el

athet ol rsusrns - = G4 ®EY MM &8 - =
Pt et Pedd o g - .| B AN 13 1E53 imk - b b)is
Fracoal st drqrated at far od

thcunch ol o ey - - pLEH aE HEn E25a8 0B IWs I
Derivrtes rancal asen - - 154 o e (Fi L] it = jhEE
it sm hed onde Heode

s - - ImE s e - - - dhgEn
Lz el BN ) oty LAl = 433N N SN LMIE 1B = 6T
Eleble-or e bearcl s - = CHEE MU DN HERN FERE ILMS LINSO
Py e - = pLEE] I ETE LGS’ - L3OEN
bt i amends e s rafiales ! 1| 1= asE XIN MEnE  ANES =
Ceber firarral s 180 s wsl BEe am 3 " L
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PR = CNSENN BUSl ARG e 000EE - = e
Pirerests fom bank ind cfher francdl

o . = f0D ABE BBG W L0 = [DBEIS
Froreial fablize beld d radng = fiEsy | MES 5B o - - - OeEE
Fraruis bubles dsatel ol br ke

ecuigh grokt or ke - = EAE BN NEEN  QRTE o} = WA
Dereaytit frescal labiins - =~ HEs e Ui DE (16 = [ILEY
Francial syt o o neporchans

PR - = EER o -1 - - = FiEd
Dt 1o Euiten = RN GRE (LIS (L5StEE 1IN i = N358350
Dot vorurites igued B = GEED SR SO cENG (1B = GEMN
(Cebet firwal labiin = [IE0R CIRAME  MAEE MR BEMS: DAY = e
Tl frarced bl = AR (LR (SR ISR 1R, (HUmY = {4 am
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows

Assets avallable to meet obligations related to the Group’s liabilities and outstanding
credit commitments primarily include cash and balances with central banks, deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and fcans to banks and
other fimancial institutions, financial assets held for trading, financial assets designated
at fair valua through peofit or loss, and financial assets held under resale agreements. In
the normal course of business, the majority of customer deposits repayable on demand
of on matunty are expected to be retained. In addition, the Group is able to sell the
available-for-sale financial assets to repay matured lizbilities, if necessary

The tables below present the undiscounted cash flows of non-derivative financial assets
and tinancial lizbilities by remaining contractual maturities at the end of each reporting
period:

Roorderirarive fitandl s

L o imarres with contr b - i sm - - LRSS LMRIM
Dpasits with burids and offwr rarcial

R = ST uEsE A MM LMW - = hEAM
Flaceneris it i loars 1o fands 2

i rarddl mddiom. . = EAN mar MSE 0w - =
Farangidl gaets held for radieg - i I WHS UM MR LEN - 1HaM
Fraccidl s dsaraed & e ol

twough proli e b - = it 1171 MR TR LEE] R rE R 1L
Froviel epetibeld il el apeerirs. 32 = MM OB WM - - - XRAT
Loses and ackanges o pusiomens 1A% = BTN TREE LAMAE LELIL SRNMN = 1NN
Al beancdl s - = WM BMT NS TEM AR MM
hridtorigty nameciy . = BN N DIMM Lo s = Liin
Dt petromens deaded o abie . 1 L R OMIN O M s - ML
Cther fowecidl s - s 13 e i L] T - W
Tt sttty brorel man T LIS LMAETD  LMAMS LIPSSTY SEIRAEE TAOLEN LA LES1aN
o derivive il Eablim
Borrowrny b coniad bk - 3 NeIE (M7 (RS Lo = - [
Depresty o s and b Sraccial

ik [SR165D  @nAIR (15366 (WIdarR (LM - = i
Fanemerts ombasks erd cthes fraseal

inetafion, . = [ERME Sl BER B MY = [
Feraroa babrisies, hefd dor tring < [heED i B3 - - - 17 5
Frargol babvess dearanid ot te s

Brough erofi or o - - PR fSE O (RNE ORI (i - (0
Frrianeid] ke i el sepunthisse

e - = sy e M - - = [pEmy
Dot lonutiorers - BINHR BN (M3 R (LS 548 - (s
De st e - - D (s BanY ERES ISRTHE i
Crhe bemtud Sulebr L] Y (HME (A L ] - ey
Tl merederntine it Skl - EPSE LB (L PES) I0SE RUEAR (MWL - (a5
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysis of the undiscounted contractual cash flows (Connnued)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Derivative cash flows
Derivatives settled on a net basis
The fair values of the Group's derivatives that will be settled on a net basis are primarily
Interest rates products: The tables below present the undiscounted contractual cash
flows of the Groups net derivative positions based on their remaining contractual

maturities:

31 December 2016

Less than 1-3 3-12 1-3 Over
1month months months years 5 years Total
Interest rate dervatives 4 9 11 A0 £ 478

Ciyesr

Interest rate derivatives {18} 5 49 (28} (227} (219)

Derivatives settled on a gross basis

The fair values of the Groups derivatives that will be settled on 2 gross basis are
primarily forelgn exchange rates and precious metal products. The tables below present
the undiscounted contractual cash flows of the Group's gross derivative positions based
on their remaining contractual maturities:

31 December 2016

Less than - 312 15 Ower
imonth  months  menths years 5 years

Diermeat ives settled on

2 gress e

- Cash intiow 30583% 1303a0 1032215 363N 485 1,605,150

= Cash outflow (306,299)  {231,425) (1,018,993)  (36,568) {£6%) (1,593,760)
Total (460)  (10B5) 13,216 (257) 16 11,430

Dervatives setiled on

2 giess bas

= Cash inflaw 29711 X373 BET 46 50,062 B15 1362103

= Cash outflow (2296730 (213507) (BE3,714)  (49.5965) (815 (1357674
Total 3 137 4032 127 - 4474
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.2 Liquidity risk (Continued)
Credit Commitments

The tables below summarize the amounts of credit commitments by remaining maturity.

31 December 2016

Less than 15 Owver

1 year years 5 years
Loan commitments 84,529 142,003 361,869 588401
Bank acceptance 312,255 - - 312,255
Credit card commitmeants 323,217 - - 323217
Guarantes and letters of guarantes 107,922 94,520 26,735 229177
Lettars of creait 161,127 20,157 - 181,284
Total 489,050 256,680 3BR.604 1,634,334

Lass than
; Total
Loan commitments 56,515 134,021 253,897 450,433

1 yaar

Bank acceptance 382 255 - - 382,255
Credit card commitrmants 258,745 - - 258 745
Guarantee and ktiers of guarantes 102,829 97,027 33.520 233376
Lettars of cradit 151,193 7.2 - 158,505
Total 551,537 238,768 263417 1,483,714

49.3 Market risk

Market risk represents the potential lpss arising from changes in market rates of interest
and foreign exchange, a3 well a5 commodity and equity prices. Market risk arises from
both the Group’s proprietary positions and customer driven transactions, in both cases
related to on- and off-balance sheet activities,

The Group is primarily exposed to interest rate risk through its lending, ficed-income
and funding activities. Interest rate risk is inherent in many of the Group's businesses
and this situation |5 common among large banks, It fundamentally arises through
mismatches between the matunty and re-pricing dates of interest-earning Assets and
interest-bearing liabilities. As discussed further below, interest rate risk is actively

managed.

Foreign exchange rate risk is the potential loss related to changes in foreign exchange
rates affecting the translation of foreign currency denominated monetary assets and
liabilities. The risk of loss results from movemenits in foreign currency exchange rates.

340 @rE2shE
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)

The Group s also exposed to commodity. risk, primarily related to gold and other
precious metals: The risk of loss results from movements in commodity price. The Group
manages the risk refated to gald price tagether with foreign exchange rate risk.

The Group has determined that the levels of market risk related to changes in equity
prices and commadity prices other than gold, with respect to the related exposures in
its trading and investment portfolios, are immaterial.

Segregation of Trading Book and Banking Book

To enhance the effectiveness of market risk management, a5 well as the accuracy
of determining the levels of requlatory capital required related to market risk, the
Group segregates all financial instruments and commadities, both on- and off-balance
sheet, into either the trading book or banking book. The trading book is comprised of
financial instruments and commaodity positions hetd tor trading, including all derivatives
imstruments, Any other financial instruments are included in the banking book.

Market Risk Management for Trading Book

The Group manages market risk in the trading book through methodologies that
imclude Malue at Risk (VaR), monitoring and management of established limits, sensitivity
analysis, duration analysis, exposure analysis and stress testing.

The Graup has formulated policies, which are subject 1o review annually of as
circumstances othenwise dictate, to manage market risk. Further, in this regard, the
Graups market risk management is focused on movements in domestic and global
financial markets, as well as the composition of the trading book and management's
trading strategies, within approved limits, Moreover, the Group has implefnemﬁd move
specific policies for financial instruments, closely monitaring the exposure to specific
issuers and counterparties, as well as the tenor of individual positions and trading
strategies. The foundation of the Group's limit and risk monitaring system is based on
VaR, whech i used consstently o monitor all classes of financial instruments in the-
trading book,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)

49.3 Market risk (Continued)

342 @rE2shs

Market Risk Management for Trading Book (Continued)

The Bank has adopted an historcal simulation methad, with & confidence level of
99% based on holding period of 1 day and historical data for 250 days to calculate
the VaR of the trading books, which includes the Head Office, domestic branches and
overseas branches. Based on the differences between domestic and owerseas markets,
the Bank selected applicable parameters for medel and risk factors in order to reflect
the actual market risk levels. The Bank verified the accuracy and reliability of market risk
measurements through data analysis, paralkel modeling and back-testing of the market
risk Measurements.

VaR Analysis for the Trading Book

Bank

At the

end of
the year Average  Maximum  Minimum

Interest rate figk 53 63 M 39
Exchange rate risk (1) 20 86 213 14
Commaodity risk 9 13 28 3
Overall VaR 44 96 213 44

Interest rate risk 50 76 103 50
Exchange rate risk (1) 82 T4 151 32
Cammodity risk 18 25 53 4
Owerall VaR az 119 183 &8

The Bank calculates VaR for its trading book (excluding RMB toreign currency settlement
contracts with customers under relevant regulations). The Bank conducts stress testing
for its trading book quarterly. The specific areas subject to this testing include the major
areas of exposure, such as bonds, interest rate derivatives, fareign exchange derivatives
and gold. The stress testing uses a range of scenarios, to assess the potential impact on
profit and loss.

(1) VaR related to gold s recognized as 2 component of foreign exchange rate risk.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49 Financial risk management (Continued)
49.3 Market rick (Continued)
Market Risk Management for Banking Book

The Group manages market risk related to the banking book by consstently applying
techniguees across the Group that include exposure limit management, stress testing,
scenario analysis and gap analysis.

Interast Rate Risk hManagement

The interest rate risk existing in the banking book broadly relates fo the mismatch of
the maturity or re-pricing dates of interest rate-sensitive financial assets and financial
liabilities, as well as inconsistencies in the change of the benchmark interest rates on
which most domestic interest rate-sensitive financial assets and finandial liabilities are
based.

The Group closely monitors changes in the macro-economic environment and the
monetary policies of the PEOC, enabling it to timely and flexibly adjusts its pricing
strategy. The Group establishes comprehensive interest raie risk management policies
.and protecols and has improved the consistency of interest rate risk measurement,
micnitaring, analysis and management of interest rate risk across the Group.

The Group regularly measures and analyzes the Group’s interest rate risk by conducting
~gap analysis, sensitivity analysis, scenario analysis and stress testing to manage interest
rate risk within established Emits,

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk Management

Fareign exchange rate risk relates to the mismatch of foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and Nabilities, and the potential loss related to changes in foreign
exchange rates, which largely arises through operational activities.

The Group performs monitoring and sensitivity analysis of foreign exchange rate risk
exposure, manages the mismatch of foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities
ta effectively manage foreign exchange rate risk exposure within acceptable limits,

Market Risk Exposure Limit Management

Market risk exposure limits are classified as either directive limits or indicative limits,
based on the characteristics of the underlying instruments or transactions, Indudlng
expasure limit monitoring, enforcement of stop-loss limits, VaR limits, and stress testing
limits.

The Group is committed to continuous improvement of its market risk exposure limit
management. The Group establishes exposure limits reflecting its risk appetite and
cantinuously refines the categarization of market risk exposure limits. Further, it
regulatly monitars, reports, refines, and implements improvements to the market risk
exposure imit process.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
49.3 Market risk (Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk

The Group primarily conducts its business activities in RMEB, with certain fransactions
denominated in USD, HED and, o a lesser extent, other cunmencias.

The compesition of all financial assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period
analyzed by currency is-as follows:
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wther inancisl imshaon AT mam 1 LETH] 50 M
Finanial it Frobd For traing 1848 LEY) - - 123,608
Ferarcial wats deseptated ot Bl vilun

thmough profe or s 1113 .04 B8y " 184,337
DCeriatin fnangidl sty N 15500 111 1% 31,450
Fnarcial warts hld undes reuade agrormenty pEELL) - - - 123,08
Loans and advancr B Duntomen ERLSA5R EERL .5 PL L3} 530518
Eatable-draly Bl st 1133761 1M AR ER 1Y 408 E1
ety iveli=eeni LESDEID 19843 - 161 115
et inymm et Cinifed at 1pobveabis BN - 135 1 4547
Qiber Srantidl aiseh 18550 A 1013 1280 s e
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)

458.3 Market risk (Continued)

Foreign exchange rate risk (Continued}
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

49  Financial risk management {(Continued)
49.3 Market risk {Continued)
Foreign exchange rate risk [(Continued)

The table below indicates the potential effect on profit before tax and other
comprehensive. income. arising from a 5% appreciation or depreciation of RMB spot
and forward foreign exchange rates against a basket of all other currencies on the net
positions -of foreign currency monetary assets and liabilties and dernivative instruments
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

31 December 2016
Other

Profit comprehensive
beftore tax income

0% apnreciEtion (1,892
5% deprecaton 1,892 (1,753}

The effect on profit before tax and other comprehensive income s caleulated based
on the assumption that the Groups foreign currency sensitive exposures and foreign
currency derivative instruments net position at the end of each reporting period
remain unchanged. The Group mitigates its foreign exchange rate risk through active
management of its foreign currency exposures and the appropriate use of derivative
imstruments, based on management expectation of future foreign currency exchange
rate movements. Such analysis does not take into account the correlation effect of
changes in different foreign currencies, mer any further actions that could be: taken
by management to mitigate the effect of foreign exchange ditferences, Theretore, the
sensithvity analysis above may differ from actual results ocedrring throigh changes in
foreign exchange rates.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interast rate risk arises from the mismatches between confractual maturities
or re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing liahilities
The Group's interest-generating assets and Interest-bearing liabilities are primarily
denominated in RWME. The PBOC established RMB benchmark interest rates for lpans
whereby financial institutions are in a position to price their loans based on credit risk;
commercial and market factors. The depaosit interest rate floating ceiling was removed
by the PBOC with effect from 24 October 2015 for commercial banks.

The Group manages its interast rate risk by:

= Regularly manitoring the macro-economic tactars that potentially impact the
PEOC benchmark interest rates;

- Optimizirg the management over the differences In timing between contractual
maturities or re-pricing dates of interest-generating assets and interest-bearing
liabilities; and

- Enhancing the interest rate margin on interest-generating assets and

interest-bearing liakilities, with reference to the prevailing PBOC benchmark
interest rates where appropriate.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)

458.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued}

The tables below summarize the contractual maturity or re-pricing date, whichever is
earler, of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting pericd.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49  Financial risk management {(Continued)

49.3 Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk {Continuad)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
48.3 Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk {Continted}

The following table illustrates the potential pre-tax impact, of a parallel upward or
downward shift of 100 basis points in relevant interest rate curves on the GIoup's net
Interest Income and other comprehensive income for the next twelve months from
the reporting date, based on the Groups positions of interest-earning assets and
interest-bearing liabilities at the end of each reporting period. This analysis assumes
that interest rates of all maturities move by the same amount, and does not reflect the
potential impact of unparalleled yield curve movements.

The sensitivity analysis on net interest income is based on reasonably possible changes
im interest rates with the assumption that the structure of financial assets and financial
liabilities - held- at the period end remains unchanged, and does not take changes
in customer behavior, basis nisk or any prepayment options on debt securities: into
consideration

The sensitivity analysis on other comprehensive income reflects only the effect of
changes in fair value of those financial instruments classified as avallable-for-sale
financial assets held, whose fair value changes are recorded as an element of other
comprehensive income,

31 December 2016

[ Other
ifterest o mpre hiEnahve

income income P e f B
+100 batie paints (24,271) {40,354) {16,780) {3B,949)
=100 batis paints 24211 40,354 16,780 38,949

The assumptions do not reflect actions that might be taken under the Group's capital
and interest rate risk management policy ta mitigate changes 1o the Group's interest
rate risk. Therefore the above analysis may differ from the actual situation.

In additicn, the presentation af interest rate sensitivity abowve s for illustration purposes
anly, showing the potential impact on net interest income and other comprehensive
income of the Group under ditferent parallel yield curve maovernents, relative to their
position at period-end, excluding the derivative positions.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
49 Financial risk management (Continued)
45.4 Insurance risk

The Group engages in its insurance business primarily in Mainland China. Insurance
risk refers to the financial impact resulting from the unexpected occurrence of
insured events. These risks are actively managed by the Greup through effective sales
management, underwriting control, reinsurance management and claim management.
Through effective sales management, the risk of mis-selling could ke reduced and
the accuracy of information used for underwriting i improved. Throwgh undenwtiting
contral, risk of adverse selection could be reduced amd moreover differential pricing
policy based on the level of each kind of risk could be utilized. Through reinsurance, the
Groups insurance capacity could be enhanced and targeted risks could be mitigated,
Effective claims management is designed to ensure that insurance payments are
controlled according to established criteria.

Uncertainty in the estimation of future benefit payments and premium receipts for
lomg-term lite insurance contracts arises from the unpredictability of long-term changes
in overall levels of mortality. The Group conducts experience analysis of mortality rate
and surrender rate, In order to improve its risk assessment and as a basis for reasonable

estimates.

50 Capital management

The Group's capital management objectives are as follows:

maintain an adequate capital base to support the development of its business;
- support the Group's financial stability and profitable growth;

- allecate capital through an efficient and risk based approach to optimize risk-adjusted
return to sharehalders; and

- Satequard the long-term sustainability of the Group’s franchise so that it can continue
to provide sutficient shareholder returns and benefits for other stakehiolders.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 Capital management (Continued)

The "Capital Rubes for Commercial Banks (Provisional)” issued by the CBRC in 2012 Includes,
amang other things, requirements for minimim capital, capital conservation butter, additienal
capital surcharge for systemically important banks, countercyclical buffer and Pillar [l capital as

tollows:

- minimunm regulatory requirements for Commaon Equity Tier-one Capital Adeguacy Ratio,
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio and Capital Adequacy Ratio are 5%, 6% and 8%,

respectively;

- capital conservation butter requires additional 2.5% of Common Equity Tier-one Capital

Adequacy Ratie;

= additional capital surcharge for systemically important banks requires additional 1% of

Comrron Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy'ﬂalin;

- should the regulators require countercyclical butter under particular circumstances
or regulators impose additional Pillar 1| capital requirements for specific banks, these

requirements shall be met within the specified time limits,

In April 2014, the CBRC has officially approved the Group to adopt the Internal Ratings -
Based approach to measure its Credit Risk-weighted Assets for both retail and pon-retail risk
exposures and the Standardized approach te measure its Operational Risk-weighted Assets,
respectively. Before that, the Group has been using the Weighted approach and the Basic
Indicator approach to measure its Credit Risk-weighted Assets and Operational Risk-weighted
Assets, respectively, for the purpose of calculating its Capital Adequacy Ratios. The CBRC will
determine the parallel run period for the Group, which should Bast for at least three years
During the parallel run period, the Group shoukd calculate its Capital Adequacy Ratios under
the above two approaches, and should confarm 1o the capital Hioor requirements as stipulated

in the ~Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Frovisional)”,

A5 at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015, the Group adopted the Standardized

approach for Market Risk-weighted Assets measurement,

Capital adequacy and the utilization of regulatory capital are closely monitored by the Group's
management in accordance with the guidelines developed by the Basel Committee and
relevant requlations promulgated by the CBRC. Required information related to capital levels

and utilizaticn is filed quarterly with the CERC.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50
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Capital management {Continued)

The tsble below summarizes the Capital Adequacy Ratios and capital compaosition as at 31
December 2018 caloulated pursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commercial Banks (Provisional)®
and under the Internal Ratings — Based approach for Credit Risk-weighted Asset and the
Standardized appraach for Marke! Risk-weighted Assets and Operational Risk-weighted Assets,
respectively, as approved by the CBRC in April 2014,

31 December

2016

Comman Equity Tier-one Capital

Adequacy Ratic LY 10.38% 10.24%
Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio () 11.06% 10,96 %
Capital Adequacy Ratio {1 13.04% 13.40%
Common Equity Tier-one Capital (2) 1.238,683 1,120,285
Deductible Items from Common Equity (3}

Tier-one Capital (7,653) 15,595)

Met Common Equity Tier-ane Capital 1,231,030 1,124,690
Additicnal Tier-one Capital {4) 79,904 79,902

Met Tier-one Capital 1,310,934 1,204,592
Tier-two Capital 13 235,566 267,028

Met Capital 1,546,500 1,471,620
Risk-weighted Assets 1) 11,856,530 10,986,302

Pursuant to the “Capital Rules for Commerzial Banks (Provisional)®

)

2}

The scope of consolidation related to the calculation of the Group's Capital Adequacy
Ratios Includes Domestic Institutions, Owerseas Institutions and affiliated financial
subsidiaries specified in the Regulation.

The Comman Equity Tier-one Capital Adequacy Ratio is calculated as Net Common
Equity Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets, The Tier-cne Capital Adequacy
Ratio is caleulated as Net Tier-one Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets. The Capital
Adequacy Ratio is caloulated as Net Capital divided by Risk-weighted Assets.

The Group’s Common Equaty Tier-one Capital includes: ordinary share capital, capital
reserve (subject to regulatory limitations), investment revaluation reserve, surplus
reserve, general reserve, retained earnings, non-controlling interests (to the extent
permitted in the Common Equity Tier-one Capital under the Regulation), and the
fareign currenty translation reseqve.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

50 Capital management (Continued)

(3)  The Group’s Deductible Items from Common Equity Tier-one Capital include: other
intangible assets {axcluding land-use rights), and Common Equity Tier-one Capital
investrents made in financial instilutions over which the Group has control but ane
outside the requlatory consalidation scope for the Capital Adequacy Ratios calculation.

(4} The Group's Additional Tier-one Capital includes: preference shares issued and
non-controling interests {to the extent permitted in the Additional Tier-one Capital
detimition under the Regulaticn).

(3)  The Group's Tier-two Capital includes: Tier-two capital instrumeants and related premium
{to the extent allowed under the Regulation) excessive allowance for loan losses, and
minarity interests {fo the extent permitted in the Tier-two Capital definition under the
Requlation).

(8]  Risk-weighted Assets include Credit Rsk-weighted Assets, Market Risk-weighted Assets
and Operational Risk-weighted Assets,

51 Fair value of financial instruments

The majority of the Groups assets and Rabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position are-financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair value measurement of non-financial
aszets and non-financial liabilines do not have a material impact on the Group’s financial
position and operations, taken a5 a whole.

The Group does not have any financial assets or financial labilities subject to non-recurring
falr value measurements for the years ended 31 December 2016 2nd 31 Decermber 2015,

51.1 Valuation technique, input and process

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as
tollows:

o It traded in active markets, fair values of financial assets and financial liabiities
with standard terms and comnditions are determined with reference to quoted
market bid prices and ask prices, respectively;

- tf not traded in active markets, fair values of financlal assets and financial
liakilities zre determined by using wvaluation techniques. These valuation

techniques inchide the use of recent transaction prices of the same or similar
instruments, discounted cash flow analysis and generally accepted pricing models,
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For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
51.1 Valvation technique, input and process (Continued)

The Group has established an independent valuation process tor financial assets and
financial lisbilities. The Finance Market Department ks responsible for the valuation of
financial assets and financial liabilities, and the Risk Management Department performs
an independent review of the valuation methodologies, inputs, assumptions and
valuation results. The Operations Department records the accounting for these items
and prepares the disclosure of the financial assets and financial liabilities, based on the
independently reviewed valuation,

The Group’s valuation policies and procedures for ditferent types of financial instruments
are-approved by the Risk Management. Committee Any change to the valuation policees,
or the related procedures, must be reported to the Risk Management Committee tor
approval before they are implemented,

Far the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no significant change in the valuation
techniques or inputs used to determine fair value measurements.

51.2 Fair value hierarchy

The Group classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following three
levels based on the extent to which inputs to valuation technigues used 1o measure fair
value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are observable.

Level 13 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
an active market for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or lability,
either directly or indirectly; and

Leved 3:  fair value measurements are not based on observable market data,

51.3 Financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair valve on the
consolidated statement of financial position

The tables below summarize the carmying amounts and fair values of those financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured in the consclidated statement of financial
position at their fair value. Finencial assets and financial liabilities for which the carrying
amounts approximate fair value, such as balances with central banks, deposits with
banks and other financizl institutions, placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions, financial assets held under resale agreements, loans and advances.
o customers, receivable from the WMOF, special government bond, borowings from
central bank, deposits and placements from banks and ather financial institutions, due
1o customers, financial assets sold under repurchase - agreements and certificates of
deposit issued, interbank certificate of deposits issued and commercial papers issued are
not inchuded in the tables below.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.3 Financial assets and financial abilities not measured at fair valve on the

consolidated statement of financial pesition (Continued)

31 December 2016

Carrying Falr
amount value Level 1 Level 2 Leval 3
Financial assats
I-I4-I|:f-;|:|-r'r!a|1:unq,I Investments 2,882,152 2,892,525 1.528 2,890,997 -
Dbt instruments classified as
receivables lexcluding
recexvable from the MOF
and special government
'mndil 259,224 257,948 - 117,334 140,614
Subtotal 3,141,376 3,150,473 1,528 3,008,330 140,614
Financial liabilities
Bonds ssoed 202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692 -
Subtotal 202,107 202,084 10,392 191,692 -

Financlal assats
Held-to-maturisy investments 2,200,822 2387518 2058 2385423 7
Debt instriments classified &

receivables (excluding

recapable from the MOF

and special government

and) 192 a7 196,282 - 133788 £2 514
Subtotal 2402921 2,583,800 2,058 2513191 £2,551
Financial liabilities
Honds ssued 198,476 199,289 9.816 163,473 -
Subtatal 198,476 199,239 9816 189473 =

418/458
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Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial pesition

The tables below summarize the fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities
measured in the consolidated statement of financial position at their fair value.

31 December 2016

Level 2 Level 3

Financia assets held for tradng

= Debt securiies - 108,095 - 108,095
- Precious metal cantracts - 15,523 - 15,523
Sutmotal - 123,618 - 123,618

Financial assats dm%nmd ot fak
value through proft o loss

= Debit securitios 6,256 163,137 1,850 171,243
- Deposits with banks and
oifer financial stitutions - - 40,953 40,953
- Placements with and loans 1o banks
and ather financial institutons - - 58,485 58,485
= Oithars 1,456 1.710 20,430 13,656
Subtotal 712 164,847 121,778 94,337
Derivative financal assets
= Exchange rate derivatives - 25,153 54 25207
~ Interest rate dervatives - 1,042 18 1,061
- Precaous metal contracts and others - 5,192 - 5192
Submotal - 31,387 73 31,460
Avzlable-for-sale financial assets
- Debt securities 46,517 1,343,306 255 1,390,678
- Equity Instrumenss 3,482 - 1,567 5,044
- Fund invesimanite 7,015 - - 7015
- Orthers = = 5818 5,818
Subtatal 57.014 1,343,506 7,640 1,408,560
Toral assets 64,726 1,663,758 129,491 1,857,975
Financiyl labilities held for trading
- Fimancial kabilites related 1o
preciows metals - (17,504} - (17,504)

Financial labiliies designated ar fair
value through profit or loss
- Principal guarantesd wealth
management products -

(283,666)  (283.664)

Dervative financal liatlmies

- Exchange rate derivatives - (19,650) (113) (19,763}
~ Inberest rate derivatives - {585) (14 (604)
- Precious metal contracts - (391) - {391)
Subtotal - (20,626) (132} (20,758)
Total [abilities - (38.130) (283,758) [321,928)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial pasition (Continued)

Financial assets hield for trading

- Dbt soclrities - 85,050 - 65,050
- Precipus metal contracts - 14,732 - 14,732
Subtotal - 70782 - 79,782

Financial assets designated at fair
value theaugh profit o hass

= Debt securities - 141,195 £49 141,844
- Deposits with banks and other
finaniial instiutions - - 164,572 164 572

= Flacements with and loans 10 banks

and other financial institutions - - 5,529 AL
= Others 1019 J00 45,815 47,334
Subtotal 1019 141,295 216,565 350479
Derivatve financial assets
- Buchange rate dervatives - 13,833 3 13,871
= Interest rate demvatives - 60 20 90
- Preciols metal contracts - 1,247 - 1,047
Subtotal - 15,980 58 16,038
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
- Debisecurities 15,138 1,187,375 B 1,202,507
— Equity Instriments 1,408 - 3,547 5,045
- Fund investments. 6,586 = - 6,586
Subtotal 23,212 1,187,375 3,631 1214238
Total assets 24340 1,360,421 255,865 1,660,527
Financial lanisties held for trading
- Financial lianilties related to
precious metals - {24,036) - (24,036)

Financial kabiities designated at falr
walue through profit or loss
~ Principal guaranteed wealth

management products - - (406,407)  (406,407)
Dervative financial liabilines

- Exchange rate dervatives - {11,129) (65) 111,194

- Interest rate denvatives - {035) (26} [961)

- Precigus metal contracts - 37 a 37

Subtotal i 112,101) o1 (12,192)

Total liabilfites - {35,137} (406,2938) (442 ,635)
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IV MNOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)

substantially all financial instruments classified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy
are debt investments, currency forwards, currency swaps, interest rate swaps, curmency
options and precious metal contracts. Fair value of debt invesiments denominated in
RMB is defermined based upon the valuation published by the China Central Depository
& Clearing Co,, Ltd. Fair value of debt investrsents dencminated In foreign currengies
is determined based upon the valuation results published by Bloomberg. The fair
value of currency forwards, currency swaps, intérest rate swaps and currency options
are calculated by applying discounted cash flow analysis or the Black 5choles Pricing
Model The fair value of precious metal contracts that are related to the Group’s trading
activities is determined with reference to the relevant observable market parameters. All
significant inputs are abservable in the market

Level 3 financial assets of the Group mainly represented underlving assets invested
by principal-guaranteed wealth management products issued by the Group including
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, placements with and foans to banks
and other financial Institutions and credit asseis. The counterparties of these deposits
and placements are primarily commercial banks in Mainland China. The credit assets ane
loans and advances to corporate customers in Mainland China. As not all of the inputs
needed to estimate the far value of these deposits, placements and credit assets are
observable, the Group cassified these invesiment products within Level 3 of the fair
value measurement hierarchy, The significant unobservable inputs related to the credit
assets are those parameter related credit risk and liguidity. Level 3 financial liabilities
largely represented liabilities to the nvestors of these products and the unobservable
inputs mainly represented those related to the credit risk of the Group. Management
has made assumptions on unobservable inputs based on observed indicators of
impairment, significant changes in yield, external credit ratings and comparable credit
spreads, but the fair value of these underlying assets and liabilities could be different
from those disclosed

There were no signiticant transfers amongst the different levels of the fair value
merarchy during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial pasitien (Continued)

The reconciliation of Level 3 classified financial assets and financial liabilities presented
at fair value on the consalidated statement of financial position is a5 follows:

Financial Finandtlal
avsety liakilities
designated Hvailable - designated
at fair valse Derivative forsale  at fair value Derivative
through fimancial finanal through finangial
profit or loss assets assets  profit or loss lizhilities
1 January 2016 116,385 58 3631 (406,407} (a1}
Furchases 487,191 - 5,085 - -
Bsuance - - - {1,758,926) -
Settlementisidropotsi [58%,006) {11 {1.99%) 1,891,502 1
Total gamsfiosses)
FRCOgRETRd I
= Pyt or osa 6,028 16 - {9.835) [55)
= CAher comprehensive
Ficome - - 13 - -
21 December Xilg 121,778 13 7640 {283,665) {132)

Change in ueeeglizes
{isseshoains for
the year ingluded in
profit o Joss for
assetsabibtles held
&t the end od 1he year {657) H| - 175 (47)
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

51 Fair value of financial instruments (Continued)

51.4 Financial assets and financial Nabilities measured at fair value on the
consolidated statement of financial pesition (Conbinued)

1 January 2015 256, 78S 213 1,440 (347287} 1 206)
Purchases 384,354 - 2,598 - -
Ssuanme - - = [3007.928) -
Sertmmenisidisposals (4383560 1131} (40B} 2,963,544 144
Total gainatlosses)

recognized

= Profin or loss 13,777 {34} E] (14741} Bl

= (ither compreheansye

INCOHTE = = 13 5 =

31 December 2015 216,565 58 3631 {406,407} {9h

Change in annalized
gainsfosses) for
the year included in
peofit or loss for
asseistiabiities held
ot the endl of 1he year 176 {170 - 9 1ol

In Level 3 of the fair valus hierarchy, total gains of losses included in profit or loss for
the year are presented in Met Gain on Finandal Instruments Designated at fair value
through profit or loss of the consolidated income statement.
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
52 Events after the reporting period
52.1 Profit appropriation
{1} Pursuant to the resofutions of the Board of Directors’ meeting on 13 January
2017, a cash dividend at the dividend rate of 5.5% per annum refated to the
second tranche of preference shares amounting to RMB2, 200 million in total was
approved and the dividend was distributed on 13 March 2017,
{2} Pursuant to the meeting of the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017, the
propasal for profit appropriations of the Bank for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set forth as follows:

{i} &n appropriation of RMB18,294 million to the statutory surplus resenve
(Mote IV 41);

{i}y An appropriation of RMB31,947 million 1o the general reserve(iote IV 42);
{iiy A cash dividend of RMBO.17 per erdinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2016 hased on the number of ordinary shares issued
as at 31 December 2016 totaling AMBS55,2 15 million (Note IV 10}
As at 31 December 2016, the statutory surplus reserve had been recognized as
appropriation. The other two items will be recognized in the Group's consolidated
financial statements after approval by ordinary equity holders in the forthcoming annual
general meeting,

53 Comparatives

Cerain comparative amounts have been reclassified o conform with the current year's
presentation,
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

54 Statement of financial position of the bank

As at 31 December

2016
Assets
Cash and balances with central banks 2,809,879 2,586 243
Deposits with banks and other financial institutions 616,450 690,230
Precious metals 59,105 40,909
Placements with and loans to banks and other
financial institutions 590,223 511,969
Financial asseis held for trading 43,880 79777
Financial assets designated at fair value
throwgh profit or loss 286,123 355,550
Derivative financeal assets 31,430 15,803
Financial assets hebd under resale agreements 322,948 470,182
Leans and advances 1o customers 9,282,320 8473314
Available-tor-sale financial assets 1,375,156 1,195,554
Held-to-maturity investments 2,869,711 2,293 949
Debt instruments classified as recenvables 604,991 541,252
Investment in subssdiaries 11,660 10,660
Investments in associates 213 273
Controlled structured entities investments 30,000 -
Property and equipment 152,457 152,184
Deferred tax assets B2,670 81,213
Other assets 221,425 185,575
Total assets 19,440,641 17,686,237
Liakilities
Borrowings from central bank 290,992 &0,489
Deposits from banks and other tinandial institutions 1,161,931 1,226,793
Placements from banks and other
financial instintions 269,591 290,389
Financial liabilitles held for trading 17,504 24,036
Financial liabilities designated at falr value through
profit or boss 283,666 406,414
Derivative financeal liabilities 20,734 11,972
Financial assets sold under repurchase agreements 202,938 88,804
Due to customers 15,035,744 13,535,613
[rebt securities issued 378,094 379,728
ther liabiities 463,621 453,468
Total liabilities 18,124,815 16,477,706
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(Continued)

54 Statement of financial position of the bank (Continued)

As at 31 December

2016 2015

Equity
Ordinary shares 37 324,794 324,794
Preference shares 38 79,899 79,899
Capital ressrve 39 98,574 98,574
Investiment revaluation reserve 3,768 22.258
Surplus reserve 41 114,890 96,567
General reserve 42 197,695 175,021
Retained earnings 494,573 411,401
Foreign currency translation reserve 1,633 17
Total equity 1.215.826 1,208,531
Total equity and liabilities 19,440,641 17,686,237

appreved and authorized for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 March 2017

Hit

Chairman Executive Director

Anmual Repert 2016 363

426/458



Notes to the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2016

tamounts in milicns of Renminki, unless otherwse stated)

EDINETOOOO

O0000000O000Oo(E24593)

IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33

364 @LE2REE

Statement of changes in equity of the bank

fepiiment
Oedinary Preferemce  Copifal revaleation Swrpler  Generd

shares  resene IRSEAVE  MMBIME  [ESERVE TESENTE
A | Sy 26 BN WM 1L53 BESET  WSAR anAM 7 LS
Proit for ths year - - = - - - HRSE 1B 345
e fomorhisnsne
fomMneme - = (A0 . 1616 [16AN)
Tota! cormpresening
[resiincoms
for the year > - = (35,450) - - 1RME 1616 1664M
Appropnion 1
verplus sk 4 - - - - 1B38 - |g3E) -
Ropropridion bo
penieral rps i1 = - - - - 1AM [l2EnE) - -
Dendends 1 oedfeniry
Pty hoiters 10 = - = = = = (TR} L
Dendends o pesterenne
sharvholfery it - - - - = (4500} [4:200}
A5 3 31 December 158 T4 TH T9EM. BESM ITH M4m0 1MEN dWET 1633 111532
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IV NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

55 Statement of changes in equity of the bank (Continued)

Asat ] s 2005 MW B Wi i MmAl HElE 3B E 1

Privi e the jear - - - - - - 1B - 18T
[hes comgrehamie

RCOmE - - T ¥ - - - 6 19
Tatal comprenie

ingome for e yeir - - = 13 - - MM BE 000
Isyce of preterence

thaes H = NS - - - - - L
Appeeptiation b

srpls feseve 2 - - = - = = =
AEpFEptn 1

SR NG ii - - - - = IBET  IEATS - -
Dwidenss 1o oriinary

ety bukders 1 - - = - - - - g
Didends tm prefuesmnce

shrehidir: 18 - - - - - = Aoy - A
As it 3 December 105 M TR Wi NX KOS  1AE Ak 17 126853
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3
2016 3 31 2016 6 30 2016 9 30 2016 12 31
138.3% 138.6% 137.8% 139.8%
(
GAAP

796,141 91,772 99,101 987,014

(770,531)  (84,739)  (76,865) (932,135)

727,185 53,211 47,571 827,967

(635,018)  (42,645)  (65,803)  (743,466)

(91,553) (91,553)

26,224 17,599 4,004 47,827

3,426 6,133 1,541 11,100

651,473 76,506 67,668 795,647

(647,679)  (103,726)  (56,023)  (807,428)

640,006 48,691 62,503 751,200

(644,902)  (16,954)  (99,559)  (761,415)

1,470 5 (182) 1,293

368 4,522 (25,593)  (20,703)

3,424 5,445 1,445 10,314
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( )
2016 12 31
85,923 19,290 99,834 205,047
- 31,327 6,606 63,763 101,696
34,844 3,763 36,331 74,938
162,511 48,612 175,762 386,885
640 279 919
283,918 71,665 312,206 667,789
( )
2015 12 31
76,289 16,791 84,691 177,771
- 19,010 13,888 67,530 100,428
24,437 1,478 18,989 44,904
117,738 46,497 173,856 338,091
396 213 609
218,860 64,766 277,749 561,375
4.
1
( ) 12 31
2016 2015
79,545 98,465
6 29,080 38,809
12 57,388 66,289
12 108,622 75,949
274,635 279,512
0.82% 1.11%
6 0.30% 0.44%
12 0.59%% 0.74%
12 1.12% 0.85%
2.83% 3.14%
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2016 2015
52,491 27,919
17,437 13,644
3

0.18% 0.15%

2016 12 31 2015 12 31
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1
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
13.77 17.31 19.78 20.37 18.52
12.07 13.89 16.39 18.55 15.06
12.65 15.79 17.18 19.40 16.33
13.69 17.31 19.47 18.56 16.78
100
1
2016 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
12 1 2 3 4 5
17.00 16.89 16.66 16.66 16.14 16.54
16.45 16.47 16.29 16.08 15.75 16.13
16.75 16.68 16.45 16.38 15.96 16.30
100
16.13 2017 5 31
100
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2014 1 1 2037 12 31 15.315 15.315 5
2038 1 1 15 15 5
C )
2013 1 1 2037 12 31
2.1
2014 1 1 2037 12 31
20.315 15.315 5 2038 1 1
20 15 5
2009
(b)
D
2009
20
2013 1 1 2037 12 31 20.315
2016 1 1 2016
2)

©

441/458



19

24 1 1 2
2016 6 29
24
2016 8 1
2016 9 29

442/458

EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

443/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

196 365

2016 12 31

2016 12 31

IFRSs

1SAs

1ESBA

444/458



EDINETOOOO
O0000000O000Oo(E24593)
oOoOooodn

i NPLs

8.1 1
19 49.1
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9,719.6

400.3
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NPLs
8.6 8 NPLs
.48
NPLs
2016 12 31
73.0
NPLs
NPLs
NPLs
NPLs
NPLs NPLs
NPLs
NPLs
8.5 2
51
2016 12 31
1,858.0
321.9
93%
12%
1
2
3
3
3
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WMPs

31

306.2
2016 12 31

1,379.0

2016 12

34.5

WMPs
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| ndependent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Agricultural Bank of China Limited
(Incorporated in the People's Republic of Chinawith limited liability)

Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Agricultural Bank of China Limited (the “Bank™) and its subsidiaries (the “Group™)
set out on pages 196 to 365, which comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016;

the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs’) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (“1SAS’). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsihilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section
of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
IESBA Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit mattersidentified in our audit are summarised as follows:

Impairment of loans and advances to customers
De-recognition of non-performing loans (“NPLS") transferred
Valuation of financial instruments measured at fair value

[ )
[ )
[ ]
e Consolidation of structured entities
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Impairment of loans and advances to customers

Refer to Note 11 8.1, Note Il 1, Note IV 19 and

Note IV 49.1 to the consolidated financial We evauated and tested the design and operating
statements. effectiveness of the relevant controls over the
impairment assessments and impairment allowance
computations for loans and advances to customers.
These controls implemented primarily comprised the
regular review and approval of the results of credit
assessments to ascertain whether objective evidence of
impairment had been timely identified, of the valuation
of collaterals, of the estimated future cash flows and
Allowance for impairment losses represented — calculations of present values for impaired loans
management’'s best estimates of losses incurred  identified individually, and of the collective impairment
within loans and advances to customers as at the ~ computations, including appropriateness of the models,
balance sheet date. The allowance was computed  data inputs and key assumptions and changes thereof.
individually or on a collective basis, where  We also tested IT controls over the information systems
appropriate. for these models.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross loans
and advances to customers amounted to
RMB9,719.6 hillion, and an alowance for
impairment losses of RMB400.3 hillion was
recognized in the Group’s Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position.

Corporate loans were initially assessed for  We performed independent credit reviews on selected
impairment individually by management. If samples, with reference to available financia
identified as impaired based on objective evidence information of borrowers and guarantors, latest
of impairment, management regularly assessed the  collateral valuations, and relevant external evidence and
associated allowance for impairment losses based  factors, to ascertain whether management’s
on estimation of future cash flows. identification of impaired |oans was appropriate.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
Impairment of loans and advances to customers
(Continued)
Non-impaired corporate loans and all personal For impaired loans identified individualy, we

loans were included in homogeneous groups with examined, on a sample basis, forecasted future cash
similar credit risk characteristics for impairment flows based on financial information of borrowers and
assessments on a collective basis. Models were guarantors as well as latest collateral valuations and
used for this purpose, applying key assumptions other available information together with discount rates
such as, historica loss experience, loss in supporting the computation of impairment allowance.
identification period for incurred but unidentified
impairment losses, macro-economic, industry and
geographical  locations factors.  Management
assessed these key assumptions on a periodic basis,
and made adjustments where deemed appropriate.

For collectively assessed impairment alowance, we
assessed the appropriateness of the impairment models
used with reference to our industry knowledge. We also
performed independent assessment on the parameters
and inputs used in the impairment models, including
evaluating accuracy and completeness of source data,
appropriateness of loan segmentation by risk
characteristics, appropriateness of key inputs and
assumptions such as historical loss experience, macro-
economic factors, other risk factors and parameters as
well as adjustments made thereof.

We focused on the impairment assessment of loans
and advances to customers due to the significant
management  judgments made during the
impairment  identification and  assessment
processes.

We discussed with management and scrutinized the
appropriateness of those key assumptions applied in
management’s impairment assessment, and compared
them with available external evidence where necessary.
We also applied sensitivities to the underlying key
assumptions.

Based on our procedures performed, in the context of
the inherent uncertainties associated with impairment
assessments, the assessment approaches, methodologies
and key assumptions adopted by management were
considered acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

De-recognition of non-performing loans (“NPLS")
transferred

Refer to Note |1 8.6, Note Il 8 and Note IV 48 to We evaluated and tested the design and operating
the consolidated financial statements. effectiveness of the relevant controls over transfers of
NPLs, including approval of NPLs disposa lists and
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the  transfer plans, review and approva of the contractual
Group transferred NPLs through disposal to third  terms for different disposal options, and the assessment
parties or issuing asset-back securities, with gross  results of whether risks and rewards had been
loan balance of RMB73.0 hillion. The Group had  transferred.
derecognized these loans based on its de
recognition assessment. We selected samples and read through the lega
contracts to assess the Group’s contractual rights and
Management analyzed the Group's contractual obligations and whether the Group had transferred its
rights and obligations in connection with such rights to receive contractual cash flows, or whether the
transfers, and assessed the extent to which the transfers qualified for the “pass-through” of those cash
associated risks and rewards of ownership were flows, to independent third parties. We independently
transferred, and where necessary, anayzed tested the transfer of risks and rewards by using a
whether the Group had relinquished controls over modelling methodology which included inputs and
the NPLs, to determine whether the de-recognition assumptions applied to estimate cash flows, use of
criteriawere met. appropriate discount rates and variability factors.

The de-recognition assessment relating to transfers For NPLs that the Group had neither retained nor
of NPLs involved significant judgment from transferred substantially all of the associated risks and
management, and as such, we focused our audit on rewards, we analyzed whether the Group had
the de-recognition assessment of these NPLs. relinquished control of the NPLs to determine whether
the Group had continuing involvement in these NPLs.

Based on the procedures above, we found management’
s assessment over de-recognition of transferred NPLs
acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Vauation of financial instruments measured at fair
vaue

Refer to Note 11 8.5, Note |11 2 and Note IV 51to  We evaluated and tested the design and operating
the consolidated financial statements. effectiveness of the Group’s relevant controls over the

vauation process of financial instruments measured at
As a 31 December 2016, the Group’s financial fair value, which included management’s independent
instruments measured at fair value comprised  price verification process, model validation and
financial assets of RMB1,858.0 hillion and financial approval, review and approva of data feeds, inputs to
ligbilities of RMB321.9 hillion. valuation models and valuation results.

Among these financia assets and financial We evaluated the appropriateness of the models used by

liabilities measured at fair value, 93% and 12% management for the vauation of these financia

respectively, were valued using market observable  instruments using our knowledge of current industry

inputs and classified as Level 1 or Level 2 inthe  practice. We also evaluated on a sample basis the

fair value hierarchy. The remainder of these  reasonableness and appropriateness of the unobservable

financial instruments were valued using significant and observable inputs used for measuring these fair

inputs that were not based on observable market ~ values with reference to relevant market data.

data and classified as Level 3 in the fair value

hierarchy. For the Level 3 financial instruments measured at fair
value which involved a higher level of management

Valuation of financia instruments measured at fair ~ judgment, we performed an independent valuation of

value was a key area of audit focus due to the size thesefinancial instruments on a sample basis.

of the amounts and the judgements necessary in

selecting the unobservable inputs used in Based on the procedures performed, and in light of the

management’'s valuation process for Level 3  inherent uncertainties associated with management’s

financial instruments. valuation process, we found the models and
assumptions used in the valuation of financial
instruments measured at fair value acceptable.
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter

Consolidation of Structured Entities

Refer to Note Il 2, Note Il 7 and Note |V 46tothe  We evaluated and tested the design and operating
consolidated financial statements. effectiveness of the Group’s relevant controls over
consolidation assessment of structured entities,
Structured entities primarily included Wealth including approval of transaction structure, review and
Management Products (“WMPS"), securitization — approval of contractual terms, variable return
products, funds, trust investment plans and asset computations, and consolidation assessment results.
management plans issued, managed and/or invested
by the Group. As at 31 December 2016, total assets ~ We selected samples of structured entities and assessed
of the consolidated structured entities and the  the Group’s contractua rights and obligationsin light of
carrying amount of unconsolidated structured  the transaction structures, and evaluated the Group's
entities invested by the Group included in the  power over the structured entities. We performed
consolidated statement of financial position independent analysis and tests on the variable returns
amounted to RMB306.2 billion and RMB34.5  from the structured entities, including but not limited to
billion, respectively. In addition, asat 31 December ~ commission income and asset management fees earned
2016, total assets of non-principal guaranteed  as the asset manager, the retention of residual income,
WM Ps sponsored and managed by the Group which ~ and, if any, the liquidity and other support provided to
were not consolidated and not included in the  thestructured entities.
consolidated statement of financia position
amounted to RMB1,379.0 hillion. We aso assessed whether the Group acted as a
principal or an agent, through analysis of the scope of
Management had determined that the Group had  the Group’s decision-making authority over the
control of certain structured entities based on their structured entities, the remuneration to which the Group
assessment of the Group’s power over, itsexposure  was entitled for asset management services, the Group’s
to variable returns from its involvement with, and exposure to variability of returns from its other interests
its ability to use its power to affect the amount of its ~ in the structured entities, and the rights held by other
returns from these structured entities partiesin the structured entities.

The significant judgement exercised by Based on the procedures performed, we found
management in assessing whether the Group had management’s consolidation judgment of these
control of structured entities and the amount of such structured entities acceptable.

structured entities resulted in this matter being

identified as akey area of audit focus.
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Other Information

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises al of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give atrue and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure reguirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting

unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financia reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these mattersin our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
conseguences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Ho Shuk Ching, Margarita.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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